Annual Financial Report
and Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements

for the year ended

December 31, 2014

vivendi [




Friday February 27, 2015

VIVENDI
Sociétd anonyme with a Management Board and a Supervisory Board with a share capital of €7,433,803,509 00
Head Office 42 avenue de Friedland — 75380 PARIS CEDEX 08 - FRANCE

EIMPORTANT NOTICE READERS ARE STRONGLY ADVISED TO READ THE IMPORTANT DISCLAIMERS AT THE END OF THIS
FINANCIAL REPORT

Financial Report and Audited Consalidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31 2014 Vivendi /2




SELECTED KEY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

| - 2014 FINANCIAL REPORT

1 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS .

11 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS IN 2014

12 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

2 EARNINGS ANALYSIS .

21 CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS AND ADJUSTED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

22 EARNINGS REVIEW
23 0uTLOOK FOR 2015

3 CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS ANALYSIS

4 BUSINESS SEGMENT PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

41 REVENUES, EBITA AND CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS BY BUSINESS SEGMENT
42 COMMENTS ON THE OPERATING PERFORMANCE OF BUSINESS SEGMENTS

5 TREASURY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

51 SUMMARY OF VIVENDI'S EXPOSURE TO CREDIT AND LIQUIDITY RISKS

52 NET CASH POSITION AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014
53 ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL NET DEBT CHANGES
54 CHANGES T0 FINANCINGS

6 LITIGATION

7 FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

8 OTHER DISCLAIMERS L
Il - APPENDICES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL DATA
1 NON-GAAP MEASURES IN STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

2 ADJUSTMENT OF COMPARATIVE INFORMATION -

3 REVENUES AND EBITA BY BUSINESS SEGMENT - 2014 AND 2013 QUARTERLY DATA

Financial Report and Audited Consohdated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31 2014

Friday February 27 2015

R~ = w) N

13
14
17

. 18

21
22

27

21
29
30
K]

AN

BEBBYY

Vend: /3



Il - CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
STATUTORY AUDITORS® REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

NOTE 4

NOTE 5

NOTE 6

NOTE 7

NOTES

NOTE S

NOTE 10
NOTE 11
NOTE 12
NOTE 13
NOTE 14
NOTE 15
NOTE 16
NOTE17
NOTE 18
NOTE19
NOTE 20
NOTE 21
NOTE 22
NOTE 23
NOTE 24
NOTE 25
NOTE 26
NOTE 27
NOTE 28
NOTE 29
NOTE 30
NOTE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND VALUATION METHODS
SEGMENT DATA

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

EBIT

FINANCIAL CHARGES AND INCOME

INCOME TAXES

EARNINGS PER SHARE

CHARGES AND INCOME DIRECTLY RECOGNIZED IN EQUITY
GOODWILL

CONTENT ASSETS AND COMMITMENTS

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY AFFILIATES

FINANCIAL ASSETS

NET WORKING CAPITAL

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

EQUITY

PROVISIONS

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND MANAGEMENT QF FINANCIAL RISKS
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
LITIGATION

MAJOR CONSOLIBATED ENTITIES OR ENTITIES ACCOUNTED UNDER EQUITY METHOD
STATUTCRY AUDITORS FEES

AUDIT EXEMPTIONS FOR UMG SUBSIDIARIES IN THE UNITED KINGDOM
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

ADJUSTMENT OF COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Friday, February 27, 2015

14
i
46
47
. . A8
43
50
52
52
68
n
78
79
80
84
85
86
90
92
93
94
94
85
95
96
g7
98
103
107
110
115
t16
118
124
k]
132
133
134
134

Vivend: /4



Selected key consolidated financial data

Preliminary comments

Friday, February 27 2015

In compliance with IFRS 5, GVT {as from the third quarter of 2014), SFR (as from the first quanter of 2014) as well as Maroc Telecom and
Actwision Blizzard fas from the second quarter of 2013/ have bean reparted m Vivendr's Consohdated Financial Statements as discontinued
operations Vivend: deconsolidated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Actvision Blizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and

Cctober 11, 2013, respectively, i e, the date of their effective sale by Vivend:

The adjustments to previously published data are reported 1n Appendix 2 to the Financial Report and in Note 31 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 These adiustments were made to all periods as set out in the table of selected key
consalidated financial data below m respect of data from the Consolidated Statements of Earmngs and Cash Flows

Yezr ended December 31
2014 2013 02 2011 2010

Consoludated data
Revenues 10089 10252 9597 9064 9152
EBIT 736 637 113 1269 m
Eamings atinbutable to Vivend: SA sharecwners 4744 1967 179 2681 219

of which eamings from continuing operations attributable ta Vivendi SA shareowners {290) 43 {1 565} 571 647
EBITA (a} 939 955 1074 1086 1002
Adusted net incoms (a) 626 454 kal:| 70 514
Financial Net Debt / {Net Cash Position) {a) {4637} 11097 13419 12027 8073
Total equity 22988 19030 2291 2000 8171

of which Vivend) SA shareowners’ equity 22 606 17 457 18 325 19447 24058
Cash flow from operations before capital expendiiures net {CFFO before capex net) 1085 139 1139 1205 1251
Capntal expenditures net {capex net} (b} {243} {245) {293) (308) {2
Cash flow from operations (CFFO) {a} 843 B34 846 897 980
Cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid (CFAIT) 421 503 Nz 826 30
Financial investments {1244) oA {1689} (269) {655}
Financial divestments 17 807 347 bl 4205 1454
[wvidends pa:d with respect to previous fiscal year 1348 () 1325 1245 173 172
Per sharg data
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 13458 13306 12989 12814 12738
Adjusted net incoms per share 046 034 024 on LEN]
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the penod (excluding treasury shares) 13516 13396 13225 12874 12787
Equrty per share attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 1673 1303 1386 1511 1881
Divadends per shere paid with respect to previous fiscal year 1.00 {c} 100 100 140 140

In milions of euros, number of shares i millons, data per share in evros

a  The non-GAAP measures of EBITA, Adjusted net income, Net Cash Position {or Financial Net Debt), and Cash flow from operations
{CFFO) should be considered in additton to, and not as a subst:tute for, other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance as
presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the related notes, or as described in this Financial Report, and Vivend
considers that they are relevant indicators of the group’s operating and financial perfermance Each of these indicators s defined in the
appropriate sectron of this Financial Report or in its Appendix In addition, 1t should be noted that other companies may define and
calculate these indicators differently from Vivend), thereby affecting comparability

b Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of propenty, plant and equipment, and intang:ble assets

¢ OnJune 30, 2014, Vivend SA paid an ordinary €1 per share to its shareholders from the additional paid-in capital, considered as a

return of capital distribution to shareholders

Financial Report and Audited Consolrdated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31 2014
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Nota

In accordance with European Commission Regulation (EC) 809/2004 {Article 28) which sets out the disclosure obligations for 1ssuers of securities
Iisted on a regulated market within the European Union implementing Dhrective 2003/71/EC, the "Prospectus Regulation”), the following tems are
incorporated by reference nto this report

« 2013 Financial Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013, prepared under [FRS and the related
Statutory Auditors’ Report presented in pages 172 to 324 of the "Docurment de Référence™ No D 14-0355, fled with the French Autonté des
Marchés Financiers {AMF) on April 14, 2014, and on pages 172 to 324 of the Enghish translation of this “Document de Réference”, and

e 2012 Financial Report and the Consohdated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, prepared under IFRS and the related
Statutory Auditors’ Report presented in pages 168 to 319 of the “Document de Référence” No D 13-0170, filed with the AMF on March 18,
2013, and on pages 168 to 319 of the English translation of this "Document de Référence”
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I — 2014 Financial Report

Preliminary comments

+ (On February 11, 2015, at a meeting held at the headquarters of the company, the Management Board approved the Annual Financial
Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 Having considered the Audit Committee’s
recommendation from its meeting held on February 20, 2015, the Supervisory Board, at its meeting held on February 27, 2015, reviewed
the Annuat Financial Beport and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, as previously
approved by the Management Board on February 11, 2015

»  The Consahdated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 have been audited and certified by the Statutory Auditors
with no gualified opinion The Statutory Auditors’ Repart on the Consolidated Financia! Statements 1s mcluded in the preamble to the
Financial Statements

« In compliance with IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discentinued Operations, GVT, SFR, Maroc Telecom, and Actvision
Bhizzard have been reported n Vivend's Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued operations in accordance with the
following terms

Ongoing sales as of Dacember 31, 2014 On September 18, 2014, Vivend! and Telefonica entered into an agreement for the
sale of GVT As a result, GVT has been reported in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings and Statement of Cash Flows as a
discontinued operation as from the third quarter of 2014 Its contnbution to each line of Vivendi’s Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position as of December 31, 2014 has been grouped under the lines "Assets of discontinued businesses” and “Liabiiities
associated with assets of discontinued businesses”

Completed sales as of December 31, 2014 Vivend: deconsolidated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as from
November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11, 2013, respectively Al three businesses have been reported in the
Consolidated Statement of Earnings and Statement of Cash Flows as discontinued operations

The adjustments to previously published data are reported in Appendix 2 to the Financial Report and in Note 31 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014

1 Significant events

11 Significant events in 2014

111  Group’'s Governance

On June 24, 2014, Vivendi's General Shareholders” Meeting notably appointed three new Supervisory Board members Ms Katie Jacabs
Stanton, Ms Virginie Morgon and Mr Philippe Bénacin

Vivend:'s Supervisory Board, which was convened immed:ately following the General Shareholders’ Meeting on June 24, 2014, appointed
Mr Vincent Bolloré as Chairman The Board also appointed Mr Pierre Rodocanach as Vice-Chairman and Mr Jean-René Fourtou, who had
chaired the group since 2002, s Honorary Chairman The Board appointed Mr Danigl Camus as Chairman of the Audit Commuttee and Mr
Philippe Bénacin as Chairman of the Corporate Governance, Nominations, and Remunaration Committee

The Superwisory Board also appointed the members to the Management Board, which 1s currently compnsed of Messrs Amaud de
Puyfontaine, who serves as Chairman, Hervé Philippe and Stéphane Roussel

The Supervisory Board 1s currently compnsed of 14 members, including an employee shareholder representative and an employee
representative
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112 Saleof SFR

On November 27, 2014, pursuant to an agreement entered into on June 20, 2014 and following approval by the French Compstition Authority
on October 27, 20114 subject to conditions {see below), Vivend: announced the closing of the combination between SFR and Numericable The
main terms of this transaction are as follows

Cash proceeds €135 bdlion, subject to the sale price adjustment on November 27, 2014, Vivend: received
€13365 tilhon in cash and, on December 3, 2014, Vivendi made a contribution of
€200 million to the financing of the acquisition of Virgin Mobile by Numenicable Group
Under the terms of the agreement, the price adjustment to be calculated s based, among
other things, on any exceptional changes in the net working capital, SFR's net debt, as well
as certain restatements as contractually defined by the parties and 1s subject to a
contradictory accounting analysis in accordance with the contract

Vivendi's interest in the combined entity | 20% of Numericable - SFR {publicly-listed)

Altice's interest in the cambined entity Approximately 60% of Numericable - SFR {approximately 20% free float)

Eamn-out Earn-out of €750 mithion if the EBITDA-Capex aggregate of the combined entity 15 equal to
or higher than €2 billion during any fiscal year, ending not tater than December 31, 2024

Commitments given Limited representations and warranties

Governance - Minority representation for Vivendi on the Board of Directors, or 2 out of 10 directars,

subject to Vivend: retaining a 20% interest in Numencable - SFR (1 director «f Vivend:

holds an interest between 10% and 20%)
- Veto nghts on certain exceptional matters subject to Vivend: retaining a 20% interest in
Numencable - SFR
Numenicable - SFR has notably given the French Competition Autharity an undertaking
not to disclose any strategic information on the pay-TV market, the distnbution of pay-TV
services, or ultramarine telecommunications markets to Vivend
Standard 180-day lock-up penod, including restnctions on any disposal or transfer of
shares or equivalent transactions, following the date of settlement-delivery of the rights
1ssue of Numericable Group {on November 20, 2014), at the request of the underwnting
banks
Lock-up pened until the end of November 2015, after which Vivendi may sell or distribute
its Numencable - SFR shares, without restrictions, with a nght of prionty granted to
Altice {pre-emption right or nght of first offer}
Vivend: has agreed not to acquire any Numericable - SFR shares, directly or indirectly,
until June 30, 2018
Subject to Vivend: retaiming 1ts shares, Altice wall have a call option at market value
{subject to a floor') on Vivend:'s interast, axercisable in three tranches (7%, 7%, 6%) over
one-month window perads starting on June 1, 2016, June t, 2017 and June 1, 2018
- Tag-along rights for Vivend: (f Altice sells its shares

)

Liquidity - Lock-up period

As from the first quarter of 2014, SFR was presented in the Consolidated Statement of Eamings, the Statement of Cash Flows and in the
Statement of Financial Position of Vivendi as a discontinued operation The capital gain on the sale of SFR amounted to €2,378 mullion (after
taxes), recognized 1n the Consolidated Statement of Earnings under the line “Earnings from discontinued operations” Excluding the
discentinuaton® of amortization since Aprit 1, 2014, in accordance with IFRS 5, the capital gain on the sale of SFR amounted to
£3,459 milison (please refer to Note 3 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014)

Recognition of 20% interest in Numericahfe - SFR

On November 27, 2014, Vivend: sold 100% of its interest in SFR to Numenicable and recewed €13 166 bilhon i cash as well as
97,387,845 shares in the new combined entity Numenicable - SFR, which represents a 20% interest and voting nghts Since that date,
Vivend! deconsolidated SFR Given the sigmificant restrictive nature of the commitments given by Vivend: and Numenicable - SFR to the
French Competition Authority with respect to all Numericable - SFR's operations, Vivendr's minority representation on Numenicable - SFR's
Board of Directors together with the other specific nghts granted to Vivendi by Numencable - SFR's governance (see above) helps Vivend

! Volume Weighted Average Price (VWAF) of Numericable Group s shara price aver the 20 business days before the closing date (which occurved on November 27 2014)
E29 46 grossed-up at an annual rate of 5% during the perod ranging from the closing date until the date of exercise of the call aptian

2 When an operation 15 discontinued IFRS 5 requires the discontinuation of the amortization of the operation s tangible and imtangible assets Therefore for SFR reported as a
discontinued operation since March 31 2014 Vivend: discontinued the amortization of tangible and intangible assets as from the second quarter of 2014 resulting in a positive
impact, attributable to Vivendr SA shareholders, of €1 081 mmifion on earnings from discontinued operations from Apni 1 to November 27 2014
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adequately protect its proprietary interests as a minority shareholder Vivendi considers that 1t does not have the right to participate In
Numericable - SFR's financiat and gperational policy-making processes, according to IAS 28 Without having a significant influence, the 20%
interest tn Numericable - SFR was recognized as an “available-for-sale securities” in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position,
and, i accordance with IAS 39, was revalued at the stock market price at each reporting date (€3,987 million as of December 31, 2014} as
the unrealized gains or losses were directly recognized in equity From November 27, 2014 to December 31, 2014, the reevaluation of
Vivendi's nterest in Numenicable - SFR resulted in an unrealized gain of £743 million (before taxes)

1.1.3 Plan to sell GVT

On August 28, 2014, Vivend's Supervisory Board decided to enter into exclusive negotiations with Telefenica to sell GVT After receving a
positive opinion from employee representatives, on September 18, 2014 1+ authonzed the execution of an agreement with Telefonica for the
sale of GVT This agreement, the key terms of which are described below, represents a total enterpnise value of €7 45 billion {based on the
stock market value and foreign exchange rates on the date the exclusive negotiations were entered into with Telefonica), corresponding to a
2014 estymated EBITDA multiple of 10x The closing of the transaction 1s subject to certain conditicns, including the approval by the relevant
regulatory authonties, and is expected to occur during the second quarter of 2015

Cash proceeds at the completion date €4 66 billion subject to the sale price adjustment, based, among other things, on exceptional
changes n net working capital, GVT's bank debt [approximately €480 million), as well as
certain restatements as contractually defined by the parties, at the completion date of the
sale Depending on these adjustments and the actual numbers as of the completion date, the
amount of cash consideration paid, may be increased or decreased Moreover, the cash
proceeds, net of adjustments, will also be decreased by any applicable taxes related to the
sale, currently estimated at approximately €500 miflion The net sale price 1s estimated at
approximately €3 75 billion

Consideration shares 74% interest n Telefonica Brasil (VIVO/GVT) and 57% interest (8 3% voting nights) in
Telecom ltalia

Financing Capital increase at Vivo to fund cash proceeds, guaranteed by Teltefonica

Conditions precedent Completion of the transaction s subject to obtaming approvals from ANATEL {AgBneia

Nacional de Telecomunicagdes) and CADE {Conselho Administrativo de Defesa EconBmica) n

Brazil, and other conditions customary in this type of transaction

Commitments given Limited representations and waranties

Liquidity With respect to Vivendi's interest in the combined VIVO/GVT entity

- maximum 180 day lock-up penod starting as from the completion date of the
transaction, and

- tag-along nights

Governance No specific govemance nghts in VIVO/GVT and Telecom tala

As from the thied quarter of 2014, given the expected closing date of this transaction, GVT was presented in the Consolidated Statement of
Earnings, the Statement of Cash Flows and in Statement of Financial Position of Vivend as a discontinued operation

1.1.4 Sale of Maroc Telecom group

On May 14, 2014, pursuant to the agreements entered into on Navember 4, 2013, Vivend: sold its 53% interest in Maroc Telecom to Etisalat
and received €4,138 million in cash proceeds from the sale after a contractual price adjustment {-€49 mullion} On the same date, Vivend:
deconsohdated Maroc Telecom and recorded a capital gain of €786 million {before taxes and net of costs related to the sale), which 1s
presented under “Earmings from discontinued operations” in 2014 The agreements, which are described in Note 3 3 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, contained representations and warranties customary to this type of transaction
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1.5 Canal+ Group
Broadcasting rights for sport events

In 2014, Canal+ Group was awarded broadcasting nghts to the following sport events
«  the French Professional Soccer League 1, for four seasons (2016/2017 to 2019/2020) the two premium lots for an aggregate amount
of €2,160 million {or £540 million per season), and
+ the Champions League for three seasons {2015/2016 to 2017/2018)

On January 14, 2014, Canal+ Group was awarded broadcasting rights for the National French Rugby Championship “TOP 14" for five seasons
(2014/2015 to 2018/2019) These exclusive nights related to all of the “TOP 14" matches across all media and all terntories i which the
Canal+ Group cperates On July 30, 2014, the French Cempetition Authonty suspended the agreement between Canal+ Group and the
National Rugby League as from the 2015/2016 season and ruled that a new call for tenders should be organized for the four seasons
{2015/2016 to 2018/2019} Following to this call for tenders camed out in December 2014 and January 20115, Canal+ Group secured
exclusive rights related to all of the "TOP 14" matches These nights, which include all seven games on each match day, play-off games, as
well as the Jour de Augby show, cover seasons 2015/2016 to 2018/2019

Acquisittons by Canal+ Overseas

On February 13, 2014, following approval from the French Competition Authonty, Canal+ Overseas completed its acquisition of a 5%
interest in Mediaserv, an overseas telecom operator

On Octaber 28, 2014, Canal+ Overseas acquired a majority interest in Thema, a company specializing in the distribution of general, thematic
and ethnic telewsion channels in France and abroad Among other channels, Thema broadcasts the African fiction TV channel Nollywood

Launch of the A+ channel

On October 24, the A+ channel officially taunched in Africa and will be broadcast in more than 20 countries 1n West and Central Afnica
through Canalsat A+ s positioning rtself as “the great African channel”, seeking to bring together a wide audience and offering nich, varied
and high quahity programming

TNT license r Congo

On December 12, 2014, Canal+ signed an operating agreement (n relation to cable television services on digital terrestnial television in the
Republic of Congo, where the company already offers television services via satellite

TVN interest in Poland

On October 16, 2014, Canal+ Group and {11 Group announced that they were jointly considenng strategic options in relation to their 51% interest
in TVN (FTA broadcaster in Poland}

Success at the box office for Non-Stop and Paddington

In March 2014, Nen-Stop, directed by Jaume Collet-Serra and starring Liam Neeson and Julianne Moore, arrived in first place at the U S
weekend box office with $56 mullion in revenue after i first operating weskend This success was largely confirmed wherever the film was
subsequently released, including in France, Germany and China where 1t also dominated 1ts competitors during is release To date, the film
has generated $236 milion in worldwide revenue

Since the end of November 2014, Paddington, produced by David Heyman {the Harry Potter saga, Grawity }and featuring Hugh Bonneville
and Nicole Kidman has captivated audiences around the world Paddington is the nggest success for a Studiocanal film in the United
Kingdom, where it eamed £34 million in revenue 1n eight weeks In France, 1t soid 2 8 milhion tickets and 1t 1s off to a great start tn the United
States where it 15 distributed by the Weinsten Company As of February 4, 2015, Paddington had exceeded $200 million in worldwide
revenues, a record for a family film produced by an independent studio

TV Series Development

In 2014, Studiocanal produced 57 hours of senes television through its subsidiaries Red Production Company and Tandem Red produced
season 4 of Scott and Batley, and the new senes Happy Valley, Prey and The Driver all of which broke audience and satisfaction records in
the United Kingdom when broadcast Tandem produced Season 2 of Crossing Lines, the cnime series with an international cast and the
Spotiess series, an ariginal Canal+ creation
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New partnerships entered into by Studiocanal

In May 2014, Canal+ and Studiocana! joined forces with writers and creators Seren Svesstrup and Adam Price and producer and CEQ Meta
Lowise Foldager to create the production company SAM Productions ApS SAM will work with the strongest Scandinavian creative talents to
produce TV-series for the international market Studiocanal joined SAM as a partner and will serve as the company's distnibutor

In September 2014, Studiocanal and The Picture Company - Andrew Rona and Alex Heineman’s new production company - announced they
had entered into a development and production agreement The first collaboratton 1s the development of the adaptation of Tom Wood's
Victar the Assassin book franchise to be directed by Pierre Morel In the past, the two producers, whtle at Silver Pictures, produced several
hit action films for Studiocanal including Witheut Identity and Nen-Stop as well as the soon-to-be released The Gunman, also directed by
Pierre More

In September 2014, Grand Electric, the new production company created by Eric Newman, and Studiocanal entered into an agreement for
the acquisition, development and production of feature films for the European and American markets Under this agreement, Studiocanal
will be both a creative and financial partner, will handle international sales and will distribute the new Grand Electnc films n its territories

On September 4, 2014, Studwecanal and Svensk Filmindustri entered into a strategic partnership to distrbute all Studiocanal films acress the
Nordic market (Sweden, Narway, Denmark and Finland) and co-produce films and TV-series This strateg:c partnership capitalizes upon Nordic
titles and talents and targets the international market Svensk Filmindustri will be responsible for the Nordic market and Studiocanal will be
responsible for intemational distribution

On October 8, 2014, Studiocanal extended 1ts multi-year SVOD agreement with Amazon 1n the United Kingdom and Germany Amazon will have
the exclusive first pay-TV nghts to all Studiocanal theatrical titles in both territories, as well as hundreds of library titles added to its service

1.1.6 Universal Music Group (UMG)

Acquisition of Eagle Rock Entertainment Group Limsted

On Apnil 8, 2014, UMG acquired the entire 1ssued share capital of Eagle Rock Entertainment Group Limited, an independent producer and
distributor of music films and programming for DVD, television and digital media

Sale of interest in Beats

On August 1, 2014, UMG sold its interest in Beats to Apple for a net amount of €250 million {of which €221 mullion was received dunng the
period) The net gain on sale, recorded as other income In the Statement of Earmings, amounted to €179 million

Sale of Parlophone Label Group

On July 1, 2013, Vivend: sold Parlophone Label Group to Warmer Music Group for a consideration of €591 milon The arbitration process in
respect of contractual restatements ta Parlophone Label Group's sale price completed at the end of November 2014 and UMG was awarded
a further €30 million As a result, this restatement took the total amount received fram Wamer Music Group in respect of this sale to
€621 million

New agreements entered inte with Havas

Havas and Unversal Music Group {UMG) announced the following agreements
- on September 29, 2014 digital brand ntegrations in select UMG music videos by using Mirnad's Academy Award-winning video
technology, and
on January 5, 2015 formation of Global Music Data Alliance {GMDA) related to consumer's data

11.7 Vivend: Village

Vivend Village consists of the foilowing companies as of December 31, 2014 Vivend: Ticketing (with See Tickets and Digitick), Watchever
and Wengo

Watchever

In Germany, since the start of the second half of 2014, Vivend: ts carrying out a transformation plan at Watchever to reduce costs while at
the same time exploring new content and platform monetization models An exceptional provisian of €44 million was recorded as of June
30, 2014, reduced by £18 million
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1.1.8 Sale of Activision Blizzard shares

In accordance with the agreements entered into on Octeber 11, 2013, the 83 million Activision Blizzard shares retained by Vivend) were
subject to a two-tiered lock-up provision

* from October 11, 2013 until Apnl 9, 2014, Vivend: cannot sell, transfer, hedge or otherwise dispose of any Activision Bhzzard
shares directly or indirectly, from Apnl 10, until July 9, 2014, Vivendi can seli Activision Blizzard shares provided they constitute no
more than the fesser of (1) 50% of Vivendi’s 83 million remaining shares and {u) 9% of the outstanding shares of Activisign
Blizzard, and

o from July 10, 2014 untit January 7, 2015, Vivend: was subject to another lock-up provision, as from January 7, 2015, Vivendi may
sell iis remaining Activrsion Blizzard shares without restriction

Considering the initial intention of Vivendi Management to sell these shares at the end of the lock-up periods If market conditions were
favorable, the 83 million Activision Blizzard shares were classified as “Assets held for sale”

On May 22, 2014, Vivend: sold a first tranche of 41 5 million Activision Blizzard shares for $852 mullion (€623 mitlion) The €84 mullion capital
gan 1s presented in ' Earnings from discontinued operations™ Taking into account the capital gain of €123 million recorded in 2013, the
capital gain realized by Vivend: with respect to this first tranche of Activision Blizzard shares amounted to €207 million

As of December 31, 2014, the remaning interest of 415 million Actvision Blizzard shares, valued at $836 million (€689 mllion) was
reclassified in “available-for-sale secunties” as Vivendi Management has decided not to sell this interest in the tmmediate future As of
December 31, 2014, the unrealized caputal gain with respect to this interest amounted to €273 million {before taxes), directly recognized in

equity
1.1.9 Other

Early redemption of bonds

Following receipt of the cash proceeds from the sale of SFR on November 27, 2014, in order to enhance the structure of its financiat position
statement, Vivendi allocated a portion of the sale proceeds to the early redemption of all eight tranches of its euro and US dollar
denominated bonds that contamned a make-whole option, representing an aggregate principal amount of €4 25 billion and $0 6 biflion In
addition, Vivend: cancelled all of its existing bank credit facilities for €7 1 billion and set up a new €2 billion bank credit facility, maturing in
five years (2019), with two one-year renewal options Please refer to Section 5

Distribution to shareholders

On June 30, 2014, Vivendi SA pard an ordinary €1 per share to its shareholders, from additional paid-in caprtal for an aggregate amount of
£1,348 miltion, considered as a return of capital distribution to shareholders

1 2 Subsequent events

The significant events that occurred between December 31, 2014 and February 11, 2015 {the date of the Management Board meeting that
approved Vivendi's Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014) were as follows

«  On January 18, 2015, followng a call for tenders carned out by the National Rugby League, Canal+ Group secured exclusive nights
related to all of the National French Rugby Championship’s “TOP 14" matches These rights, which include all seven games on
each match day, play-off games, as well as the Jour de Rugby show, cover the seasons 2015-2016 to 2018-2019 please refer to
Section 115, and

+ In February 2015, Vivend: announced the creation of Vivend: Contents, managed by Mr Rodolphe Belmer, Chief Executive Officer
of Canal+ Group Vivend Contents will be in charge of the design, leadership and development of new content suppsrt for music
and visual image, and will manage related investments
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2 Earnings analysis

Prelimnary comments

Frday February 27 2015

in comphance with IFRS 5, GVT (as from the third quarter of 2014), SFR {as from the first quarter of 2014} as well as Maroc Telecom group and
Activision Blizzard (as from the second quarter of 2013) have been reported i Vivend:'s Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued
operations Vivendi deconsohidated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Actvision Bhizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and

October 11, 2013, respectively

In practice, mcome and charges from these four businesses have been reported as follows

- their contribution until the effective divestiture, if any, to each line of Vivendi's Cansolidated Statement of Earmings {before non-
controffing interests) has been reported on the iine "Earnings from discontinued operations”,

- naccordance with IFRS 5, these adjustments have been applied to all periods presented to ensure consistency of informaton, and

- their share of net income has been excluded from Vivend:'s adjusted net mcome

The adjustments to previously published data are presented n Appendix 2 to the Financial Report and in Note 31 to the Consolidated

financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014

2 1 Consolidated Statement of Earnings and Adjusted Statement of

AD.JUSTED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

Earnings
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS
Revenues
Cost of revenues

Marg:n from operations

Selling general and administrative expenses extluding
amaruzation of ntangible assats acquwad through business
combingtions

Rastructunng charges and other operating chargas ang
mncame

Amortizattan of intangible assets acquired through business
combinahons

Impairment lossas on intangible assets acquired through
business comnations

Qther mcome

Other chargss

EBIT

incoma from equity affiliates

Intarest

tncome from invesiments

QOther financsal income

Other financial charges

Earmings fram continuing op
tor income taxes
Prowisian for income taxes
Earmings from continuing operations
Earnings from discantinued operations
Earmings
Of which
Earmings attnbutayle to Vivends SA shareawners
continuing operations
discontinued operations

befors pr

Nan-controlling interests

Earnings atinibutable to Vivendi SA shareowners per
share - basic {1 euros}

Earnings stinibutabls to Vivends SA shareowners per
share - diluted {(in enras)

In mullions of euros, except per share amounts

Year ended Jecamber 31 Year ended December 31

2014 2013 la) 2014 2013 {al
10,089 10,252 10,089 10.252
{6121} {6 097 {6121} {6 087)
3968 11% 3968 4155
[F3:121] (3008) {za11) {3008)

{158} (192) (158) {182}

{342 {350
92} (6
w3 8
(30 {50} _—

136 637 999 955
(18} 21} {18) [rl]
{96} {266} {38) 1266}

3 66 k] 66
19 13

{751 {300]

{107} 129 888 734

{130} 17 (200 170}

{231} 146

5262 2633 .

5025 2778 688 564
4,784 1967 526 454
{290} 43

5034 1524

281 B2 62 110
352 148 046 033
351 147 046 0.34

Revenues

Cost of revenues

Margn from operations

Selling general ard edministrative expanses extluding
amortizatich of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations

Restructuring charges and other operating charges and
ncome

EBITA

Income from equity affilates
Interest

Income from invesiments

Adjusted earnings from continuing operations before

provision for imcome taxes
Provision for incoma taxes

Adjusted net incomae before non-controfhng interests
OFf wihich
Adjusted net income

Mon controlltng interests

Adjusted net income per share - bastc (in suros)

Adjusted net mcome per share - diluted (in evros)

a Data published with respect to the year 2013 has been adjusted following the application of IFRS 5 {please refer to the prefiminary

comment above)
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2 2 Earnings review

Earnings attnibutable to Vivendi SA shareowners analysis

In 2014, sarmings sttnibutahle to Vivend) SA shareowners amounted to £4,744 million (or €3 52 per share), compared to €1,957 mullion
{or €1 48 per share) in 2013, a €2,777 million increase {x2 4) This change notably included the capital gains on the divestitures of SFR
{€2,378 million), Maroc Telecom {€786 million), Beats (€179 million} and half of the remaining interest n Activision Blizzard (€84 mthon), as
well as conversely, premium paid {642 miilion) on the early redemption of bonds following the sale of SFR

Earnings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners for continuing operations, after non-controlling interests (Canal+ Group,
Universal Music Group and Vivendi Village, as well as Corporate) was negative at £290 million in 2014, compared to a €43 million gain in
2013, an unfavorable change of £333 million The €39 million increase in EBIT, notably included the capital gain on the divestiture of Beats
(€179 million), as well as the decrease in interest expense (+£170 milkion) more than offset by the increase in premium paid on the early
redempbion of bonds (€642 million 1in 2014 following the safe of SFR, compared to €182 million in 2013 following the sale of 88% of the
interest in Activision Blizzard) and by the income tax expense (€147 m/lion}

Earmings attnbutable to Vivendi SA shareowners for discontinued operations, after non-coatrolling interest (SFR, Maroc
Telecom, Activision Blizzard, and GVT), amounted to €5,034 million in 2014, compared to £1,924 midlion n 2013, a €3,110 million increase In
2014, the amount notably included the capital gains on the divestitures of SFR (€2,378 million} and Maroc Telecom (€786 million) as well as
the capital gain on the divestiture of half of the remaiming interest in Activision Blizzard (€84 mithon) In 2013, the amount notahly included
the capital gain on the sale of 88% of the nterest in Activision Blizzard (€2,915 milhon), as well as, conversely, the impairment of SFR's
goodwili {-€2,431 million}

Adjusted net income analysis

In 2014, adjusted net income was €626 million {or €0 46 per share®) compared to €454 mithon w 2013 (ED 34 per share), a €172 million
Increase (+37 9%) As a reminder, according to the application of IFRS 5 to SFR, Maroc Telecom, Activision Blizzard, and GVT, the Adjusted
Statement of Eamnings presents the results of Canal+ Group, Universal Music Group {UMG) and Vivendi Village's activities, as well as
Corporate costs The increase in adjusted net income notably resulted from

s adecrease In interest expense {+£170 miilon),

e anincrease in EBITA (+£44 million},

s adecreasa In the share of adjusted net income attributable to nan-controlling nterests {(+€48 million), and

*  adecrease in income from eguity affiliates (+€3 million),

partially offset by
«  adecrease in income from investments {-€63 mullion), and
*  anincrease in income tax expense (-€30 mithion)

Detaifed analysis of the main items from the Statement of Earnings

Revenues were €10,089 million, compared to €10,252 millien in 2013 {-16%, or -14% at constant currency and permeter) For a
breakdown of revenues by business segment, please refer to Section 4 of this Financiat Report

Cost of revenues amounted to €6,121 milfion, compared to £6,097 million in 2013
Margin from operations decreased by €187 million to £3,968 million, compared to €4,155 million in 2013{-4 5%}

Selling, general and administrative expenses, excluding the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations,
amounted to €2,811 mithon, compared to €3,008 mithion m 2013, a €197 mdlion decrease {-6 5%)

Depreciation and amortization of tangible and intangible assets are included either in the cost of revenues or 1n salling, general and
administrative expenses Depreciation and amortization, excluding amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations, were
stable at €307 mullion {compared to €310 million m 2013, and were notably retated to Canal+ Group’s set-top boxes, as well as Studiocanal's
catalogs, films, and television programs

3 For the detarls of adwsted net income per share please refer to Appendix 1 to this Financial Report

* Constant perimeter reflects the following changes made in the consohdation scope
at Canals Group it excludes the impact i1 2014 of the acquisitions of Red Froduction Company (November 22 2013} of Mediaserv {February 13 2014) and of Thema
{October 28 2014) and

- atUMG rtexcludes the impacts in 2013 of aperating the Parlophone Label Group repertowe
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EBITA was €999 million, compared to €355 million in 2013, a €44 mutlon ncrease (+46%) At constant currency, EBITA increased by
€46 million (+4 8%) At constant currency and penmeter, EBITA increased by €724 milion (+8 1%} This change primanty reflected the
increase m Universal Music Group’s EBITA (+€58 mullion at constant currency), notably due to the decrease in restructuning and integration
costs (-€78 million) For a breakdown of EBITA by business segment, please refer to Section 4 of this Financial Report

Restructuring charges and other operating charges and income amounted to a net charge of €158 million {compared to a net charge of
€192 mull:on i 2013) They notably included restructuring charges for €104 million, a €12 million decrease compared to 2013, the decrease
in UMG's restructuring charges for €64 million was offset by the €44 mullion provision recorded as of June 30, 2014 with respect to
Watchever's transfermation plan in Germany, reduced by €18 million

EBIT was €736 million, compared to €637 millon in 2013, a £99 million increase (+15 6%) This amount included

o amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations for €344 million, compared to €350 million i 2013, a
€6 million decrease,

e impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations for €92 million, compared to €6 miflion 0 2013 In
2014, they related to goodwill attnbutable to Digstick {€43 million) and Wengo (€48 million), and

«  other charges and tncome for €173 mithon of net income and pnmarily included the captal gatn on the sale of UMG’s interest in
Beats (E179 million} In 2013, other charges and income were a net income of €38 million and included the gain related to the
dilution of Universal Music Group’s interest dilution in Vevo (€18 million}

Income from equirty affiliates amounted to €18 million, compared ta €21 midlion in 2013

Interest was an expense of £96 mitlian, compared to €266 miflion in 2013, a €170 million decrease {-64 1%)

In 2014, nterest expense on borrowings amounted to €283 million, compared to €494 muthion in 2013 This €211 million decrease was
attributable for (1} €167 million, to the decrease in the average outstanding borrowings to €9 7 billion in 2014 {compared to £15 3 billion In
2013) and (1) €44 millan, to the decrease In the average Interest rate an borrowings to 2 94% 1n 2014 (compared to 3 22% in 2013) The
early redemption of bonds for an aggregate amount of €3 bilion carmed out in October and November 2013 following the sale of 88% of the
mterest In Activision Blizzard, as well as the redemption, at matunty, of other bonds for €200 millien in October 2013 and €894 million in
January 2014, resulted in 3 £191 million reduction n interest compared to 2013 The bend redemptions for €4 7 bullion in December 2014
following to the sale of SFR will only have an impact in 2015, interest expense on remaining bonds (€1,950 million as of December 31, 2014}
amounted to €61 millton In 2014, similar to 2013

Moreover, as a result of the apphcation of IFRS 5 to GVT and SFR. interest expense was reportad net of interests received by Vivendi SA on
the financings granted to SFR and GVT, at market conditions, for €172 miflion 1n 2014 (compared to €222 mullion in 2013)

Interest income earned on cash and cash equivalents amounted to €15 million in 2014, compared to €8 midlion in 2013 This change was
related to the increase in average cash and cash equivalents ta €2 1 tilhion in 2014 (compared to €0 6 billion in 2013}, which reflected the
impact of the sales of businesses

For a breakdown of the impact of the sales camed out in 2014 on Vivend:'s treasury, please refer to Section 5 of this Financia! Report

Income from investments amounted to €3 million, compared to €66 million 1n 2013 [t included interest income and dividends receved
from uncansolidated companies In 2013, 1t included interest income paid by PLG for €10 million and the dividend paid by Beats to UMG for
€54 mill:on

Other financial charges and income were a net charge of €732 million, compared to a net charge of €287 million in 2013, a €445 million
increase In 2014, they mainly included the premium paid (€642 mithon) with respect to the early redemption of the bonds following the sale
of SFR In 2013, they mainly included the premium paid (€182 million) with respect to the early redemption of honds following the sale of
88% of the interest in Activision Blizzard Please refer to Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31,
2014

Eamings from continuing operations before provision for income taxes amounted to a €107 million loss, compared to & €129 million
gamn n 2013, an unfavorable change of £236 million

Inceme taxes reported to adjusted net income was a net charge of €200 million, compared to €170 milhon in 2013, a £30 million
increase (+17 7%) In 2013, income tax expense included certain non-recurring items (+€£149 million), which reflected the change, during
2013, 1o the assessment of nsks related to previous years’ income taxes The effective tax rate reported to adjusted net income was at
22 0% 1n 2014 {compared to 22 5% n 2013)

In addition, provision for income taxes was a net charge of €130 million, compared to a net gain of €17 million 10 2013 In addition to the
non-recurnng items, which explain the increase in income taxes reported to adjusted net income, this €147 mullion unfavorable impact
reflected the change in tax savings related to Vivendi SA’s Tax Group System, which was a €110 million income n 2014, compared to a
€254 mitlion income n 2013 This change was notably attributable to the entry of Canal+ France in Vivendi SA's Tax Group System in 2013
{an income of €258 million, of which €129 million related to current tax savings realized in 2013 and €129 millwon related to deferred tax
savings expected in 2014} The exit of SFR from Vivendi SA’s Tax Group System was anticipated at the end of 2013, hence had no impact on
tax savings for 2014
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Earmings from discortinued operations (hefore non-controlling interests) amounted to £€5,262 millon, compared to €2,633 million i
2013 They primartly included

« with respect to SFR, the capital gam on its sale on November 27, 2014 {2,378 mitlon, after taxes) as well as net eamings until
the effective divestiture date (€1,299 million, before non-controiling miterests), which compnsed the discontinuation® of the
amortization of tangible and tangible assets since Apnit 1, 2014 {impact of +£1,088 million for the period from April 1 to
November 27, 2014) In 2013, SFR s net eamings were -€2,004 million, after a -€2,431 miltion loss refated to the goodwill
impairment,

e with respect to GVT, net earnings of €304 million n 2014, compared to €89 million 1n 2013 GVT's net eamings comprised the
discontinuation of the amartization of tangible and intangible assets since September 1, 2014, n compliance with [FRS 5 {impact
of +£116 million for the period),

« with respect to Maroc Telecom group, the capital gain on its sale on May 14, 2014 (€786 million) as well as net eamings untd the
effective divestiture date (€407 million, before non-contralling interests), which comprised the discontinuation of amortization of
tangible and intangible assets since July 1, 2013, in compliance with IFRS 5 (impact of +£181 million for 2014, compared to
+£245 million for 2013} In 2013, Maroc Telecom group's net earnings were €782 million, before non-controlling interests and
before deferred taxes related to its expected sale (-€86 million), and

*  with respect to Actvision Blizzard, the caprtal gain on the divestiture of 41 5 million Activision Blizzard shares on May 22, 2014
(€84 millron) In 2013, it notably included the capital gain on the sale of 88% of the interest in Activision Blizzard on October 11,
2013 {€2,915 mllion} and Activision Blizzard's net eamings until the effective date of divestiture {€692 million, before non-
controlling interests)

Please refer to Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014

Eamings attnbutable to non-controtling interests amounted to €281 million, compared ta €812 million 1 2013, a €531 mullion decrease
(-65 4%} This change was primarly attributable to the sale of Activision Blizzard on October 11, 2013 {-6269 million) and the sale of Maroc
Telecom group on May 14, 2014 {-€222 million} This change also included a favorable impact for Canal+ Group related to the acquisition of
non-cantrolhing interests on November 5, 2013 {-€75 million) partially offset by the increase in eamings of nc+ in Poland (+£27 milhon)

Adjusted net income attributable to ron-controlling interests amounted to €62 million, compared to €110 million in 2013, a
€48 million decrease resulting from the changes in Canal+ Group’s non-controlling interest

The reconethation of sarnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners to adjusted net income 15 further described 1n Appendix 1
to this Financial Report In 2014, this reconctl:ation primanly included earnings from discontinued operations {+€5,034 million, after non-
contra!ling interests) The reconciliation also included the premium paid and other costs related to the early redemptions of the bonds
{-€698 million), the capitat gain on the sale of Beats (+€179 million) as well as the amortization and impairment of intangible assets acquired
through business combinations {-€327 million, after taxes) In 2013, this reconciliation primarnily included earnings from discontinued
operations (+€1,924 million, after non-controlling interests} offset by the amortization and impairment of ntangible assets acquired through
business combinations (-€246 million, after taxes), as well as the premsum paid and other costs related to the early redemptions of bends
{-€202 million)

$When an operation 1s discontinued IFAS 5 requires the discontimuation of the amortization of the aperation s tangible and intangtble assets Therefore for SFR 1eported as a
discontinved operation since March 31 2014 Vivend: discontinued the smartization of tangtble and intangible assets as from the second quarter of 2014
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2 3 QOutlook for 2015

Prehmtnary comments The outiook presented below regarding revenues, income from gperations, income from operations margin rates,
adusted net income as well as distnibutions and share repurchases 1s based on data, assumptions, and estimates considered as reasonable
by Vivendr Management They are subject to change or modification due to uncertainties related in particular to the economic, financial,
competitive and/or regulatory environment as well as the impaet of certain transactions, if any In addition, the matenalization of certain
risks descnbed in Section 6 of this report could have an impact on the group’s operations and its abilty to achigve its outlook Finally,
Vivends considers that the non-GAAF measures, income from operations, income from operations margin rates, and adjusted net income are
refevant indicators of the group’s operating and financial performance

Vivendr expects a shight increase in revenues thanks to the growth of UMG's streaming and subscription activities and Canal+ Group's
international operations 2015 income from operations margin should be close to 2014 level Vivend: also expects an increase in its adjusted
net income of approximately 10%, mainly thanks to lower restructuring charges and decrease in interest expenses

In addition, 1t will be proposed to the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting to be held on Apnl 17, 2015 that an erdinary dividend of €1 be paid with
respect to 20145 compnising €0 20 relative to the Group's business performance and a €0 80 return to shareholders as a result of the
disposals of assets

The objective 15 to maintan this distribution level for the fiscal years 2015 and 2016, representing an additional return to shareholders of
€2 hithon

In addition to this distnbution, a share repurchase program Is planned to be launched, within the legai hmit of 10% of the share capital, for
approxtmately €2 7 billion 0 accordance with the market regulations on share repurchases The program will run over a period of 18 months

In total, the raturn to shareholders could reach approximately €5 7 billion by mid-2017 in addition to the €1 3 billion paid in 2014

® With an ex-dhstibutron date of Apni 21 2015 and a payment date of April 23, 2015

Financeal Report and Audited Consohdated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 Vivendi /17




Friday February 27, 2015

3 Cash flow from operations analysis

Preliminary comments

*  The non-GAAP measures cash flow from operations (CFFO), cash flow from operations before capital expenditures (CFFO before capex,
net), and cash flow from operations after interest and taxes (CFAIT) should be considered in addition to, and not as substitutes for,
other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance as presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the refated
notes or as described 1 the Financial Report, and Vivendr considers that they are relevant indicators of the group’s operating and
financial parformance

s [n comphance with IFRS 5, GVT (as from the third guarter of 2014), SFA [(as from the first quarter of 2014) as well as Marac Telecom
group and Actwision Blizzard (as from the second quarter of 2013) have been reported as discontinued operations Vivend:
daeconsolidated SFA, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11, 2013,
respectively

In practice, incomne and charges from these four businesses have been reported as follows

their contribution until the effective sale, If any, to each line of Vivend:'s Consohdated Statement of Cash Flows has been grouped
under the hine "Cash flows from discontinued operations”,

in accordance with IFRS 5, these adjustments have been apphed to all penods presented to ensure consistency of information, and

their cash flow from operations (CFFO), cash flow from opsrations before capital expenditures (CFFQ before capex, net) and cash
flow from operations after interest and mcame taxes (CFAIT) have been excluded from Vivend:’s CFFO, CFFQ before capex, net and
CFAIT

In 2014, cash flow from cperations {CFFO) generated by busmess segments was €843 million {compared to €894 million 1n 2013}, a
€51 million decrease (-5 8%) Capital expenditures remained stable at €243 milhon {compared to €245 million 1n 2013) and included the
acquisition of set-top boxes by Canak+ Group for €115 million (compared to €133 millior 1in 2013) Moreover, in 2013, CFFO included
dividends (€54 million} paid by Beats, sold in August 2014 Excluding dividends received and capital expenditures, net cash provided by
operating activities before income tax paid amounted to €1,079 million (compared ta £1,082 mition in 2013)

In 2014, cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid {CFAIT} was €421 million (compared to €503 mullion 1n 2013}, a
€82 million decrease

Cash payments related to financial activities amaounted to €702 million {compared to €596 million in 2013), 3 €106 mullion increase In 2014,
they pnmarily included the premium paid (€642 million) related to the early redemption of bonds following the sale of SFR In 2013, they
mainly included the premium paid (€182 million} related to the early redemption of bonds following the sale of 88% of the interest in
Actwision Blizzard Moreover, cash paymenis related to financial activities mcluded nterest paid, net for €36 million {compared to
€266 mullion i 2013), a decrease of €170 msltion, and the results on foreign exchange nisk hedging {a €47 mithon gam in 2014, compared to
a €142 mullion loss i 2013}

Cash flows related to income taxes were made up of a £280 million inflow 1n 2014, compared with €205 milhon 1n 2013 These amounts
notably included refunds recewved by Vivend: SA related to previous years (€366 million in 2014 with respect to 2011 Consoiidated Global
Profit Tax System and £201 million received in 2013 with respect to 2012 Vivend: SA's Tax Group System} In 2013, the amount of taxes paid
included the additional contribution of 3% on the dividend paid by Vivendi SA (€40 millian)
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{in mullions of euros}

Revenues

Operating expenses excluding depreciation and amortization

EBITDA

Restrutturing charges paid

Content investments, net

of which film and tefewision rights net at Canal+ Group

Acquisition of film and talewision nghts
Consumption of film and television nghts

of which sports nights nat at Canal+ Group
Acqusition of sports rights
Consumption of sports nghts

of which payments to artists and repertoire owners, net at UMG

Payments to artists and repertowe owners
Recoupment of advances and other movements

Neutralization of change i provisions inctuded 1n cperating expenses

Other cash operating items
Other changes in net working tapital

Net cash provided by operating activitias before incoms tax paid

Dividends recewved from equity affiliates
Dividends received from unconsolidated compantes

Cash flow from operatigns, before capital expenditures, net {CFFQ hefore capax, net

Capital expenditures net {capex, net)
h flow from rati FFQ
Interest paid net
Other cash Hems related to financiak activities
of which premium pa:d on early bonds redemption
gamns/fiosses) en currency transactions
Financial activities cash paymants

Payment recerved from the French State Treasury as part of the Vivendi SA's French Tax Group

and Consaiidated Global Profit Tax Systems
Ozher taxes paid
Incoma tax (pardi/received, net

Cash flow from oparations after interest and mcome tax peid {CFAIT)

na not applicable

(b}

(c}
{d)
(d)
(e}

{f
{f)

{c

Friday February 27,2015

Year ended December 31

2014 2013 1a) % Change
10089 10252 -16%
18 646) [8797) +17%

1443 1455 8%
{64) (105} +202%
19 (t48) na

{604) {738) +181%
713 743 47%
109 5 X197

{818} (714) -144%
801 759 +55%
fi7! 45 na

{554} {598) +75%
813 561 +92%
59 136) na
(154} (78) -97 9%
(22} (78) +723%
{123} 36 na

1079 1.082 -02%

4 3 +323%
3 54 96 1%

1,085 1,139 -4 7%
{243} (245) +09%
843 §94 -58%
{96} (266) +6541%
{605} (330 B84 1%

{642} {182) x33
47 {142} na

{702} {596) -17 8%
366 201 +82 1%
{86} 4 na
280 265 +36 6%
an 503 -16 4%

a Data pubhished with respect to fiscal year 2013 has been adjusted following the appiication of {FRS 5 {please refer to the preliminary

comments above)

b EBITDA, a non-GAAP measure, 1s described in Section 4 of this Financial Report

¢ As presented in net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations in the Financial Net Debt changes table (please refer

to Section 5 3)

d As presented in net cash provided by/f{used for} investing activities of continuing operations In the Financial Net Debt changes table

{please refer to Section 5 3}

e Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets as
presented in the investing activities of continuing operations in the Financial Net Debt changes table |please refer to Section 53)

f  As presented in net cash provided by/{used for) financial activities of continuing operations in the Financial Net Debt changes table

{please refer to Section 5 3}
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4 Business segment performance analysis

Preluminary comments

Vivend: Management evaluates the performance of Vivendi's business segments and allocates the necessary resources to them based
on gertain operating performance indicators, notably the non-GAAP measures EBITA (Adusted Earmngs Before Interest and Income
Taxes), and income from operations

The difference between EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations, the
impairment of goodwill and other intangibles acquired through busmess combinations, and EBIT's “other charges™ and “other income”
as defined in Note 1 2 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014

As defined by Vivendi, income from operations 1s calculated as EBITA as presented n the Adiusted Statemant of Earnings, before
share-based compensation costs related to equity-settled plans, and special items due to thewr unusual nature or particular
significance {please refer to Appendix 1 to this Financial Report)

Moregver, 1t should be noted that other comparnies may defina and calculate EBITA, and income from operations differently from
Vivends, thereby affecting comparability

In comphiance with IFRS 5, GVT (as from the third guarter of 2014}, SFR (as from the first quarter of 2014) as well as Maroc Telecom
group and Activision Blizzard {as from the second quarter of 2013) have been reported as discontinued operations In practice, income
and charges from these four businesses have been reported as follows

- their contribution until the effective divestiture, if any, to each line of Vivend's Consolidated Statement of Earnings {before non-
controlfing interests) has been reported on the line “Earnings from discontinued opsrations”,

- in accordance with IFRS 5, these adjustments have been applied to all periods presented to ensure consistency of information,
and

their share of net income has been excluded from Vivendr's adjusted net income

Vivend: deconsolidated SFA, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Bhizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and Octobar 11,
2013, respectively
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41 Revenues, EBITA and cash flow from operations by business segment

{in mllions of surps)

Ravenues

Canal+ Group

Unwersal Music Group

Vivend Village

Elmnation of intersegment transactions

Tatal Vivends

EBITA

Canal+ Group
Unwersal Music Group
Vivend Village
Corporate

Total Vivends

{n millions of euros)

Cash flow from gperations, before capital expenditures, net (CFFQ bafore capex, net)

Canal+ Group
Unwversal Music Group
Vivendi Village
Carporate

Total Vivendi

Cash flow from operationg (CFFQ)
Canak Group

Universal Music Group

Vivend: Village

Corporate

Total Vivend

YYear ended December 31,
% Change at
% Change at constant rate and
2014 2013 % Change constant rate perimeter (a)
5,456 5311 +2 7% 12 6% 4%
4557 4 886 6 7% -56% 38%
96 Al
(20) {16}

10,089 10252 -1 6% -1 1% -14%
583 61 4 7% 48% 63%
965 a1 +107% +113% +202%
(79) {80)

70) 187
999 955 +1 6% +48% +81%
Year ended December 31
% Change at
2014 2013 % Change constan! rate
722 689 + 6%
an 611 -228%
(38) {72)
{69) {89)
1085 XER EY
53 478 +11% +105%
425 585 273% -278%
(LL)] (B0}
{69) {89)
843 894 -5 8% -6 4%
——

a Constant perimeter reflects the following changes made in the consehidation scope

- at Canal+ Group 1t excludes the impacts in 2014 of the acquisitions of Red Production Company {on November 22, 2013) of
Mediaserv {on February 13, 2014} and of Thema {on October 28, 2014}, and

- at UMG it excludes the impacts in 2013 of operating the Parlophone Label Group repertoire
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4 2 Comments on the operating performance of business segments

421 Canal+ Group

Year ended December 31,
% Change at
% Change at constant rate and

{sn millions of euros} 2014 2013 % Change constant rate penimeter {a)
Pay-TV in Mainland France 3.454 3,544 -2 6% -2 6% -26%
Free-to-ar TV in Mainland France 196 172 +14 8% +148% +14 8%
Intemational Pay TV 12713 1122 +135% +134% +6 6%
Studtocanal 533 473 +12 5% +11 6% +2 8%
Total Revenues 5.456 531 +2 T% +2 6% +0 4%
Income from operstions 618 660 6 4% -66% -8 6%
income from operations’ margun 113% 124%
Charges related to
equity-settled share based compensation plans {3 12}
Other special items excluded from income from operations
{including transition and restructunng costs) (32} (37}
EBITA 583 611 -4 7% -48% -6.3%
EBITA margin 107% 115%
Cash flow from operations {CFF0) 51 ar8 «111% +109%
Canai+ Group's Pay-TV
Indwidual subscribers {in thousands}
Mainland France 6062 6,091 -9
International 4986 4352 +H3

Poland 2146 2137 &1

Overseas 49 485 +§

Africa 1,552 1,083 +169

Vietnam 794 587 +207
Total Canal+ Group 11,048 10,443 +605
Subscriptions (in thousands)
Mainland France (b) 9,463 9,534 -1
Intemational 5 B36 5137 +749
Total Canal+ Group 15349 146N +678
Mainland France Pay-TV
Chum per individual subscriber with commutment 145% 14 9% -04pt
Net ARPU in euros per individual subscnber with commitment LE3I] 442 15%
Maunt nce Freg-tg-ew TV's rat har
08 33% 12% +21pt
D17 12% 13% 01pt
»Téle 09% 08% + 1 pt
Total 5 4% 53% +01pt

a  Constant penmeter excludes the impacts in 2014 of the acquisitions of Red Production Company {on November 22, 2013), of Medtaserv

{on February 13, 2014} and of Thema (on October 78, 2014)
b Includes individual and collective subscriptions with commitment and without commitment (Canal+, Canalsat and Canalplay)

¢ Source Médiamétne Population four years and older
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Revenues and EBITA
Canak+ Group's revenues amounted to €5,456 milhian, a 2 7% increase compared to 2013 (+0 4% at constant penmeter and currency)

At the end of December 2014, Canak+ Group had a total of 15 3 mullion subscriptions, an increase of 678,000 year-on-year, notably thanks to
strong performance in Africa and Vietnam, as wel! as the growth in mainland France of Canalplay, 1ts subscription video on demand offer
For the first time, the total number of individual subsenbers exceeds 11 million, compared to 10 4 million at the end of 2013

Revenues from pay-TV operations n mainland France were impacted by the higher VAT rate, which increased from 7% to 10% on January 1,
2014 Pay-TV revenues outside of mainland France showed sign:ficant growth thanks to a portfolio increase, notably in Afnca

Advertising revenues wers up due to higher audience ratings especially at (>Télé and D8, which was ranked as the fifth most watched
French national channei n 2014

Studiocanal's revenues grew significantly, thanks to strong theatncal refeases and nghts sales (telewision and subscription video-on-
demand), including Paddington, Imitation Game, Non-Stop and RoboCop, as well as the ramping up of the TV series production business
with Red in Great Britain and Tandem in Germany

Canal+ Group's EBITA was €583 million, compared to €611 mdhon at the end of 2013 This change maly reflected the VAT increase mn
France, partially offset by strong results in other countries
Cash flow from operations (CFFO}

Canal+ Group's cash flow from operations amounted to €531 million in 2014, compared to €478 mitlion in 2013, a €53 mullion increase This
change mainly resulted from a decrease 1 net content investments and net capital expenditures, partially offset by an unfavorable change n
EBITDA after changes in net working capital and transition costs paid
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Year ended December 31

% Change at
% Change at constant rate and

{in millions of euros) 2014 2013 % Changa constant rate penmeter (a)

FPhysical sales 1417 1665 -14 9% 135% 122%

Digutal sales 1636 1705 41% Z28% 4%

Licgnsa and other 835 622 +2 1% +25% +5 0%
Recarded music 3688 3992 -716% 64% 44%
Music publishing 673 655 +2 8% +42% +4 2%
Merchandising and other 232 273 -149% -150% 150%
Eltrmnation ¢f intersegment transactions (36) {34)
Total Revenuas 4,557 4,836 £ 7% -5 6% -3 8%
Income trom operations 606 636 -4 6% -38% +2.3%
income from operations’ margin 133% 130%
Charges refated to
equity settled share-based compensatien plans 2} {6)
Special items excluded from income from operations
(including integration and restructuring costs) {39} {119)
EBITA 565 511 +10 7% +M3% +20 2%
EBITA margin 12 4% 105%
Cash flow from operations {CFFQ) a5 585 -21 3% -218%
Recorded music revenuas by geographical area
Europe 1% 39%
North America 39% 40%
Asia 1% 12%
Rest of the worid 9% 5%

100% 100%

a  Constant penmeter excludes the impacts in 2013 of operating the Parlophone Label Group repertoire

Recorded music sales of physical and digital supports {albums, tracks, DVDs and streaming), in mullions of equivalent album

units
Artist 2014 Astist 2013
Frozen 100  Eminem B3
Taylos Swift 88 KatyPerry 60
Sam Smuth 46 Rihanna 49
Katy Perry 42 Imagine Dragons 44
Maroon & 37  Luke Bryan 41
Anana Grande 36 LadyGaGa 40
Eminem 35 Drake 39
Lana Det Rey 30  Justin Bieber 38
Helene Fischer 29 Taylor Swift 36
Lorde 29  The Beatles 34
Total 472  Total a6 4
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Revenues and EBITA

Unwersal Music Group’s {UMG]) revenues were €4,557 million, down 5 6% at constant currency (-6 7% at actual currency) compared to 2013
Excluding the rmpact of Parlophone Label Greup {divested in 2013 as part of the EMI Recorded Music acquisition remedies) and at canstant
currency, UMG's revenues were down 3 8% compared to 2013 due to the rapid transformation of the recorded music industry

Recorded music digital sales were flat compared to 2013 at constant currency and perimeter, as significant growth in subsenption and
streaming revenues offset the decline in digital download sales However, total recorded music revenues dechined due to the continued
industry decline in physical sales

In the United States, UMG had the top three albums of the year Disney's “Frozen” soundtrack, Taylor Swift's "1989” and Sam Smith's “In
The Lonely Hour” Including track and stream equivalent albums, UMG had the top six, adding Anana Grande “My Everything”, Katy Perry
“Pnsm” and Lorde “Pure Heroine” In France, UMG had the top three albums of the year from Stromae, Indita and Kendyi Grrac Globally,
recorded music best sellers for 2014 mcluded sales friom the Disney “Frozen” soundirack, the new release from Taylor Swift, the
breakthrough reteases fram Sam Smith, Anana Grande and 5 Seconds Of Summer and carryover sales from Katy Perry and Lorde

Reflecting this success, UMG won 33 awards and swept all four major categories at the 57th Annual Grammy Awards in February 2015 Sam
Smith recewved three of the four major awards for Recard of the Year, Song of the Year and Best New Artist and Beck wen for Album of the
Year

UMG’s EBITA was €565 mifhon, up 11 3% at constant currency (+10 7% at actual currency) compared to 2013 and up 20 2% excluding last
year's contribution from divested Parlophone Label Group The favorable performance reflected the benefit of cost management and lower
restructuning and ntegration costs that more than offset the decline in revenues

Cash flow from operations (CFFO}

UMG's cash flow from operations amounted to €425 million {compared to €585 million in 2013} In 2013, cash flow from operations
benefited from exceptiona! proceeds in relation to an insurance settlement, property disposals and dwidends {€54 mllion) from its interest in
Beats, divestad in August 2014 UMG's cash flow from operations was also impacted by the unfavorable changes in working capital related
to the phasing of digital income receipts and royalty payments
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4.23 Vivendi Village

Year ended December 31,

{in milions of euros) 2014 2013

Digitick 15 13
See Tickets 36 31
Woatchever 26 12
Wengo 19 15
Total Revenuses 96 n
Income from operatians {34) (78)
EBITA (79) (80)
Cash flow from operations (CFFQ) {44) (80}

Revenues and EBITA

Vivend: Village's revenues amounted to €85 million, an increase of €25 million It included revenues from Digitick (€15 million, compared to
€13 million 1n 2013), See Tickets (€36 million, compared to €31 million 1n 2013), Watchever (€26 million, compared to €12 million 1n 2013),
and Wengo (€19 million, compared to €15 million 1n 2013}

Vivend: Village's EBITA amounted to -€79 million, compared to -€80 million in 2013 In 2014, it was notably impacted by Watchever's
restructuring charges in Germany (-€44 million)
Cash flow from operations {CFFO}

Vivend: Village's cash flow from operations amounted to -€44 million, compared to -€80 million 1n 2013 This change was mainly related to
the change in EBITDA

424 Corporate

Year ended December 31,

(in midlions of euras} 2014 2013

Income from operations (82) (87)

EBITA {70) {87}

Cash flow from operations {CFFO) (89) {89}
EBITA

Corporate EBITA was -£70 million (compared to -€87 muthon in 2013}, an increase of €17 million This increase was primanly due to the
decrease in operating expenses and to non-recurring items related to pensions
Cash flow from operations {CFFQ)

Corporate’s cash flow from operations amounted to -€69 millon, compared to -€83 million in 2013 This change was mainly attributable to
the change in EBITA

425 GVT (discontinued operation)

GVT's revenues were €1,765 million, a 12 8% increase at constant currency compared to 2013 This perfarmance was driven by continuous
growth of the core segment (retail and SME), which increased 14 1% at constant currency, including a 56 8% year-on-year increase (n pay-
TV This service, which now represents 14 2% of GVT's total revenues, had 858,860 pay-TV subscribers, reflecting a 33 6% increase
compared to 2013

GVT pursued its expansion in Brazil in a controlled and targeted manner and launched 1ts services in six additional cities durning 2014 1t now
operates in 156 crties in the Scuth, Southeast, Midwest and Northeast regions in Brazil

GVT's EBITDA was €702 milhion, a 8 4% increase at constant currency compared to 2013 lts EBITDA margin reached 39 8% {41 4% for 1ts
telecom activities alone), which is the highest margn in the Brazilian telecom operator market

Financial Report and Audited Consalidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31 2014 Vivend: /26




Frday February 27 2015

5 Treasury and capital resources

Preliminary comments.

o Vwendr considers Financial Net Debt and Net Cash Position, non-GAAP measures, to be relevant indicators m measuring Vivendi's
treasury and capital resources position

- Fnancial Net Debt 1s calculated as the sum of long-term and shortterm boerrowings and other financial iabilities as reported on the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, less cash and cash equivalents as reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Posmion as well as denvative financial instruments in assats and cash depostts backing borrowings fincluded i the Consolidated
Staternent of Financial Posttion under “financial assets”)

- Net Cash Position 1s calculated as the sum of cash and cash equivalents as reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position, dervative financial instruments in assets, and cash deposits backing borrowangs fincluded n the Consolidated Statement of
Financral Position under “financial assets”) less long-term and short-term borrowings and other financial habilities

e Fmancial Net Debt and Net Cash Position showld be considered i addition to, and not as substitutes for, other GAAP measures as
presented n the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, as well as other measures of indebtedness reported in accordance with
GAAP, and Vivendr considers that they are relevant indicators of treasury and capital resgurces positign of the group Vivend)
Management uses these indicators for reporting, management, and planning purposes, as well as to comply with certain debt covenants
of Vivend

«  Inaddition, cash and cash equivalents are nat fully available for debt repayments since they are used for several purposes, including but
not hmited to business acquisitions, capital expenditures, dvidend payments, share repurchases, payments of contractual abligations and
waorking capial

51 Summary of Vivendi's exposure to credit and liquidity nisks

As of December 31, 2014, Vivend: has a Net Cash Position of €4,637 million {including cash and cash equivalents for €6,845 million and
bonds for €1,950 million), compared to a Financial Net Debt of €11,097 mithon as of December 31, 2013 (including bonds for £7,827 mullion,
bank credit facilities for €2,075 milhon and commercial papers far €1,906 millhon), a €15,734 million favorable impact

In May 2014, Vivend: completed the sale of its 53% interest in Maroc Telecom group for €4,138 million and sold 41 5 million Activision
Blizzard shares for €623 mitlion Vivend notably used this cash to redeem its drawn bank credst facilities and to pay an ordinary distribution
of €1 per share to its sharsholders from addtional paid-in capital for an aggregate amount of €1,348 million

On November 27, 2014, Vivend: completed the sale of SFR to Numericable Group (please refer to Section 1 1 2} Cash proceeds received from
the sale amounted to €13,166 mullion, or £13,500 million, net of the price adjustments (-£134 million} and of Vivend)’s contribution to the
financing of the acquisition of Virgin Mobile by Numenicable Group (-€200 million)

At that date, to further enhance its balance sheet, Vivend: allocated a portion of the sale proceeds to the early redemption of all eight
tranches of its euro and U S dollar denominated bonds that had a make-whele option, representing an aggregate principal amount of
€4 25 ilhion and $0 6 ilhon This transaction, completed in December 2014, resulted in a net cash payment of a €642 million in addition to
the principal amount of €4 7 hillion

In addition, on November 27, 2014, following the receipt of cash proceeds from the sale of SFR, Vivend: cancelled all of its existing bank
credit facihties for €7 1 billion and set up a new €2 billion bank credit facility, matuning in five years (2019) with two one-year renewal
options As of December 31, 2014, this credit facility was undrawn

As a reminder, on March 4, 2013, a letter of credit for £975 mithon, maturing in March 2016, was 1ssued in connection with Vivendi's appeal
against the Liberty Media judgment {please refer to Section 6) This letter of credit 15 guaranteed by a syndicate of 15 interational banks with
which Vivends signed a Reimbursement Agreement which includes an undertaking by Vivend: to reimburse the banks for any amounts paid out
under the letter of credit On July 16, 2014, Vivendi strengthened the guarantees given to the banks that are parties to the Reimbursement
Agreement by placing a2 cash deposit of €375 million in an escrow account This cash deposit coudd be used 1 priority agamst a claim made
against Vivend:, 1if any, and if the banks were called with respect to the letter of credit This deposit, which signtficantly reduced the letter of
credit’s financing cost, resulted in a €975 million decrease :n the group’s Net Cash Position Prior to this deposit being placed, the letter of
credit was recorded as an off-balance sheet financial commitment, with no impact on Vivend!'s Financial Net Debt

As of December 31, 2014, Vivend: had £6,845 million i cash and cash equivalents, pnmanly compnised of monetary UCITS, term deposits
and interest-bearng current accounts
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In add:tion, on September 18, 2014, Vivend: and Telefonica entered 1nto an agreement for the sale of GVT The agreement represents a total
enterpnise value of €7 45 billion {on the basis of stock market prices and exchange rates on the date the exclusive negotiation agreements
were entered Into with Telefonica} The transaction 1s expected to close during the second quarter of 2015 After taking into account the
estimated tax impact, GVT's external debt and the price adjustments at clesing of the transaction, the expected net proceeds upon the sale
I1s expected to amount to approximately €3 8 illion {please refer to Section 1 1 3}

Cash and cash Borrowings and ather Financial Net Debt

(i mullions of euros) equivalents financial tems (a}
Financial Net Debt as of December 31,2013 {1,001} 12,138 11097
Quiflows/inflows) related to continuing operatians

Operating activities {1353} - {1,359}

Investing actvities (16 326} 26 {16 300)

Financing activities N1z {9212) 1916
Foreign cumency translation adjustments of contining operations {10} {1) (1)
Dutflowsfinflows) relatod to continnng operations {6,567) 19,187) {15,754)
OutflowsAmflows) related to discontinued operations 560 {450) 110
Reclassification of discontinued operations' Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2014 203 [29_3_)_ {90}
Change related to discontinued operations 163 (743} 20
Financial Net Debt/ (Net Cash Position} as of December 31, 2014 (6,845} 2208 {4,637}

a  “Other financial items” include commitments to purchase non-controlling interests, derivative financial instruments {assets and
habilities) and cash deposits backed to barrowings
Financial Net Debt change during fiscal year 2014

As of December 31, 2014, Vivend: had a Net Cash Position of €4,637 million, compared to a Financ:al Net Debt of €11,087 million as of
December 31, 2013), a €15,734 million favorable impact

This change notably reflected

e proceeds from the sales completed dunng fiscal year 2014 for €179 billion They pnmanly included net proceeds of
£€13,166 million from the sale of SFR, €4,138 million from the sale of Vivend:'s 53% interest 1n Maroc Telecom group, €623 milhion
from the sale of 41 5 million Activision Blizzard shares, and €221 mill:on from the sale of UMG’s interest in Beats,

»  cash provided by operating activit:es of cont:nuing operations’ {€1,359 million),
s  cash recewed from the exercise of stock options Dy the executive management and employees (€197 million), and
«  restatement of GVT's Financial Net Debt as a discontinued operation {€217 million),
partially offset by
e  the cash outflow related to the €1 per share distnbution made to Vivend: SA shareowners (€1,348 million),

+ the placing of cash deposits in relation to the appeal against the Liberty Media judgment {€975 m:llion} and to the securities’ class
action in the United States {£45 million),

«  cash payments related to financial actvities (€702 million}, of which €642 million related to the early redemption of bonds and
€96 million refated to net interest paid,

»  acquisttions (€303 milhon) made by Canal+ Group for an aggregate amount of €244 midlion (pnimarily compnised of acquisitions of
Mediaserv, Thema, and of an additional 9% interest in N-Vision} and by UMG for an aggregate amount of €59 millon {notably
included the acquisition of Eagle Rock and the contribution to Veve's share capital increase), and

o cash outflows related to capital expend itures from cantinuing operations’ (€243 million)

7 Contminng operations include Canal+ Group Uriversel Music Group Yivend: Village and Corporate
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5 2 Net Cash Position as of December 31, 2014

As of December 31, 2014, Vivendi's Net Cash Position, in IFRS, amounted to €4,637 million

As of December 31, 2014, the group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to an aggregate of €6,845 million, placed primanly in monetary
UCITS (€4,754 million) and in term deposits and interest-bearing current accounts (€1,851 million)

Moreover, borrowings and other financial liabilities amounted to €2,208 million {compared to €12,138 mithon as of December 31, 2013), a
€9,930 mullion decrease following the redemptions of borrowings camed out dunng fiscal year 2014 €5,564 million in bonds, €3,655 mithon
in bank credit facilities and €1,806 million in commercial papers

As of December 31, 2014, the group’s bonds amounted to €1,950 million, compared to €7,827 million as of December 31, 2013 In 2014,
Vivend redeemed at matunty & €894 milhon bond, SFR’s €300 mullion bond, and early redeemed bonds with make-whole aptions, of which
€4,250 mutlion in euro denominated bands, and $595 milhion (€420 million) related to US dollar denominated bonds

Refer to Notes to the
Consolidated Decembor 31 2014 1 ember 31,2013

a

(17 rifions of euros) Finangial Statements fal
Borrowangs and other finarcial iabiities 21 2347 12 266
of which long-term (b} 2074 8737
short-term (b} 273 3,529
Denvative financial instruments in assets {c) {139) (126)
Cash deposits backing borrowings (c) {2)
2,208 12,138
Cash and cash equivalents [b) {6,845) {1,041}
Financial Net Debt / (Net cash position) (4,637} 11,097

a  As of December 31, 2014, in compliance with IFRS 5, Vivend's Net Cash Pasition does not include the external Financial Net Debt of
GVT (€217 mullion}

b As presented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
¢ Included in the Financial Assets items of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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5 3 Analysis of Financial Net Debt changes

Year ended December 31 2014

Refer 1o Irpact on cash and Impact onbarrowings  Impact on Fngncsal
section
cash equivalents and other financial tems Net Degt
{in milliong of eyros)
€8 2 (735) - (736)
Adpustments (447) (447)
Content investments net 3 {19) [19)
Gross cash providad by opersting actwvities befare incoms tax paid f1.2a2) - {1.202
Other changes in net wosking capital 123 123
Nat cash provided by cperating activitzes bafaore income tax paid 3 {1,079} - 1a79]
Income tax pad net 3 (280) (280)
Net cash provided by op ] of g operations {1,359) - {1.359)
Net cash provided by operating actities of discontinued operations {2 234) (2234)
tan H (3.593) - (3,593)
Finan¢ial investments
Purchases of consolidated companies after acquired cash 100 118 26
of which imestments reshzed by Canalr Group 1 85 95 181
investments reahized by UMG 1 14 21 35
lnvestments in equity affihates 87 87
of which mvestments realzed by Canalr Group g 63
avestments reahzed by UMG 24 24
Increase in financial assets 1057 1087
of wiich cash deposit related to Vivend: § appeal aganst the Liberty Media judgment 8 85 975
cash deposit refated tp Secunties Class Action i the Unred States § 45 45
Total financial investmants 1244 116 1360
Financial divestments
Proceeds from safes of consolidated companies after divested cash (15 929) 10 {17019)
of which cash proceeds from the sale of SFB 1 (13 366} (13 366}
financing of Viegin Mobile acquisiion 1 200 200
SFR s net cash deconsoldated 133 189/ 4
proceeds from the sale of the 53% mterest n Maroc Telecom group 1 {4 1381 {4 138)
Decrease in financial assets (878) {878)
of which proceeds from the sale of 41 5 million Actrasion Blzzard shares ¥ (623} {823}
proceads from the sala of UMG s mterest in Beats 1 (221} @21
Total financial divastments (17.887) {90} {17,297)
Financial imvestmant actinties {16,563 % {16537)
Dwidends received from equity atfiliates (4) 18)
Omidends received from uncenso!dated compantes 12) {2)
Net imvesting activities excludinp capital expandituras, net {15,569) 26 {16,543}
Capital expendnures 249 245
Proceeds from sales of property plant equipment and intangible assets 16) (6)
Capral expandituras, net 3 243 - 243
Net cash provided by/luzed for) ng of g CpRTAtIONS {16.326) % {16,300)
Net cash provided by/{used for) nvesting actwvities of discontinued operations 2034 55 2 08
1 ing actrviti {34,292) B1 {14,211}
Tr with gh
Net proceeds from rssuance of comman shares i connection with Vivend: SA's share-based compensation pians [97) {157)
of wiwch exercise of stock options by executive manapement and employaes {197) 197}
{Sales)/purchases of Vivend: SA s treasury shates 32 xR
Distribution ta Vivend SA s shareowners (€1 per share) 1 1.348 1348
Other Uansactiong with shareowners 2 2
Divvdends pawd by consolidated companies to thes non-controlling interests 34 134;_
Total transactions with shareownsrs 1219 - 1219
Trangactiens on borrowengs and other financial habilmes
Setting up of long-term borrowings and increase in other long term hinancial liabihies 3 3
Princpal payments on long term borrowings and decrease m other long term financial habilities 1670 (1670
of which bank credrt facdines 1655 {1 655}
Principal payments on shost term borovangs 7680 (7 690}
of wiich bonds 5584 (5 564}
commeresal paper 1906 {1 905)
Cther changes in short term b gs and ather [ | hatutiugs {140) 140
Non cash transactions {5 [t
Interest paid net 3 96 %
Gther cash items retated to financial aciraties 3 606 508
Total on b gs and other frabslits 5909 9.212) 697
Net cash provided byfused for) g ac: of Q operations 112 {9.212) 1916
Net cash provided by/used for) financing actvties of drscostinued operations 756 {508) 48
Finsnging actymes gas 9,120} 2164
Foceign currency translation adjustments of continuing operations (30) [Tl {11}
Foreign ourrency translation adjustments of discontinued operations 4 3 7
Reclassification of Financial Net Debt from discontinued operstions 203 {293) {80}
Changa in Financial Net Dabt. (5.804) {9 930) {15 734)
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5 4 Changes to financings

s InJanwary 2014, Vivend redeemed the 7 75% bond 1ssued in January 2009, for €894 milhion, upon its contractual matunty

» On November 27, 2014, following the recetpt of cash proceeds from the sale of SFR, Vivend cancelled all of its existing bank credit
faclities for €7 1 billion and set up & new €2 billion bank credit facility, maturing in five years {2019) and with two one-year renewal
aptions As of December 31, 2014, this credit facility was undrawn

e  {n December 15, 2014, Vivend: redeemed all its euro-denominated bonds with a make-whole option representing a total pnncipal amount of
€4,250 mithon and paid a net cash premum of €572 million

= On December 29, 2014, Vivend redeemed all its US dollar-denominated bonds with a make-whole option representing a total principal
amount of $595 million (€420 million} and paid a net premium of €70 miflion

For a detailed analysis of the borrowings as of December 31, 2014, please refer to Note 21 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2014

6 Litigation

In the normal course of (ts business, Vivend: 1s subject to vanous lawsuits, arbitrations and governmental, administrative or other
proceedings (collectively referred to herein as “Legal Proceedings”)

The costs which may result from these proceedings are only recognized as provisions when they are likely to be ncurred and when the
obligation can reasonably be quantified or estimated, in which case, the amount of the provision represents Vivendi’'s bast estimate of the
nsk, provided that Vivendi may, at any time, reassess such nsk if events occur duning such proceedings As of December 31, 2014, provisions
recorded by Vivend for all clams and litigations amounted to €1 206 million, compared to €1,379 million as of December 31, 2013

To the company's knowledge, there are no Legal Proceedings or any facts of an exceptional nature, including, to the company’s knowledge,
any pending or threatened proceedings in which 1t 1s a defendant, which may have or have had in the previous twelve months a significant
impact on the company’s and on 1ts group's financial position, profit, business and property, other than those described herein

The status of proceedings disclosed hereunder is described as of February 11, 2015, the date of the Management Board meeting held to
approve Vivendr's Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014

Vivenih liigation

Secunties Class Action in the United States

Since July 18, 2002, sixteen claims have been filed against Vivendi, Messrs Messier and Hannezo in the United States District Court for the
Southem District of New York and in the United States Distnet Court for the Central District of California On September 30, 2002, the New
York court decided to consolidate these clams under s junsdiction into a single action entitled /n re Vivendr Universal S A Securittes
Litigation

The plantiffs aliege that, between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, the defendants violated certain provisions of the US Secuntes
Act of 1933 and US Secunties Exchange Act of 1934, particularly with regard to financial communications On January 7, 2003, the plantiffs
filed a consolidated class action suit that may benefit potential groups of shareholders

On March 22, 2007, the Coust decided, concerning the procedure for certification of the potential claimants as a class {“class certification”,
that persons from the United States, France, England and the Netherlands who purchased or acquired shares or American Depositary
Receipts (ADRs) of Vivend (formerly Vivend: Universal SA) between Octaber 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, could be included in the class

Foilowing the class certification decision of March 22, 2007, a number of individual cases were filed against Vivend: on the same grounds as
the class action On December 14, 2007, the judge 1ssued an order conschidating the individual actions with the securities class action for
purpases of discovery On March 2, 2009, the Court deconsolidated the Liberty Media action from the class action On August 12, 2009, the
Court 1ssued an order deconsolidating the individual actions from the ¢lass action

On January 28, 2010, the jury returned its verdict 1t found that 57 statements made by Vivendi between October 30, 2000 and August 14,
2002, were materially false or misleading and were made in violahion of Section 10{b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Plainuffs had
alleged that those statements were false and misleading because they failed to disclose the existence of an alleged "Iiquidity nsk” which
reached its peak in December 2001 However, the jury concluded that neither Mr Jean-Marne Messier nor Mr Guillaume Hannezo were
liable for the alleged misstatements As part of its verdict, the jury found that the price of Vivendi's shares was artificially inflated on each
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day of the class penod in an amount between €0 15 and €11 00 per ordmary share and $0 13 and $10 00 per ADR, depending on the date of
purchase of each ordinary share or ADR Those figures represent approximately half the amounts sought by the plantiffs in the class action
The jury also concluded that the nffation of the Vivendi share price fell to zero in the three weeks following the September 11, 2001,
tragedy, as well as on stock exchange holidays on the Paris or New York markets {12 days) dunng the class penod

On June 24, 2010, the US Supreme Court, in a very clear statement, ruled, in the Mornson v National Australia Bank case, that Amencan
securitigs law only applies to “the purchase or sale of a security listed on an American stock exchange”, and to “the purchase or sate of any
other secunty in the United States “

In a decision dated February 17, 2011 and ssued on February 22, 2011, the Court, in applying the “Mormison” decision, confirmed Vivend's
position by dismissing the claims of all purchasers of Vivendi's ordinary shares on the Paris stock exchange and Imited the case to claims of
French, American, British and Dutch purchasers of Vivendy's ADRs an the New York Stock Exchange The Court denwed Vivendr's post-trial
motions challenging the yury's verdict The Court also declined to enter a final judgment, as had been requested by the plaintiffs, saying that
to do so would be premature and that the process of examining individual shareholder claims must take place before a final judgment could
be tssued On March 8, 2011, the plaintiffs filed a petition before the Second Circuit Court of Appeals seeking to appeal the decision
rendered on February 17, 2011 On July 20, 2011, the Court of Appeals denied the petition and dismissed the clam of purchasers who
acquired their shares on the Pans stock exchange

In a decision dated January 27, 2012 and 1ssued on February 1, 2012, the Court, in applying the Morrison decistan, alse dismissed the claims
of the individual plaintiffs who purchased ordirary shares of the company on the Panis stock exchange

On July 5, 2012, the Court denied a reguest by the plaintiffs to expand the class to nationalities other than those covered by the certification
decision dated March 22, 2007

The claims process commenced on December 10, 2012, with the sending of a notice to shareholders who may be pant of the class
Recipients of the notice had until August 7, 2013 ta file a ¢laim form and submit documentation evidencing the validity of their claim These
claims are currently being processed and venfied by an independent claims administrator and by the parties Vivendi will then have the nght
to challenge the ments of these claims On November 10, 2014, at Vivendi's initiative, the parties filed a mutually agreed upon proposed
order requesting the Court to enter a partial final judgment on the January 29, 2010 jury verdict, covering a substantiat portion of the clams
Certain large claims were excluded fram this proposed judgment order as Vivend: continues to analyze whether to challenge the validity of
those claims On December 23, 2014, the Court entered the partial judgment

On January 21, 2015, Vivend: filed 1ts Notice of Appeal with the Second Circuit Court of Appeals This appeal will be heard together with
Vivend:'s appeal in the Liberty Media case

Vivend: believes that it has solid grounds for an appeal Vivendi intends to challenge, among other (ssues, the plamtiffs’ theones of
causation and damages and, more generally, certain decisions made by the judge duning the conduct of tha trial Several aspects of the
verdict will also be chaflenged

On the basis of the verdict rendered on January 29, 2010, and following an assessment of the matters set forth above, together with support
from studies conducted by companes specializng in the calculation of class action damages and in accordance with the accounting
pringiples described in Notes 1 3 1 {Use of Estimates) and 13 8 (Provisions) Vivendi made a provision on December 31, 2009, in an amount
of €550 million 1n respect of the damages that Vivend: might have to pay to plaintiffs Vivend re-examined the amount of the reserve related
to the Securities class action litigatton i the United States, given the decision of the District Court for the Southern District of New York on
February 17, 2011, which followed the US Supreme Court’s dec:sion on June 24, 2016 in the Morrison case Using the same methodology
and the same valuation experts as i 2009, Vivend re-examined the amount of the reserve and set it at €100 million as of December 31,
2010, in respect of the damages, If any, that Vivendt might have to pay solely to shareholders who have purchased ADRs in the United
States Cansequently, as of December 31, 2010, Vivendi recognized a €450 million reversal of reserve

Vivend considers that this provision and the assumptions on which it is based may require further amendment as the proceedings progress
and, consequently, the amount of damages that Vivend: might have to pay to the plantiffs could differ from the current estimate As s
permitted by current accounting standards, no details are given of the assumptions on which this estimate s based, because theur disclosure
at this stage of the proceedings could be prejudicial to Vivend

Complaint of Liberty Media Corporation

On March 28, 2003, Liberty Media Corporation and certain of its affiliates filed suit against Vivendi and Jean-Marie Messier and Guillaume
Hannezo in the District Court for the Southern District of New York for claims ansing out of the agreement entered nto by Vivend: and
Liberty Med:a relating to the formation of Vivendi Universal Entertainment in May 2002 The plaintiffs allege that the defendants violated
certain provisions of the US Exchange Act of 1934 and breached certain contractual representations and warranties The case had been
consolidated with the secunties class actron for pre-trial purposes but was subsequently deconsolidated on March 2, 2009 The judge
granted Liberty Media’s request that they be permitted to aval! themselves of the verdict rendered by the securities class action jury with
respect to Vivendt's liability (theory of "collateral estoppel”)
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The Liberty Medra jury returned 1ts verdict on June 25, 2012 [t found Vivendr Liable to Liberty Media for making certain false ar misleading
statements and for breaching several representations and warranties contained in the parties’ agreement and awarded damages to Liberty
Media in the amount of €765 million Vivendr filed certain post-trial motions challenging the jury’s verdict, including motions requesting that
the Court set aside the jury’s verdict for lack of ewidence and order a new trial

On January 9, 2013, the Court confirmed the jury's verdict i also awarded Liberty Media pre-judgment interest accruing from December 16,
2001 until the date of the entry of judgment, using the average rate of return on one-year US Treasury bilis On January 17, 2013, the Court
entered a final judgment n the total amount of €345 mullion, including pre-judgment interest, but stayed its execution while it considered
two pending post-trial motions, which were denied on February 12, 2013

On February 15, 2013, Vivend: filed with the Court a Notice of Appeal against the judgment awarded, for which it beheves it has strong
arguments On March 13, 2013, Vivend: filed a motion in the Second Circuit Court of Appeals requesting that the Court stay the Liberty
Media appeal until the Class Action judgment is entered so that the two appeals can be heard simultaneously On April 4, 2013, the Court of
Appeals 1ssued an Order granting Vivends's motion, agreeing to hear the Liberty Media case tegether with the Class Action Vivend) filed its
Nouce of Appeal in the Class Action on January 21, 2015, these two cases will be heard together by the Cours of Appeals

On the basis of the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012, and the entry of the final judgment by the Court, Vivendi maintained as of December
31,2014, the provision in the amount of €945 million recorded as of December 31, 2012

Trial of Vivendi's Former Officers in Pans

In Qctober 2002, the financial department of the Pans Public Prosecutor’s office (Parquet de Panis) launched an investigation into the
pubheation of allegedly false or misleading information regarding the financial situation and forecasts of the company and the publication of
allegedly untrue or inaccurate financial statements for the fiscal years 2000 and 2001 Additional charges were brought in this investigation
relating to purchases by the company of its own shares between September 1, 2001 and December 31, 2001 Vivend: joined the proceedings
as a civil party

The trial took place from June 2 to June 25, 2010, before the 11th Chamber of the Pans Tribunal of First instance {Trtbunal de Grande
Instance de Pans), following which the Public Prosecutor asked the Court to drop the charges against the defendants On January 21, 2011,
the Court rendered its judgment, in which it confirmed the previous recognition of Vivend as a civil party Messrs Jean-Marie Messier,
Guillaume Hannezo, Edgar Bronfman Jr and Enc Licoys received suspended sentences and fines Messrs Jean Mane Messier and
Guillaume Hannezo were also ordered to pay damages to sharehclders who are entitled to reparation as cvil parties The former Vivendi
Officers as well as some civil parties appealed the decision The appeal proceedings were held from October 28 to November 26, 2013,
before the Panis Court of Appeal The Public Prosecutor requested a 20-month suspended pnison sentence and a fine of €150,000 for Mr
Jean-Marie Messier for misuse of corporate assets and dissemination of false or misleading informatien, a 10-month suspended prison
sentence and a fine of €850,000 for Mr Guillaume Hannezo for insider trading, and a 10-month suspended prison sentence and a fine of
€5 million for Mr Edgar Bronfman Jr for insider trading On May 19, 2014, the Pans Court of Appeal rendered its judgment Regarding the
acts determined by the lower criminal court to constitute the dissermination of false or misleading information, the Court held that these acts
did not meet the cntenia for such an offense The Court upheld the conviction against Jean-Mane Messier for misuse of corporate assets
and he recerved a 10-month suspended sentence and a €50,000 fine The Court also upheld the convictions against Messrs Hannezo and
Bronfman for insider trading and they received fines in the amount of €850,000 (of which €425,000 ts suspended} and €5 million {of which
€2 5 million 15 suspended), respectively Finally, the Court set as:de the lower court's order for the payment of damages (€10 per share} to
certain shareholders and former sharehalders of Vivend (the “civil action™) With regard to Vivend, the Coun upheld the validity of 1ts status
as a civil party to the proceedings, exonerated 1t from any responsibility and voided the demand for damages brought against 1t by certain
shareholders or former shareholders An appeal has been filed with the French Supreme Court {Cour de Cassation} by certain of the
defendants and some civil parties

1LBBW and al against Vivendi

On March 4, 2011, 26 instrtutional nvestors from Germany, Canada, Luxemburg, Ireland, ltaly, Sweden, Belgium and Austria filed a
complaint against Vivendi with the Pans Commercial Court seeking to ebtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of four
financial communications 1ssued by Vivend) in October and December 2000, September 2001 and Apnl 2002 Subsequently, on Apnl 5 and
Apnl 23, 2012, two similar complamts were filed against Vivend) the first one by a US pension fund, the Public Employee Retirement System
of Idaho, and the other by six German and British snstitutional snvestors Lastly, on August 8, 2012, the British Columbia Investment
Management Corporation also filed a complaint against Vivendi on the same basis On January 7, 2015, the Commercial Court of Pans
appointed a "third party” responsible for checking the standing of the claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by them to
evidence their alleged holdmg of the securities
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California State Teachers Retirement System and al against Vivend: and Jean-Marie Messier

On April 27, 2012, 67 insuitutional foresgn investors filed a complaint aganst Vivends and Jean-Mare Messier before the Pans Commercia!
Court seeking damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of the financial communications made by Vivend: and its former CEO,
between 2000 and 2002 On June 7 and September 5 and 6, 2012, 26 new plaintiffs joined these proceedings  In November 2012 and March
2014, 12 plaintiffs withdrew from these proceedings On January 7, 2015, the Commercial Court of Pans appomnted a "third party”
responsible for chacking the standing of the claimants and reviewing the decumentation provided by them to evidence thair alleged holding
of the securtties

Actions against Activision Blizzard, Inc , its Board of Directors, and Vivendi

{n August 2013, a derwative action was initiated in the Los Angeles Supencr Court by an individual shareholder against Activision Bhzzard,
inc ("Activision Blizzard™ or the “Company”), all of the members of its Board of Directors and against Vivend: The plaintiff alleges that
Activision Blizzard's Board of Directors and Vivend: breached their fiduciary duties by approving the divestment of Vivend:'s share ownership
in the Company The plaintiff, Todd Miller, claims that the transaction would not only be disadvantageous to Activision Blizzard but that 1t
would also confer a disproportionate advantage to a group of investors led by Robert Kotick and Bnan Kelly, the Company's Chief Executive
Officer and Co-Chairman of the Board, respectively, and that those breaches of fiduciary duty were aided and abetted by Vivend:

On September 11, 2013, a second dervative action based on essentially the same allegations was initiated in the Delaware Court of
Chancery by another minonity shareholder of Activision Blizzard, Anthony Pacchia

On the same day, another minority shareholder, Dougfas Hayes, instiated a simslar action and also requested that the closing of the sale
transaction be enjoined pending approval of the transactton by Activision Blizzard's shareholders On September 18, 2013, the Delaware
Court of Chancery granted the motion enjaining the clesing of the transaction However, on October 10, 2013, the Delaware Supreme Court
overturned this decision, allowing for the completion of the transaction The case will proceed on the merits

On November 2, 2013, the Delaware Court of Chancery consolidated the Pacchia and Hayes actions sto a single action entitted /n Ae
Activision Bhzzard Inc Secunities Litigation

On March 14, 2014, a similar new action was mitrated in the Delaware Court of Chancesry by a minonty shareholder, Mark Benston This
action was consolidated into the In Re Actvision Bhizzard Inc Securities Litrgation proceeding currently underway

In November 2014, the parties reached agreement on a global settlement which would put an end to this dispute On December 19, 2014,
the settlement agreement executed between the parties was filed with the Court for formal approval and then the shareholder notification
process commenced The Court 15 expected to approve the settlement agreement at an upcoming hearing

Calling of the guarantee 1ssued by Anjou Patrimoine to Unihail

Unibail has called 1ts indemnification guarantee issued by Anjou Patnimaine (g former subs:diary of Vivendi) in connection with the sale of
the CNIT offices in 1983 On July 3, 2007, the High Court of Nanterre ordered Amjou Patiimorne to indemmify Unibail for a tax liability ansing
from the creation of offices and rejected all other claims On Octaber 31, 2008, the Versailles Court of Appeal reversed the High Court’s
ruling, denied all of Unibail's claims and ordered 1t to reimburse Anjou Patnmoine for all sums paid under the first rubng On November 27,
2008, Unibail appealed against this decision On September 11, 2013, the French Supreme Court reversed the October 31, 2008 ruling of the
Versarlles Court of Appea! and remanded the case to the Pans Court of Appeal The hearing w:ll take place on Apnl 2, 2015

Vivendi Deutschland against FIG

Further to a claim filed by CGIS BIM (a former subsidiary of Vivendi} against FIG to obtain the release of part of a payment remaining due
pursuant to a builldings sale contract, FIG obtained, on May 29, 2008, the annulment of the sale following a judgment of the Berlin Court of
Appeal, which averruled a judgment rendered by the Bertin High Court CGIS BIM was ordered to repurchase the buildings and to pay
darmages Vivend delwvered a guarantes so as to pursue settlement negotiations As no settlement was reached, on September 3, 2008,
CGIS BIM challenged the vahdity of the reascning of the judgment On Apnl 23, 2009, the Regional Berlin Court 1ssued a decision setting
aside the judgment of the Berlin Court of Appeal dated May 29, 2008 On June 12, 2009, FIG appealed that decision On December 16, 2010,
the Berlin Court of Appeal rejected FIG's appeal and confirmed the decision of the Regional Berlin Court in Apnl 2008, which decided m
CGISBIM's favor and confirmed the invalidity of the reasoning of the judgment and therefore overruled the order for CGIS BIM to repurchase
the butlding and pay damages and interest Thes decision 1s now final In parallel, FIG filed a second claim for additional damages In the
Beriin Regional Court which was served on CGIS BIM on March 3, 2003 On June 19, 2013, the Berhin Regional Court ordered CGIS BIM to
pay FIG the sum of £3 3 million together with interest from February 27, 2009 CGIS BIM has appealed this decision
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Teleforica agamst Vivendi in Brazil

On May 2, 2011, TELESP {now Telefonica Brazil}, filed a claim against Vivendi before the Civil Court of S0 Paulo {3* Vara Civel do Foro
Central da Comarca da Capital do Estado de Sdo Paulo) The company 1s seeking damages for having been blocked from acquining controf of
GVT and damages in the amount of 15 million Brazilian reals (currently approximately €4 9 million) corresponding to the expenses incurred
by Telefon:ca Brazil in connection with 1ts offer for GVT At the begirning of September 2011, Vivend: filed an objection to junsdiction,
challenging the jurisdiction of the courts of S0 Paulo to hear a case nvolving parties from Cunit:iba This objection was dismissed on
February 14, 2012, which was confirmed on April 4, 2012 by the Court of Appeal

On April 30, 2013, the Court dismissed Telefonica’s claim for lack of sufficient and concrete evidence of Vivend's responsibility for
Telefonica's falling to acquire GVT The Court notably highlighted the inherently risky nature of operations in the financtal markets, of which
Telefonica must have been aware Moreover, the Court dismissed Vivendr's counterclaim for compensation for the damage it suffered as a
result of the defamatory campaign carnied out against 1t by Telefonica On May 28, 2013, Telefonica appealed the Court’s decision to the 5th
Chamber of Private Law of the Court of Justice of the State of Sao Paulo

On September 18, 2014, within the framework of agreements entered into between Vivendi and Telefonica concerning the sale of GVT, the
parties agreed to end this dispute without payment to either side Pending the conclusion of this settlement transaction {which 1s to be
signed on the day of the closing of the sale of GVT), the case has been suspended

Dynamo against Vivend:

On August 24, 2011, the Dynamo investment funds filed a2 complaint for damages against Vivend: before the Bovespa Arbitration Chamber
(S30 Paulo stock exchange) According to Dynamo, a former shareholder of GVT that sold the vast majority of its stake in the company before
November 13, 2009 {the date on which Vivend: took control of GVT), the provision tn GVT's bylaws providing for an increase in the per share
purchase price when the 15% threshold is crossed {the “peison pill provision”) should allegadly have applied to the acquisition by Vivend
Vivendi, noting that this potson pilk provision was waived by a GVT General Shareholders’ Meeting in the event of an acquisition by Vivend
or Telefonica, demes alt of Dynamo's allegations The arbitral tribunal has been constituted and a hearing before the Bovespa Arbitration
Chamber should be scheduled shortly In parallel, on February 8, 2013, Dynamo filed an application with the 21st Federal Court of the capital
of the State of Rio de Janewro to compel CVM and Bovespa to provide the arhitral tnbunal with confidential information relating to the
acquisition of GVT by Vivend! This was rejected on November 7, 2013 as the Court found that only the arbitral tribunal could make such an
apphication On December 17, 2014, the Rio de Janeiro Court of Appeal overturned the lower court’s decision and authonized the provision of
the above-mentioned information solely to the arbitral trnbunal, denying Dynamo access to the information

Hedging-Griffo against Vivend:

On September 4, 2012, the Hedging-Griffo funds filed a complaint against Vivend: before the Arbitration Chamber of the Bovespa (S&o Pauto
Stock Exchange) seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred due to the conditions under which Vivend: complsted the
acquesition of GVT 1 2009 On December 16, 2013, the arbstral tribunal was constituted and the plaintiffs submitted their initial briefs The
Hedging-Gr:ffo funds demanded compensation for the difference between the price at which they sold their GVT shares on the market and
125% of the pnce paid by Vivend: in connection with the tender offer for the GVT shares, pursuant to the “potson pill” provision in GVT's
bylaws Vivend believes that the decision taken by the Hedging-Gniffe funds to sell their GVT shares hefore the end of the stock market
battle that opposed Vivendr against Telefonica was therr own decision made in the context of their management of these funds and can m
no way be attributable to Vivend: It also denies any application of the bylaw provision mentioned above, as it was waived by a GVT General
Shareholders” Meeting in the event of an acquisition by Vivend: or Telefonica

Litigation involving Vivendi subsidianes

Parahole Reunion

In July 2007, the Group Parabole Réumion filed a legal action before the Paris Tribunal of First instance following the termination of its nights
to exclusively distribute the TPS channels in Reunion Island, Mayotte, Madagascar and Mauritius Pursuant to a decision dated September
18, 2007, Canal+ Group was prohibited, under threat of a fine, from allowing the broadcast by third parties of these channels or replacement
channels that have substituted these channels Canal+ Group appealed this decision In a ruling dated June 19, 2008, the Panis Court of
Appeal part;ally reversed the judgment and stated that these replacement channels were not to be granted exclusively if the channels were
made available to third parties prior to the merger with TPS Parabole Réunion was unsuccessful in its clams concerning the content of the
channels in question On September 19, 2008, Parabole Réurion appealed to the French Supreme Court On November 10, 2009, the French
Supreme Court dismissed the appeal brought by Parabole Réunion In the context of this dispute, vanous junsdichions have taken the
opportunity to apply the fact that in the event of the loss of the TPS Foot channel, Canal+ Group must make available to Parabole Réunion a
channet of similar attractiveness Norcompliance with this order would result in a penalty Gn September 24, 2012, Parabale Réunion filed a
claim against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution before the enforcement magistrate of the Court of First Instance of
Nanterre (Tribunal de grande instance de Nanterre) seeking enforcement of this fine (a request for such enforcement having been previously
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rejected by the enforcement magistrate of Nanterre, the Pans Court of Appeal and the French Supreme Court) On November 6, 2012,
Parabole Réunion expanded its claim to cover the TPS Star, Cinecinema Classic, Cult and Star channels On Apnl 9, 2013, the enforcement
magistrate dismissed 1n part Parabole Réunion’s claim and declared the rest inadmissible  He took care to recall that Canal+ Group had no
iegal obl:gation with respect to the centent or the maintaining of pregramming on channels made available to Parabole Réumon Parabole
Réunion filed an appeal aganst this judgment On May 22, 2014, the Versailles Court of Appeal declared the appeal filed by Parabole
Réunion inadmissible Parabole Réunion filed an appeal on points of law and filed a second appeal against the Apn! 9, 2013 decision

In parallel, on August 11, 2009, Parabole Réunion filed a complant against Canal+ Group before the Paris Tribunal of First Instance,
requesting that the Tnibunal order Canal+ Group to make available a channel with a level of attractiveness similar to that of TPS Foot in 2006
and to pay damages

On April 26, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a complaint against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distnbution before the Pans Tribunal
of First Instance asking the Tnibunal to acknowledge the failure of the companies of the Group to fulfill their contractual obligations to
Parabole Réunion and the:r commitments to the Ministry of Economy

These two actions have been consofidated mto a single action On Apni 29, 2014, the Pans Tnbunal of first Instance recognized the
contractuat hability of Canal+ Group due to the degradation of the quality of channels made available to Parabole Réunion The Tribunal
ordered an expert report on the damages suffered by Parabole Réunion, rejecting the assessment produced by the latter On November 14,
2014, Canal+ Group appealed against the decision of the Paris Tribunal of First Instance

BelN Sports against the National Rugby League and Canal+ Group

On March 11, 2014, belN Sports lodged a complaint with the French Competition authority agamnst Canal+ Group and the National Rugby
League, challenging the award to Canal+ Group of exclusive broadcasting nights to the “TOP 14 for the 2014-2015 to 2018-2019 seasons
On July 30, 2014, the French Competition Authority imposed intenm measures suspending Canal+ Group's agreement with the National
Rugby League as from the 2015-2016 season and mandated that a new call for tenders process be orgamzed Canal+ Group and the National
Rugby League appealed this decision before the Pans Court of Appeal

On October 9, 2014, the Panis Court of Appeal dismissed the appeal of Canal+ Group and the National Rugby League and directed the
National Rugby League to complete a new tender process for nghts to the “TOP 147 for the 2015-2016 season as well as the following
seasons by no later than March 31, 2015 On October 30, 2014, Canal+ Group appealed against this decision

Action brought by the French Competition Authority regarding Practices in the Pay-TV Sector

On January 9, 2008, further to 1ts voluntary investigation and a complaint by Orange, the French Competition Authority sent Vivendi and
Canal+ Group a notification of atlegations It alleges that Canal+ Group has abused its dominant position in certain Pay-TV markets and that
Vivend) and Canal+ Group colluded with TF1 and M6, on the one hand, and with Lagardére, on the other Vivendi and Canal+ Group have
each denied these aliegations

On November 18, 2010, the French Competition Authonty rendered a decision in which it dismissed the altegations of collusion, in respect of
all parties, and certain other allegations, in respect of Canal+ Group The French Competition Authority requested further investigation
regarding fiber optic TV and catch-up TV, Canal+ Group's exclusive distnbution nghts on channels broadeast by the Group and independent
channels as welt as the extension of exclusive rights on T, M6 and Lagardare channels to fiber optic and cateh-up TV On October 30,
2013, the French Competition Authority took over the investigation sto these aspects of the case

Canal+ Group against TF1, M6, and France Télevision

On December 9, 2013, Canal+ Group filed a complaint with the French Competition Authority against the practices of the TF1, M6 and France
Téléwvision groups in the French-language fiim market Canal+ Group accused them of tnserting pre emption nghts (nto co-production
contracts, in such a way as to discourage competition The French Competition Authonty 15 examining the case

Canal+ Group against TF1, and TMC Régie

On June 12, 2013, Group Canal+ SA and Canal+ Régie filed a complaint with the French Competition Authority agamnst the practices of TF1
and TMC Régie in the television advertising market Group Canal+ SA and Canal+ Régie accused them of cross-promotion, having a single
advertising dwision and refusing to promote the D8 channel during 1ts Jaunch The French Competition Authority 15 examining the case

Private Copying Levy Case

On February 5, 2014, a claim was filed with Court of First Instance of Nanterre (Tribunal de grande instance de Nanterre} by Copie France
who 15 seeking compensation in respect of external hard drives used in cannection with the G5 set-top boxes Copie France claims that the
external dnive used by Canal+ 1s "dedicated” to the set-top boxes and therefore 1t should be treated as an ntegrated hard drive Copre France
believes that the applicable amount of the compensation 1s €45 per hard drive as opposed to €8 7
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Aston France against Canal+ Group

On September 25, 2014, Aston notified the French Competition Authonty about Canal+ Group's detision to stop selling its satelhte
subscription called "cards only" (emabling the recepton of Canal+/Canalsat programs on Canal Ready-labeled satellite decoders,
manufactured and distributed by third parties, including Aston) In parallel, on September 30, 2014, Aston filed a request for injunctive relief
against Canal+ Group before the Commercial Court of Panis, seeking a stay of the decision of the Canal+ Graup to terminate the Canal Ready
partrership agreement and thus stop the marketing of satellite subscriptions called “cards only” On October 17, 2014, the Pans Commercial
Court 1ssued an order denying Aston's requests On November 4, 2014, Aston appealed this decision and on January 15, 2015, the Pans
Court of Appeal, ruling in chambers, granted its request and suspended the decision of Canal + Group to stop selling its “cards only”
subscriptions until the French Competition Authonity renders its decision on the merits of the case

Complaints against Music Industry Majors in the United States

Several complaints have been filed before the Federal Courts in New York and California against Universal Music Group and the other music
industry mayors for alleged anti-competitive practices in the context of sales of CDs and Internet music downloads These complaints have
been consolidated before the Federal Court in New York The motion to dismiss filed by the defendants was granted by the Federal Court an
October 9, 2008, but this decision was reversed by the Secand Circuit Court of Appeals on January 13, 2010 The defendants filed a metion
for rehearing which was denied They filed a petition with the US Supreme Court which was rejected on January 10, 2011 The discovery
pracess Is underway

Complants against UMG regarding Royalties for Digital Downloads

Since 2011, as has been the case with other music industry majors, several purported class action complants have been filed against UMG
by recording artists generally seeking additional royaltes for an line sales of music downloads and master ringtones UMG contests the
merits of these actions

Capitol Records and EMI Music Publishing against MP3tunes

On November 9, 2007, Capitol Records and EMI Music Publishing filed a joint complaint against MP3Tunes and its founder, Michael
Robertson, for copynght infringernent on the sideload com and mp3tunes com websites The tnial was held in March 2014, and, on March
19, 2014, the )ury returned a verdict favorable to EMI and Capital Records It found the defendants hable for knowingly allowing the
unauthorized content on the websites On March 26, 2014, the jury awarded damages in the amount of $41 million On October 30, 2014 the
Court confirmed the verdict but entered judgment in the reduced amount of $122 milion The defendants have appsaled against the
Judgment

Mireille Porte against interscope Records, Inc , Stefam Germanotta and Universal Music France

On July 11, 2013, the artist Mireille Porte {AKA "Orlan”} filed a complaint against Interscope Records, Inc, Stefant Germanotta (AKA “Lady
Gaga"} and Liniversal Music France with the Pans Tribunal of First Instance {Tnbunal de Grande Instance de Panis) for the atleged copynght
infringement of several of Orlan’s artistic works

James Clar against Rihanna Fenty, UMG Recordings, Inc and Universal Music France

On June 13, 2014, the arirst James Clar filed a complaint against Rihanna Fenty, UMG Recordings, fnc and Universal Music France before
the Paris Tnbunal of First Instance (Tnbunal de Grande Instance de Pans) for the alleged infringement of his work

Litigation involving GVT {discontinued operation)

Actions Related to the ICMS Tax

GVT, kike afl other telecommunications operators, 1s party in several Brazihian States to various proceedings concerming the application of the
“ICMS" tax (lmposta Sober Circulagdo de Mercadonas e Prestagdo de Servipos), which is a tax on operations relating to the circulation of
goods and the supply of transport, communication and electneity services

GVT s notably a party to htigation n vanous Brazilian States concerning the application of the ICMS tax on voice telecommunication
services GVT argues that the ICMS tax should not apply to monthly plans Of the 21 proceedings initiated by GVT, all have resulted in
decisions favorable to GVT and 12 are no longer subject to appeal

Actions Related to the FUST and FUNTTEL Taxes in Braal

The Brazihan tax authonties argue that the assessment of the taxes known as “FUST™ (Fundo da Umversalizagdo dos Servigos de
Telecomunicagdos), a federal tax to promote the supply of telecommunications services throughout the whale Brazilan terntory, including in
areas that are not economicatly viable, and “FUNTTEL" {Fundo para Desenvolvimento Tecnofdgioco das Telecomunicagdes), a federal tax to
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finance technologrcal investments in Brazilan telecommumcations services, should be based on the company's gross revenue without
deduction for price reductions or interconnection expenses and other taxes, which would lead to part of that sum being subject to double
taxation GVT 1s challenging this interpretation and has secured a suspension of payment of the sums claimed by the tax authonity from the
federal judge

Proceedings Brought against Telecommunications Operators in Brazil Regarding the Application of the PIS and COFINS taxes

Several proceedings were initiated against all the telecommunications aperators in Brazil, including GVT, seeking to prevent invoices from
being increased by taxes known as “PIS” (Programa de Integragdo Soctal) and "COFINS™ {Contribuwig@o para Financiamento da Segundade
Social}, which are federal taxes that apply to revenue from the provision of tetecommunications services GVT believes that the arguments in
its defense have a stronger basis than those of the historic operators as GVT operates pursuant to a more fiexible license that ailows 1t to
set its own tanffs

7 Forward looking statements

Cautionary note

This Financial Report, notably in Section 2 3, contains forward-looking statements with respect to Vivendr's financial condition, results of
operations, business, strategy, plans and outlook of Vivend:, inciuding the impact of certain transactions and the payment of divdends and
distributions as well as share repurchases Afthough Vivendi believes that such forward-looking statements are based on reascnable
assumptions, such statements are not guarantees of future performance Actual results may differ matenally from the forward-looking
statements as a result of a number of nisks and uncertaintiss, many of which are outside Vivendr's control, including, but nat himited to, the risks
related to antitrust and other regulatory approvals as well as any other approvals which may be required in connection with ceriarn transactions
and the nisks described in the documents of the group filed with the Autonté des Marchés Financiers (the “AMF”) {the French securities
regulator), which are also available in English on Vivend's website (www vivend: com) Accordingly, we caution you against retying on forward
looking statements These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this Financial Report Vivend: disclaims any intantion or
obligation to provide, update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise

8 Other Disclaimers

Ursponsored ADRs

Vivend does not sponsor an Amencan Depositary Receipt {ADR) facility in respect of its shares Any ADR facility currently in existence 1s
“unsponsored” and has no ties whatsoever to Vivend! Vivendi disclaims any hability in respect of any such facility

Translation

This Financial Report 1s an English translation of the French version of the report and 1s provided for informational purposes only This translation
15 qualified in its entirety by the French version, which 15 available on the company's website (www vivendi com) In the event of any
inconsistencies between the French version of this Financial Report and the English transfation, the French version will prevail
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Il - Appendices to the Financial Report: Unaudited
supplementary financial data

1. Non-GAAP measures in Statement of Earnings

Income fram operations, EBITA and adjusted net income, non-GAAP measures, should be considered 1n addition te, and not as a substitute
for, other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance, as presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the related
notes or as descnibed in the Financial Report, and Vivend considers that they are relevant indicators to assess the group’s operating and
financial performance Vivendi Management uses income from operations, EBITA and adjusted net income for reporting, management, and
planning purpases because they better illustrate the underlying performance of continuing operations by excluding most non-recurring and
non-operating items Each of these indicators are defined in Section 4 of this report or in Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for
the year ended December 31, 2014

Reconciliation of EBIT to EBITA and to income from operations

Year ended December 31,

{in mithons of euros} 2014 2013
EBIT (a) 736 637
Adustments
Amcrtization of intangibie assets acquired through business combinations 44 350
Impairment losses on mtangible assets acquired through business combinations {a) 92 B
Other income (a) {203) {88}
Dther charges {a) 30 50
EBITA 999 955
Adjustments
Charges related to
equity-settled share-based compensation plans g 23
Special items exciuded from income from operations

100 153
{including transition/integration costs, and restructuring costs)
Income from operations 1,108 1,131

Recancihiation of earnings attnihutahle to Vivendi SA shareowners to adjusted net income

Year ended December 31

{m millions of euros) 2014 2013
Eamings sttnbutable to Vivendi SA shareowners {a) 4.744 1,967
Adjustments
Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations 344 350
Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations (a) 92 B
Other income [a) {203) {88)
Other charges (a) 30 50
Other financial Income (a) {19} {13)
Qther financial charges (a) 751 300
Earmings from discontinued operations {a} 15,262) (2,633)
of which caprtal gain on the divestiture of SFR {2 378) -
impairment af SFA's goodwall - 2431
capital gain on the dvestiture of Maroc Telecom group (785) -
capital gain on Activision Blizzard shares {84} {2,315)
Change n deferred tax asset related to Vivendi SA's French Tax Group and to the Consolidated
Global Profit Tax Systems 37 {109)
Naon recurring items refated to provision for income taxes 5 28
Provision for Income taxes on adjustments 112) {108)
Nan-controlling interests on adjustments 219 702
Adjusted net income 626 454

a  Asreported in the Consolidated Statement of Eamings
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Ad)justed net income per share

Year ended December 31
2014 2013
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

Adjusted net incoma (in millions of auros) 626 626 454 454
Number of shares {in millions}

Weighted average number of shares outstanding {a) 1,3458 13458 13306 13306
Potential dilutive effects related to share-based compensation - 55 47
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 13458 13513 13306 13353
Adjusted net income per shars (1n euros) 046 046 034 034

a  Net of treasury shares {50,033 shares as of December 31, 2014}

2 Adjustment of comparative Information

In comphance with IFRS 5, GVT (as from the third quarter of 2014), SFR (as from the first quarter of 2014) as well as Marac Telecom group
and Activision Blizzard (as from the second gquarter of 2013) have been reported in Vivend's Consalidated Financial Statements as
discontinued operations Vivend deconsohidated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14,
2014, and October 11, 2013, respectively

In practice, income and charges from these four businesses have been reported as follows
- therr contnbution until the effectve divestiture, if any, to each line of Vivendr's Consolidated Statement of Earmings {before non-
controliing nterests) has been grouped under the line “Eamings from discontinued operatians”,
- their share of net income has been excluded from Vivendi's adjusted net mcome, and
- 1n accordance with IFRS b, these adjustments have been applied to all periods presented to ensure consistency of information

The adjestments to published data for the first quarter and the first half of 2014 are reported below and only relate to GVT

2014
Three months Three months  Six months ended
(in rillions of euros except per share amounts) ended March 31 ended June 30, June 30,
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) (as
previously pubhished) 268 358 626
Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for GVT -83 -88 -7
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) {restated) 185 (il 455
Adjusted net income {as previcusly published) 161 19 355
Reclassifications related to the apphcation of IFRS 5 for GVT -52 - 50 - 102
Adjusted net income {restated) 109 144 253
Adjusted net income per share {as previously published) 012 014 026
Adjusted net income per share (restated) oos o1 019
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The adjustments to data published in the 2013 Annual Report are reported below and relate to GV and SFR

2013
Three months Three months Sixmonths ended

{in midlions of euros except per share amounts} ended March 3i ended June 30 Jung 30
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) {as
published {a)} 629 162 139

Reclassifications related to the apphcation of IFRS 5 far GVT -99 -98 -197

Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for SFR 328 =377 - 705
Adjusted earmings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) (restated) 202 287 489
Adjusted net mcome (as published {a)} 366 479 845

Reclaswifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for GVT -70 67 -137

Reclassifications related to the application of IFAS 5 for SFR -232 -754 - 486
Adjusted net income (restated) 64 158 2
Adjusted net income per share (as published {a)) 0.28 0.36 064
Adjusted net income per share (restated) 005 012 617

2013
Three months Nine months Three months Year ended
ended September  ended September  ended Dacember December 31

{in millions of euros, except per share amounts) 30, 30, 31,
Adjusted earnings hefore mterest and income taxes (EBITA} (as
published {a}) 730 2121 Nn2 2433

Reclassificatons related to the application of IFRS 5 for GVT -1 -298 -107 405

Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for SFR -334 -1,039 -34 -1,073
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) {restated} 295 84 m 955
Adjusted net income (as published (a)} 403 1,248 2 1,540

Reclasstficatons related to the applicatan of IFRS 5 for GVT -7 -2 -62 -274

Reclassificanons related to the application of IFRS 5 for SFR -249 -135 =77 812
Adjusted net income (restated) 9 30 153 454
Adjusted net income per share (as published {a}) 030 094 022 t16
Adjusted net mcome per share {restated) 006 023 on 0.34

a  As published in the 2013 Annual Report
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3. Revenues and EBITA by business segment - 2014 and 2013 quarterly data

{in milhons of euros)

Revenues

Canal+ Group

Universal Music Group

Vivend Village

Elimiration of intersegment transacttions

Total Vivends

EBITA

Canal+ Group
Universal Music Group
Vivend Village
Corporate

Total Vivendi

{in millions of euros)

Revenues

Canal+ Group

Unwversal Music Group

Vivendi Village

Elimination of intersegment transactions

Total Vivendh

EBITA

Canal+ Group
Universal Music Group
Vivend Village
Corporate

Total Vivends

2014
1st Quarter ended  Znd Quarter ended  3rd (uarter ended  4th Quarter ended
March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec N
1317 1,350 1,300 1489
984 1.019 1,094 1,460
21 25 23 27
{5} (3 {5) {5
317 2389 2412 29m
175 245 206 {43}
56 97 121 281
(20) (67) - 8
(26) (5) a7 i22)
185 210 310 34
2013
1st Quarter ended  2nd Quarter ended  3rd Quarter ended  4th Quarter ended
March 31 June 3¢ Sept 30 Dec 3t
1,286 1,314 1257 1,454
1,091 1,145 1162 1,488
16 17 18 20
{5} {3) (5) (3}
2,388 24713 2432 2,959
183 247 217 {36)
95 88 12 256
{14} {23 {20 {23)
{22} {25) {14 126)
202 287 295 1m
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lll - Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2014

Statutory Auditors’ report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

To the Shareholders,

In compliance with the assignment entrusted to us by your Annual General Shareholders’ Meetings, we hereby report to you for the year
ended December 31, 2014 on

« the audit of the accompanying consolidated financ:al statements of Vivend:, hereinafter referred to as “the Company”,

» the justification of our assessments,

» the specific verfications required by law
These consolidated financial statements have been approved by your management board Our rolg 15 to express an opinion on the financial
statements, based on our audit

1 Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France, those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit
involves performing procedures, using sampling technigues or cther methods of selection, to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements An audit also includes evatuating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made, as well as the overall presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our audit opinion

In our opiion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets and liabilities and of the results of its operations
for the year then ended 1n accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union

It Justfication of our Assessments

In accordance with the requirements of article L 823-9 of the French commercial code {Cods de commerca) relating to the justification of our
assessments, we draw your attention to the following matters

+ Note 1358 to the financial statements descrbes the accounting principles applicable to financial assets, including non-consolidated
mvestments We examined the accounting treatment applied to the group's investment in Numencable — SFR We ensured that Note
31 to the consolidated financial statements gives apprapriate disclosures thereon

« Note 136 to the consolidated financial statements describes the applicable critena for classification and accounting for discontinued
operations or assets held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 We venfied the correct application of this accounting principle and we
ensured that Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements provides approprate disclosures with respect to management’s position
as of December 31, 2014

= Ateach financial year end, your Company systematically performs impairment tests on goodwill and assets with indefinite useful lives,
and also assesses whether there 1s any indication of impairment of other tangible and intangible assets, according to the methods
described 1n Note 1 3 57 to the consolidated financial statements We examined the methods used to perform these impairment tests,
as well as the main assumptions and estimates, and ensured that Notes 1 35 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements provide
appropr:ate disclosures thereon

» Note 139 to the consolidated financial statements describes the accounting principles applicable to deferred tax and Note 138
describes the methods used to assess and recognize provisions We venfied the correct apphcation of these accounting principles and
also examined the assumptions underlying the the positions as of Becember 31, 2014 We ensured that Note 6 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements gives appropnate information on tax assets and liabilities and on your company's tax positions

« Notes 138 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements describe the methods used to assess and recognize provisions for
litigation We examined the methods used within the group to identify, calculate, and determine the accounting for such litigation We
also examined the assumptions and data underlying the estimates made by the Company As stated in Note 1 3 1 to the consolidated
financial statements, facts and circumstances may lead to changes in estimates and assumpt:ons which could have an impact upon the
reported amount of provisions

Our assessments were made as part of our audit of the consohidated financial statements taken as a whale, and therefore contributed to the
opinion we formed which 15 expressed in the first part of this report
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Il Specific verifications

We have also verfied, in accordance with professional standard applicable in France, the information provided in the group management
report, as required by law

We have no matters to repart as 1ts fair presentat:on and its consistency with the consolidated financial statements

Paris-La Défense, February 27, 2015

The statutory auditors
French oniginal signed by

KPMG AUDIT ERNST & YOUNG et Autres
Département de KPMG S A
Baudowin Griton Jean-Yves Jégourel
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Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Revenues
Cost of revenues
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Restructuring charges and other aperating charges and income
Impairment losses an intangible assets acquired through business combinations
Other income
Other charges
Earnings hefore interest and income taxes {EBIT}
Income from equity affiliates
Interest
Incgme from investments
Other financiat income
Other financiat charges
Earnings from continuing operations before provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Earnings from continuing operations
Earnings from discontinued operations
Earnings
Of which
Earnings attributable to Vivend) SA shareowners
of which earmings from continuing operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners
earnings from discontinued operations attributable 1o Vivendi SA shareowners

Non-controlling interests
of which earnings from continuing operations
earnings from discontinued operations

Earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share - basic
Earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - dituted
Earnings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share - basic
Earnings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share - diluted

Earnings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share - basic
Earmings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - diluted

in millions of euros, except per share amounts, In euros

Note
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Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 {a}
10,089 10,252
{6,121} (6,097)
{3.155) (3,358)
{158) (192)
{92) (6)
203 88
{30) {50}
7136 637
{18} {21)
(96} (266)
3 66
19 13
(751} {300)
{(107) 129
{130} 17
{237 146
5262 2,633
5,025 2,119
4,744 1,967
{290) 43
5034 1924
281 812
53 103
228 709
022) 003
022) 003
374 145
373 144
352 148
3n 147

a  Incompliance with IFRS 5 - Non-curremt Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, GVT (as from the third quarter of 2014), SFR
{as from the first quarter of 2014) as well as Maroc Telecom and Activision Blizzard {as from the second quarter of 2013} have been
reported n the Consalidated Staternent of Earmings as discontinued operations {please refer to Note 3} Vivend: deconsolidated SFR,
Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11, 2013, respectively The

adjustments to praviously published data are presented in Note 31

The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of the Conschidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended Dacember 31,

(in millions of euros) Note 2014 2013
Earmings 5,025 2,779
Actuanal gams/losses) refated to employes defined benefit plans, net (58} (23}
ltems not reclassified to profit or loss {68} (23}
Forgign cusrency translation adjustments 718 {1,428}
Unrealized gains/{losses), net 936 58
Other impacts, net {94) 15
Items to be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss 1,620 (1,356}
Charges and income directly recognized in equity 8 1,552 (1,379}
Total comprehensive income 6,577 1,400
of which
Total comprehensive income attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners 6,312 789
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests 265 611
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Conselidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

(in miihons of euros) Note December 31,2014  December 31, 2013
ASSETS
Goodwill 9 9329 17.147
Non-current content assets 10 2,550 2,623
Other intangible assets " 229 4,306
Property, plant and equipment 12 nz 7,541
Investments in equity affiliates 13 306 446
Non-current financial assets 14 6,144 654
Deferred tax assets 6 Fali] 733 I
Non-current assets 19,985 33,450 i
inventories 15 114 330 '
Current tax receivables 6 234 527 !
Current content assets 10 1,135 1,149 I
Trade accounts recevable and other 15 1983 4,898
Current financial assets 14 49 45
Cash and cash equivatents 16 6845 1041

10,360 8,020
Assets held for sale - 1,078
Assets of discontinued businesses 3 5393 6,562
Current assets 15,753 15,730
TOTAL ASSETS 35,738 49,180
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital 7434 7,368
Additional paid-in capital 5160 8,381
Treasury shares (1} {1
Retained earnings and other 10,13 1,709
Vivend: SA shareowners' equity 22 506 17,457
Non-controlling interests 382 1573
Total equity 17 22,988 19,030
Non-current provisiens 18 2,888 2904
Long-term borrowings and other financial liabilties 21 2074 8737
Deferred tax liabiiities 8 657 680
Other non-current habilities 15 121 757
Non-current halhties 5,740 13,078
Current provisions 18 290 619
Short-term borrowings and other financial hiabilities 21 273 3,529
Trade accounts payable and other 15 5,306 10.416
Current 1ax payables 6 a7 79

5916 14,643

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale - -
Lisbilities associated with assets of discontinued businesses 3 1,084 2,429
Current habilities 7.010 17072
Total liabilties 12,750 30,150
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 35,738 49,180

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financ:al Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31
{inmithans of euros) Nate 2014 7013 {a)
Operating activities
EBIT 4 736 637
Adjustments 23 447 557
Content investments net 19 {148)
Gross cash provided by oparating activities befors mcoma tax paid 1.202 1,045
Other changes in net working capitat 15 {123) 36
Nat cash provided by operating sctivities before income tax paid 1072 1082
Income tax paid net 63 280 205
Net cash provided by opsreting sctivities of continuing operstions 1359 1287
Net cash provided by operating actrwities of discontinued operations 3 2234 3,953
Net cash provided by operating activities 1593 5,240
Investing activities
Capital expendiiures 2 {249) 1278)
Purchases of consolidated companies, after acquired cash {100) {42)
Irvestments In equety affiliates 13 8" -
Increase i financial assets H 11,057) {65)
Investments 11.493} {385}
Proceeds from salas of property, plant equipment and intangible assets z 5 3
Proceeds from sales of consolidated companies after divested cash 3 16,929 2,139
Disposal of equity affiiates 13 - 8
Decrease In financial assets 14 978 124
Divestitures 17.613 3504
Dwvidends receved from equity affiliates 4 3
Drvidends recernved from unconsolidated companies 2 5
Net cash provided byfused for} investing activitias of continuing operations 16,326 3176
Net cash provided by/{used for) investing actvities of discontnued operations 3 {2034) {4 363)
Net cash provided by/lused for} investing activities 14,292 1,187}
Financing activities
Net proceeds from 1ssuance of comman shares in connection with Vivendi SA s share based
compensation plans 20 197 195
Sales/lpurchases} of Vivend! SA's treasury shares 132) -
Dastnbution to Vivend SA's shareowners 17 11348) (1325)
QOther transactions with shareowners 2 {1046)
Dwidends pard by consolidated companies to thew non controlling interests {34) (33)
Ti tiens with sh s 1.219) 2,209}
Setting up of long term borrowings and increase in other long term financial liabilities 21 3 2405
Principal payment er long term borowings and decrease in gther long term financial habilities A (1670} (1.910)
Principat payment en shart term barrowings 2 (7,680 {5161)
Other changes 1n short-term borrowings and other financial habihities 21 140 36
Interest pard, net 5 {36) {266)
Qther cash items related to financial actvities {606} {330}
Transactions on borrowings and other financial lrabilities {9,909/ 15,226}
Net cash provided byf(used for) financing activities of continiung operstians (11,128) {7.435)
Net cash provided by/{used for) financing activities of discontinued operations 3 {756} 1,017
Net cash provided by/{used for} financing activities (11,834} (6413}
forexgn currency translation adjustments of contenuing operations 10 (20)
Foreign currency translation adjustments of discontinued operations 3 (4 72)
Change in cesh end cash equivalents 6,007 (2.457)
Reclassification of discontinued operatons’ cash and cash equivalents 3 {203) 1396)
Cash and cash equivalents -
Atbeginning of the penod 16 1.0 389
Atend of the penod 16 6,845 1,001

a Incompliance with IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, GVT {as from the third quarter of 2014), SFR
(as from the first quarter of 2014) as well as Maroc Telecom and Actwision Blizzard (as from the second quarter of 2013) have been
reported in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Fiows as discontinued operations (please refer to Note 3) Vivend: deconsolidated SFR,
Maroc Telecom group, and Activision Blizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11, 2013, respactively These
adjustments are presented in Note 31 The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statements of Changes n Equity

Year ended Decembor 31, 2014

Capitul Reteined vamings end sther
Cormmon shares Addivonal Foresgn curmency
Number of shares Shara paxd-n ‘z‘: Subtotal m:n-i Net “'I:I:I:: trenslation Subtotal [Totat vty
{in malbona of euras except number of shares| |3 thouzandzl tab rapstal e aduicmonty
EALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31 2013 1329810 1% (31 m] s\ 5] [ (3] [ 18,00
Attributabls to Yivand! SA shareowners 1333810 tA ] a2z i1} 1574 I 5 (2 oa} (-] 17457
Attributabiv to sou-controliing interests - 18382 i} (58} 1573 1273 |
Gyidistributiorns = Vivend] SA =5 T3 ® TazZ21] - [<3r T35 ] [
SxiesApurchases| of Vivands SA 1 Toasury shares @ a2 )
Allecation of Vivend: SA 3 2033 rest (2004 c2o0d) 2004 2004
Dn o Yivend: SA 5 gh {€1 pex shara} (1,348 (.38 (13489
Capital tat 10 Vivands SA 2 share-besed glans 1es 66 m n 29 na ne m
of winch axercpe of STock OPRONE DY BXOCUTIVE MaRa0mAN And BTOIGY00S 1264 & 135 197 197
Cha) in Vivaodi SA s ownership ictersst in its sebsidiaries that do not resuft in # Joxs sf oeatrol - L) L] L)
CHANOES N EQUITY Amlnmﬁd‘li VIVEND] SA GHAREGWNERS (A 997 3 P2 [SE] 1552 152 )|
7 Toms by ihutlons 10 troliing aterasts - Traa¥ {7 77] |
of which drvidends paid by subsicianias to non controiling intaresty agh on 107
Chsnges 1x nan controlling interasts thet resshl In & gainfiozs} of controi - 1346} (1348} {1348}
of which sals of the 53% wierest n Marot Telecom poup {1.328) 1.328) iy 3z28)|
Cha In oow-coctrolling interssts that do wol resalt kn & geinfliozs) of vortral - 4} 18} {4}
TN S EALITY ATTATSUTABLEYS NOR-CONTROT A (T ERESTET8) & (L) L]
Earnings - Loxs [T} i
Che and income dire recogwized In e - ezt * bl 155 152
TOTAL COMPRERENSIVE INCOME (C) 4,881 % m [Lyi) &5
TOTAL CHANGES OVER THE PERIDD (A+B+C) 11881 &8 (2.221) 215 5358 a7 778 71y .!.EI
Artrabutable i Vivondi SA sharsownars 11830 & 322)) 3 155) 4581 x5 788 FEC) 5148
Attributatie o non-controfing inlerasts it EJ,‘ F ﬂﬂ 1191} {1 mﬂ
BALANCE A% OF DECEMBER 1, 2014 351807 Tash 5100 ] 1281 | 6w RED T13m0] s |z
__ Avtributabls to Vivend! SA sharwovwners 1391 801 2404 5180 | 123 10185 112 (1222} w8 2008
Attribitakie to san-controlling interests ] [ {5} 2 322

The sccompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolated Finantial Statements
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Cepital Astained samings and ather
Corrrmon shards Additionat Feraign cumency
Nombar of shares_| _ Share pad n r:.:: Subotat ﬁ::’d N"ﬂmﬂ ansiation Subiotal [P SUEY)
(i mithons of euros except humbes of shares) iy thousands) tal capital e o ad! stments.
BALANCE A5 OF JANUARY 01 2013 323,962 T (¥l ) 50 [ iz [ 576 L
Attrib, 1o Vivendi SA 1,323,982 7.282 8271 125) 15,528 3529 2 1891} 2757 13325
|~ Amtributable 1o non—controliing nterests 2817 [£] 152 2900 2906
i F to Vivendi SA £ 15.648 [] 0 E 20 71257 Tize] 7076
Didends paid by Vivendi SA i€1 par share} {1329) 1325 1325}
Capital maezss related to Viventi SA s share-basad compensation plans 15648 86 o k) 0 ) i) 243
of which Vivendh Employes Stock Puchase Pans Wiy 25 2013) 12288 58 81 3 149
Changes in Vivend! SA's hip b 12 lts sabsidisries thet da not result ix a tozs of control - st} - {se1} i551)
of which acquisition ot Lagadars Group s non controlling interest in: Canal+ France {635) (636} 113
GHANGES IN EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO VIVENIN SA SHARECWNERS (A) 15608 [} 19 3 220 L] 8T T1857))
Contributions By/distibutCns 1 RON-CONGONIIng ITHeIeass - - [ - 431} (50
of whith dividend paid by subsidianes o non controlling Interests 3y (431} {431}
Changes in non<ontrofitng inferasts that ragult in » geinfiess) of control - (1273 - 1273 (1273)
of which #ala of 88% of tha ownarshap intarast i Attivision Blizzard {1214 (1272 1.272)
Chenges ir roa-controiling iniwrasts that de oot result in & gainXloss) of contro! - 100} - (300} {200)
of which acquisition of Lagadata Gi s non controlling interast (n Canal+ Franca 287 387} {387)|
CHARGES IN EGUITY ATTRIDUTABLE YO RON CONTROLUING INTERESTS (B - [[7] (2.004) {2.004)
Farmings - 7 B 2778 ZIH |
Charges and income directly recagaized in egurty i 58 {1 428} (1,579} {1373)
_q_'rout COMPRERENGIVE INCOME (C} - Zi ] 0429 7,400 1400
TOTAL CHANGES GVER THE PERIOD {A+B+C) 15,608 3 10 H 0 TaTio] 11 429] [ 12.287)]
Attrshutsble ta Vivend, SA sharsawners 15648 3 110 24 2 75 56 {1213) {1 065} 1668}
] ntarests 11185) 2 (216) {7393} (1393
[EALANCE A3 OF DECEMBER 312013 1333510 ) 3381 [} V5 748 o] 8 213 37 1900
Attributeble 1o Vivend] SA shareowners 1,339.610 7368 8381 (1} 15,748 3504 3 12.080f 1709 17457
Attributeble to non-controlling interests - 1632 {1t 58} 157 157
The accompanying notes are an sntegral part of the Consoiidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vivend: 1s a hmited hablity company (société ananyme} incorporated under French taw and subject to French commercial company law
including the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce} Vivend) was incorporated on December 18, 1987, for a term of 99 years expiring
on December 17, 2086, except in the event of an early dissolution or unless its term is extended Its registered office 1s located at 42 avenue
de Friedland - 75008 Paris (France} Vivend 1s histed on Evronext Paris {Compartment A}

Vivend operates a number of companies that are leaders in content and media Canal+ Group 15 the French leader in pay-TV and is also
present in African countries, Poland, and Vietnam, its subsidiary Studiocanal, 1s a fead:ng European player in the production, acquisition,
distribution and sale of films and TV series Universal Music Group 1s the world's leader in music Vivendi Village brings together Vivend:
Ticketing, Wengo (expert counseling), Watchever {subscription video-on-demand} In addition, Vivendi controls GVT, the leading Brazilian
alternative operator

Vivend! deconsohdated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014 and October 11, 2013,
respectively, each date being the date of their effective sale by Vivendi Moreover, as a result of the plan to sell GVT, this business has been
reparted in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Eamings as a discontinued operation, in accordance with IFRS 5

The Consohidated Financial Statements reflect the financial and accounting situation of Vivendi and its subsidiaries {the “group”} together
with interests in equity affiliates Amounts are reported in euros and afl values are rounded to the nearest muillion

On February 11, 2015, at a meeting held at the headquarters of the company, the Management Board approved the Financial Report and the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 They were examined by the Audit Committee at 1ts meeting held on
February 20, 2015 and the Supervisory Board, at its meeting held on February 27, 2015

On Aprtt 17, 2015, the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 will be submutted for approval at Vivend:'s
Annuat General Shareholders’ meeting

Note 1 Accounting policies and valuation methods

11 Compliance with accounting standards

The 2014 Consolidated Financial Statements of Vivendi SA have been prepared i accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS} as endorsed by the European Union (EU}, and in accordance with IFRS published by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) with mandatory application as of December 31, 2014

Vivend: applied from the first quarter of 2014 IFRIC 21 interpretation — Lewses, 1ssued by the IFRS Interpretation Committee (IFRS IC} on May
20, 2013, endorsed by the EU on June 13, 2014 and published n the EU Official Journal on June 14, 2014 IFRIC 21 clarfies the treatment of
certain levies, in accordance with |AS 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

IFRIC 21 specifically addresses the accounting of a hability to pay a levy imposed by public authonties on entities in accordance with
legislation {1 e, taws or regulations), except for income tax and value-added taxes Applying this interpretation has led to the modification,
where necessary, of the analysis of the obligating event tnggernng recognition of the liability This interpretation, which mandatornly applies to
accounting perods beginning on or after January 1, 2014 {and retraspectively as from January 1, 2013), had no matenal impact on Vivend's
Financial Statements

In addition and as a reminder, as from the Condensed Financial Statements for the first quarter of 2013, Vivend: voluntanly opted for the early
application, with retrospective effect as from January 1, 2012, of the standards relating to the principles of consoldation {FRS 10 -
Consoitdated Financial Statements, IFRS 11 — Jont Arangements, \FRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests i Other Entries, IAS 27 — Separate
Financial Statements, and 1AS 28 — /nvestments n Associates and Jomnt Ventures (refer to Note 1 to the Consohidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2013 — pages 220 to 235 of the Annual Report) The application of these standards had no maternial impact
on Vivend:’s Financial Statements
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12 Presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
121 Consohdated Statement of Earnings

The main ling 1tems presented in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earnings are revenues, income from equity affiliates, interest, provision
for incomes taxes, earnings from discontinued or held for sale operations, and eamings The Consohdated Statement of Eamings presents a
subtotal for £arnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT) equal to the difference between charges and income {excluding those financing activities,
equity affiliates, discontinued or held for sale operations, and income taxes)

The charges and income related to financing activities consist of interest, income from investments, as well as other financiat charges and
income as defined sn paragraph 1 2 3 and presented 1in Note 5

122 Consohdated Statement of Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities 15 calculated using the indirect method based on EBIT EBIT is adjusted for non-cash items and
changes in net working capital Net cash provided by operating activities excludes the cash impact of financial charges and 'income and net
changes in working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

Net cash used for investing activities

Net cash used for investing activities includes changes in net working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
as well as cash from investments {particularly dividends receved from equity affibates) 1t also includes any cash flows ansing from the gamn
or loss of control of subsidianes

Net cash used for financing activities

Net cash used for financing activities includes net interest paid on borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts, as well as the
cash impact of other items related to financing activities such as premiums from the early redemption of borrowings and the settlement of
denvative instruments It also includes cash flows from changes in ownership interests n a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
{including increases in ownership interests)

123 Operating performance of each operating segment and the group

Vivend considers Adjusted Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBITA), Adjusted net income {ANI), and Cash Flow From Operations {CFFO), non-
GAAP measures, to be relevant indicators of the group’s operating and financial performance

EBITA

Vivend: considers EBITA, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the performance of its operating segments as reported in
the segment data The method used n calculating EBITA excludes the accounting impact of the amortization of intangible assets acquired
through business combinations, impairment losses on goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, and other
income and charges related to financial investing transactions and to transactions with shareowners This enables Vivend: to measure and
compare the operating performance of operating segments regardless of whether their performance (s driven by the operating segment’s
organic growth or by acquisitions

The difference between EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of intangible assets acquired through busimess combinations, impairment
losses on goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, as well as other financial Income and charges related to
financial investing transactions and transactions with shareowners that are included in EBIT The charges and come related to financial
investing transactions include gains and losses recognized in business combinations, capital gams or losses related to divestiures or the
depreciation of equity affil:ates and other financial investments, as well as gains or losses incurred from the gain or loss of control in a
business

Adjusted net income

Vivend! considers adjusted net income, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group's operating and financial
performance Vivend Management uses adjusted net income because 1t better illustrates the underlying performance of continuing operations
by excluding most non-recurning and non-operating items Adjusted net income includes the following items

e EBITA(*"),

e ncome from equity affiliates (*){**),

e interest{*){**}, equal to interest expense on borrowings net of interest mmcome eamed on cash and cash equivalents,
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s income from investments {*) {**), including dividends and interest received from unconsolidated companies, and
+ taxes and nan-contrelling interests related to these items

It does not include the following items

s amortization of intangibles acquired through business combinations {**) as well as impaiment losses on goodwill and other
intangibles acquired through business combinations (*) {**),

=  other income and charges related to financial investing transactions and to transactions with shareowners (*}, as defined above,

e other financial charges and income {*} (**), equal to the profit and loss relaled to the change in value of financial assets and the
termination or change in value of financial liabilities, which primanly include changes in the fair value of derivative instruments,
premiums from the early redemptian of borrowings, the early unwinding of dervative instruments, the cost of rssuing or cancelling
credit factities, the cash impact of foreign exchange transactions {other than those related to operating activities, included in the
EBIT), as well as the effect of undiscounting assets and liabifities, and the financial components of employee benefits {interest cost
and expected return on plan assets),
earmings from discontinued operations {*) (**}, and
provisions for income taxes and adustments attributable to non-controliing interests and non-recurning tax items {notably the
changes In deferred tax assets pursuant to Vivendi SA’s 1ax group and the Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems, and the reversal
of tax habilities relating to nsks extingwshed over the penod)

{*} ltems as presented m the Consolidated Statement of Eamings, (**) ltems as reported by each operating segment

Cash Flow From Operations (CFFO}

Vivendi considers cash flow from operations {CFFO), a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group’s operating and
financial performance The CFFO includes net cash provided by operating activities, before income tax paid, as presented in the Statement of
Cash Flows, as well as dividends received from equity affiliates and unconsolidated compamies It also includes capital expendituras, net that
relate to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

The difference betwsen CFFQ and net cash prowided by operating activities, before income tax, consists of dividends received from equity
affiliates and unconsohidated companies and capital expenditures, net, which are included in net cash used for investing activities and of
income tax paid, net, which are excluded from CFFO

124 Consohdated Statement of Financial Position

Assets and labilities that are expected to be realized, or intended for sale or consumption, within the entity's normal operating cycle
{generally 12 months), are recorded as current assets or liabilities 1f their matunty exceeds this penod, they are recorded as non-current
assets or liabiities Moreover, certamn reclassifications have been made to the 2013 and 2012 Consolidated Financial Statements to conform
to the presentation of the 2014 and 2013 Consolidated Financial Statements

1.3  Principles governing the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Pursuant to IFRS principles, notably IFRS 13 — fair Value Measuremsnt relating to measurement and disclosures, the Consolidated Financial

Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, with the exception of certain assets and habilities detaded below

The Consolidated Financ:al Statements include the financial statements of Vivend: and its subsidiaries after elimenating intragroup items and
transactions Vivencdi has a December 31 year-end Subsidiaries that do not have a December 31 year-end prepare intenm financial
statements at that date, except when their year-end falls within the three months prior to December 31

Acquired subsidiaries are included 1n the Conschdated Financtal Statements of the group as of the date of acquisition
131 Use of estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in comphance with IFRS requires the group’s management to make certain estimates
and assumptions that they consider reasonable and realistic Although these estimates and assumptions are regularly reviewed by Vivendi
Management based, i particular, on past or anticipated achievements, facts and circumstances may lead to changes in these estimates and
assumgtions which could have an impact on the reported amount of group assets, liabilities, equity or eamings

The main estimates and assumptions relate to the measurement of

e revenue estrmates of provisions for returns and price guarantees {please refer to Note 1 3 4),
s provisions nisk estmates, performed on an dwvidual basis, noting that the occurrence of events during the course of procedures
may lead to a nsk reassessment at any time {please refer to Notes 1 3 8 and 18],
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« employes benefits assumptions are updated annually, such as the probability of employees remaining within the group until
retirement, expected charges in future compensation, the discount rate and inflation rate (please refer to Notes 13 8 and 19,

e share-based compensation assumptions are updated annually, such as the estimated term, volatity and the estimated dvidend
yield {please refer to Notes 1 3 10.and 20),

s certain financial instruments fair value estimates (please refer to Notes 1 358, 1 37 and 22},

+ deferred taxes estimates concerning the recognition of deferred tax assets are updated annually with factors such as expected tax
rates and future tax results of the group (please refer to Notes 1 3 9 and 6},

« goodwill and other intangible assets valuation methods adopted for the dentification of intangible assets acquired through
bustness combinations {please refer to Notes 135 2),

s goodwill, intangible assets with indefimte useful hives and assets in progress assumptions are updated annually relating te
impairment tests performed on each of the group’s cash-generating units {CGUs), future cash flows and discount rates (please refer
toNotes 1357, 9,11, and 12), and

« UMG content assets estimates of the future performance of heneficiarnes who were granted advances are recognized In the
Statement of Financial Position (please refer to Notes 135 3 and 10)

132  Prninciples of consolidation
Alist of Vivendr's major subsidianies, joint ventures and associated entities is presented in Note 27

Conschdation

All companes n which Vivend: has a controlling interest, namely those 1n which 1t has the power to govern financral and operational policies
in arder to obtain benefits from thewr operations, are fully consolidated

The new model of control, introduced by IFRS 10 which supersedes the revised IAS 27 - Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, and
interpretation SIC 12 - Consohdation - Special Purpose Entitres, 18 based on the following three cntena to be fulfilled simultaneously to
conclude that the parent company exercises control

¢ 3 parent company has power over a subsidiary when the parent company has existing nights that give it the current ability to direct
the retevant activities of the subsidiary, 1 &, the activities that significantly affect the subsidiary’s returns Power may anise from
existing or potential voting rights, or contractual agreements Voting nghts must be substantial, 1 e , they shall be exercisable at any
time without limitation, particularly during decisian making related to significant activities The assessment of the exercise of power
depends on the nature of the subsidiary’s relevant activities, the intemal decision-making process, and the allocation of nghts
among the subsidiary’s other shareowners,

s the parent company Is exposed, or has rights, to vanable retums from its involvement with the subsidiary which may vary as a result
of the subsidiary’s performance The concept of returns 1s broadly defined and includes, among other things, dvidends and other
economic benefit distnbutions, changes in the value of the investment in the subsidiary, economies of scale, and business
synerges, and

« the parent company has the ability to use its power to affect the returns Exercising power without having any impact on returns
does not qualify as control

Consol:dated Financial Statements of a group are presented as If the group was a single economic entrty with two categories of owners {1)
the owners of the parent company (Vivendl SA shareowners) and {11) the owners of non-controlling interests A non-controlling interest 1s
defined as the interest in a subsidiary that 15 not attnibutable, directly or indirectly, to a parent As a result, changes to a parent company's
ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control only impact equity, as control does not change within the economic
entity Hence, m the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a consolidated entity after January 1, 2009, Vivend: recognizes the
difference between the acquisition price and the carrying value of non-controlling interests acquired as a change in equity attnbutable to
Vivend) SA shareowners Conversely, any acquisition of control achieved in stages or a loss of control gives nse 1o profit or loss i the
statement of eamings

Accounting for joint arrangements

IFRS 11, which supersedes AS 31 - Financial Reporting of Interests i Joint Ventures, and interpretation SIC 13 - Jamtly Controlfed Entities -
Non-monetary Contributtons by Venturers, establishes principies for financial reporting by parties to a jomnt arrangement

In a joint arrangement, parties are bound by a contractual arrangement, giving these parties joint control of the arrangement An entity that is
a party to an arrangement shall assess whether the contractual arrangement gives all the parties or a group of the parties, control of the
arrangement collectively Once 1t has been established that all the parties or a group of the parties collectively control the arrangement, joint
control exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unamimous consent of the parties that collectively control the
arrangement
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Joint arrangements are classified into two categories

* |oint operations these are Joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have nghts to the
assets, and obligations for the hiabilities, relating to the arrangement Those parties are called joint operators A joint operator shall
recognize 100% of wholly-owned assets/liabilities, expenses/revenues of the joint operation, and its share of any of those items
held jointly, and

« |oint ventures these are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement Those parties are called joint venturers Each joint venturer shall recognize its interest in a jont venturs
as an investment, and shall account for that investment using the equity method in accordance with IAS 28 (please refer below)

The elimination of proportionate consolidation for joint ventures has no impact on Vivendi, which already accounted for companies that were,
directly or indirectly, jointly controlied by Vivend: under the equity method, and a limited number of ather shareholders under the terms of a
contractual arrangement

Equity accounting
Entities over which Vivend: exercises sign/ficant influence as well as joint ventures are accounted for under the equity method

Significant (nfluence 1s presumed to exist when Vivend: holds, directly or indirectly, at least 20% of the voting rights in an entity uniess it can
be clearly demonstrated that Vivendi does not exercise a significant influence  Sigrificant influence can be evidenced through other cnteria,
such as representation on the hoard of directors or the entity's equivalent goveming body, participation in policy-making of financial and
operational processes, matenial transactions with the entity or the interchange of managenal persannel

133 Foreign currency translation

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in mithans of euros The functional currency of Vivend: SA and the presentation currency
of the group 1s the euro

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are inrtiatly recorded in the functional currency of the entity at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction At the closing date, foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the entity’s fungtional currency at the
exchange rate prevailing on that date All foreign currency differences are expensed, with the exception of differences resulting from
borrowings in foreign currencies which constitute a hedge of the net investment in a foreign entity These differences are allocated directly to
charges and income directly recognized in equity until the divestiture of the net investment

Financial statements denominated in a foreign currency

Except in cases of significant exchange rate fluctuation, financial statements of subsidiaries, joint ventures or other associated entities for
which the functional currency 1s not the euro are translated into euros as follows the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 1s
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the peniod, and the Consclidated Statement of Earnings and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flow are translated using average monthly exchange rates for the period The resulting translation gains and losses are recorded as foreign
currency transiation differences in charges and income directly recognized m equity In accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend: elected to reverse the
accumulated foreign currency translation differences against retained eamings as of January 1, 2004 These foreign currency translation
differences resulted from the translation into euros of the financial statements of subsidiaries that use foreign currencies as therr functional
currencies Consequently, these adjustments are not apphed to earnings on the subsequent divestiture of subsidiaries, jomt ventures or
associates whose functional currency 15 not the euro

134 Revenues from operations and associated costs
Revenues from operations are recorded when it 1s probable that future economic benefits will be obtained by the group and when they can be
rehably measured Revenues are reported net of discounts

1341 Canal+ Group

Pay and free-to-air television

Revenues from television subscription services for terrestrial, satellite or cable pay-telewision platforms are recognized over the service penod,
net of gratuties granted Revenues from advertising ate recognized over the period during the advertising commereials are broadcast
Revenues from ancillary services (such as interactive or video-on-demand services) are recognized when the service 1s rendered Subscriber
management and acquis/tion casts, as wel! as television distribution costs, are included in selling, general and administrative expenses
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Equipment rentals

IFRIC 4 - Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease, applies to equipment for which a rnght of use is granted Egquipment lease
revenues are generally recognized on a straight-line basis over the Iife of the lease agreement

Film and television programming

Theatrical revenues are recognized as the films are screened Revenues from film distnbution and from video and tetevision or pay television
licensing agreements are recognized when the films and television programs are available for telecast and all other conditions of sale have
been met Home video product revenues, less a pravision for estimated returns {please refer to Note 1 3 4 3) and rebates, are recognized upon
shipment and availability of the product for retail sale Amortization of film and television capitalized and acquisition costs, theatrical print
costs, home wvideo inventory costs and television and home video marketing costs are included in costs of revenues

1342 Unwersal Music Group (UMG)

Recorded music

Revenues from the physical sale of recorded music, net of a prowision for estimated returns {please refer to Note 134 3) and rebates, are
recogmzed upon shipment to third parties, at the shrpping point for products sold free on board (FOB} and on delivery for products sold free on
destination

Revenues from the digital sale of recorded music, for which UMG has sufficient, accurate, and reliable data from certain distributors, are
recogmvized based on thewr estimate at the end of the month in which those sales were made to the final customer In the absence of such
data, revenues are recognized upon notification by the distribution platform (on-line or mobile music distributer} to UMG of a sale to the final
customer

Music publishing

Revenues from the third-party use of copynghts on musical compositions owned or administered by UMG are recognized when royalty
statements are received and collectability 1s assured

Costs of revenues

Costs of revenues include manufacturing and distnbution costs, royalty and copyright expenses, artists” costs, recording costs, and direct
overheads Selling, general and adm:nistrative expenses primanly include marketing and advertising expenses, selling costs, provisions for
doubtful receivables and indsrect overheads

1343 Other

Prowisions for estimated returns and price guarantees are deducted from sales of products to custemers through distributors The
provisions are estimated based on past sales statistics and take into account the ecenomic environment and product sales forecast to final
customers

Selling, general and admimistrative expenses primanly incfude salaries and employee benefits, rent, consulting and service fees,
insurance costs, travel and entertainment expenses, administrative department costs, provisions for receivables and other operating
eXpenses

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred

Slotting fees and cooperative advertising expenses are recorded as a reduction in revenues However, cooperative advertising at UMG
I1s treated as a marketing expense and expensed when its expected benefit 1s individualized and can be estimated

135 Assets

1351 Capitalized financial interest

Until December 31, 2008, Vivend! did not capitalize financial interest incurred during the construction and acquisition period of intangible
assets, and property, pfant and equipment Since January 1, 2009, according to amended IAS 23 - Borrowing Costs, this interest s included in
the cost of qualifying assets Vivendi applies this amendment to qualifying assets for which the commencement date for capitalization of
costs Is January 1, 2009 onwards
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1352 Goodwill and business combinations

Business combinations from January 1, 2009

Business combinations are recorded using the acquisition method Under this method, upan the intial consolidation of an entity over which
the group has acquired exclusive control

+ the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair value on the acquisition date, and
« non-controlfing interests are measured either at fair vatue or at the non-contralling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net identifiable assets This option 1s available on a transaction-by-transaction basis

On the acquisition date, goodwill 15 imitially measured as the difference between
{1) the farr value of the consideration transferred, plus the amount of non-controlling Interests 1n the acquiree and, in a business
combination achieved n stages, the acquisttion-date fair value of the previously held equity interest in the acquiree, and
(1) the net fair value of the identifiable assets and hahulities assumed on the acquisition date

The measurement of non-controlling interests at fair value results in an increase s goodwill up to the extent attributable to these interests,
thereby leading to the recognition of a “full goodwill” The purchase price allocation shall be performed within 12 months after the acquisition
date If goodwill 1s negative, it 1s recognized in the Statement of Earnings Subsequent to the acquisition date, goodwall 1s measured at s
initial amount less recorded accumulated impairment losses (please refer to Note 1 35 7 below)

In addition, the following principles are applied to business combinations

+ on the acquisition date, to the extent possible, goodwill 1s allocated to each cash-generating unit likely to benefit from the business
combination,

+ contingent consideration in a business combination 1s recorded at fair value on the acquisition date, and any subsequent adjustment
occurning after the purchase price allocation period is recognized in the Statements of Earnings,
acquision-related costs are recognized as expenses when incurred,
in the event of the acquisttion of an additional interest n a subsidiary, Vivendi recognizes the difference between the acquisition
price and the carrying value of non-controlling interests acquired as a change n equity attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners, and

s goodwill 1s not amortized

Business combinations prior to January 1, 2009

Pursuant to {FRS 1, Vivend: elected not to restate business combinations that occurred prior to January 1, 2004 IFRS 3, as pubfished by the
IASB 1n March 2004, retained the acquisition method However, its provisions differed from those of its revised standard in respect of the
main following items
« minority interests were measured at therr proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets as there was no option for
measurement at farr value,
« contingent consideration was recognized in the cost of acquisition only if the payment was likely to occur and the amounts could be
reliably measured,
transaction costs that were dirgctly attnbutable to the acquisition formed part of acquisttion costs, and
in the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a subsidiary, the difference between the acquisttion cost and the carrying
value of minonty nterests acquired was recognized as goodwill

1353 Content assets

Canal+ Group
Fim, television or sports broadcasting rights

When entering into contracts for the acquisition of film, telewision or sports broadcasting nghts, the rights acquired are classified as
contractual commitments They are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position and classified as content assets as follows
e film and television broadcasting nights are recognized at their acquisition cost when the program 1s available for screening and are
expensed over their broadcasting period,
e sports broadeasting rights are recognized at the!r acquisition cost at the opening of the broadcasting period of the related sports
season or upon the first payment and are expensed as they are broadcast, and
+ expensing of film, television or sports broadcasting rights 1s included in cost of revenues

Theatrical film and television nghts produced or acquired to be soid

Theatrical film and television rights produced or acquired before thewr initial exhibition to be sold, are recorded as a content asset at
capitalized cost {(mamly direct production and overhead costs) or at their acquisition cost Theatncal film and telewision nghts are amortized,
and other related costs are expensed, pursuant to the estimated revenue method (1 e, based on the ratio of the current period’s gross
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revenues to estimated total gross revenues from all sources on an individual production basis) Vivendi considers that amortization pursuant to
the estimated revenue method reflects the rate at which the entity plans to consume the future economic benefits related to the asset
Accumulated amortization under this rate 1s, for this activity, generally not lower than the charge that would be obtained under the straight-
line amortization methed If, however, the accumulated amortization would be lower than this charge, a minimum straight-line amortization
wautd be calculated over a max:mum 12-year peniod, which corresponds to the typical screening perniod of each film

Where appropriate, estimated losses in value are provided m full against eamings for the period in which the losses are estimated, on an
individual product basis

film and telewision nghts catalogs

Catalogs compnise film nghts acquired for a second television exhubition, or produced or acquired film and television nights that are sold after
their first television screening {1 e, after their first broadcast on a free terrestrial channel) They are recognized as an asset at their acquisttion
or transfer cost and amortized as groups of films, or indwidually, based respectively on the estimated revenue method

UMG

Music publishing rights and catalogs include music catalogs, artists’ contracts and publishing rights, acquired through business combinations,
amortized v selhing, general and administrative expenses over a period not exceeding 15 years

Royalty advances to artists, songwriers, and co-publishers are capitalized as an asset when their current popularity and past perfermances
provide a reasonable basis to conclude that the probable future recoupment of such royalty advances against earnings otherwise payable to
therm 1s reasonably assured Royalty advances are recognized as an expense as subsequent royalt:es are eamed by the artist, songwriter or
co-pubhisher Any portion of capitalized royalty advances not deemed to be recoverable against future royalties is expensed during the period
in which the loss becomes evident These expenses are recorded in cost of revenues

Royalties eared by artists, songwriters, and co-publishers are recognized as an expense :n the penod during which the sale of the product
accurs, less a provision for estimated returns
1354 Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed when incurred Development expenses are capitalized when the feasibility and, in particular, profitability of the
project can reasonably be considered certain

Cost of internal use software

Direct internal and external costs incurred for the development of computer software for internal use, including website development costs,
are capitalized during the application development stage Application development stage costs generally include seftware configuration,
coding, installation and testing Costs of significant upgrades and enhancements resulting in additional functionality are also capitalized
These capitalized costs are amortized over 5 to 10 years Maintenance, minor upgrade, and enhancement costs are expensed as incurred

1355 Other intangible assets

Intangible assets separately acquired are recorded at cost, and intangible assets acquired in connection with a business comhination are
recorded at their fair value at the acquisition date The historical cost model is appled to intangible assets after they have been recognized
Assets with an indefinite useful Life are not amortized but are subject to an annual impairment test Amortization 1s accrued for assets with a
finite useful fe Useful life 1s reviewed at the end of each reperting peried

Other intangible assets include trade names, customer bases and licenses Music catalogs, trade names, subscribers’ bases and market
shares generated internally are not recognized as intangible assets
1356 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carned at historical cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses Histonical cost includes
the acquisition cost or production cost, costs directly attnbutable to transporting an asset to its physical location and preparing it for its
operational use, the estimated costs relating to the demolition and the collection of property, plant and equipment, and the rehabilitation of
the physical location resulting from the incurred obhigation
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When property, plant and equipment include significant components with different useful hves, they are recorded and amortized separately
Amortization s calculated using the straight-ine method based on the estimated useful ife of the assets Usefu! lives of the main
components are reviewed at the end of each reporting peried and are as follows

¢  buldings 5 to 40 years,

* equipment and machinery 3 to 8 years,

* set-top boxes 5to 7 years, and

s other 2 to 10 years

Assets financed by finance lease contracts are capitalized at the lower of the fair value of future mimmum lease payments and of the market
value and the related debt 1s recorded as "Borrowings and other financial liabilities” In general, these assets are amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful Iife, correspondng to the duration applicable to property, plant and equipment from the same category
Amortization expenses on assets acquired under such leases are :ncluded in amortization expenses

After initial recognition, the cost mode! 15 applied to property, plant and equipment

Vivendi has elected not to apply the option avatlable under IFRS 1, involving the remeasurement of certain property, plant and equipment at
their fair value as of January 1, 2004

On January 1, 2004, in accordance with IFRS 1, Vivendi decided to apply IFRIC Interpretation 4 - Determining whether an arrangement
contains a lease, which currently mainly applies to commercial supply agreements for the Canal+ Group (and GVT) satellite capacity, which
are commerciat service agreements that do nat convey a night to use a specific asset, contract costs under these agreements are consequently
expensed as operational costs for the period

1357 Assetimpairment

Each time events or changes (n the economic environment indicate: a current nsk of impairment of goodwill, other intangible assets, property,
plant and equipment, and assets n progress, Vivend: re-examines the value of these assets In addition, goodwill, other intangible assets with
an indefinite useful Iife, and intangible assets in progress are all subject to an annual impairment test undertaken in the fourth quarter of each
fiscal year This test 1s performed to compare the recoverable amount of each Cash Generating Umit {CGU) or, if necessary, groups of CGU to
the carrying value of the cormesponding assets {including goodwill) A Cash Generating Unit 1s the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets The Vivendi group operates
through different communication businesses Each business offers different products and services that are marketed through different
channels CGUs are independently defined at each business level, corresponding to the group operating segments Vivend: CGUs and groups
of CGUs are presented in Note 9

The recoverable amount 15 determined as the higher of {1} the vafue in use. or {n) the fair value {less costs to sell) as described hereafter, for
each individual asset If the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of other assets or groups of assets, the
recoverable amount 1s determined for the group of assets In particular, an impairment test of goodwill is performed by Vivend for each CGU
or group of CGUs, depending on the level at which Vivendi Management measures return on operations

The value In use of each asset or group of assets 15 determined as the discounted value of future cash flows {discounted cash flow method
{DCF) by using cash flow projections consistent with the budget of the following year and the most recent forecasts prepared by the operating
segments

Applied discount rates are determined by reference to available external sources of information, usually based on financial institutions’
benchmarks, and reflect the current assessment by Vivend: of the time value of money and risks specific to each asset or group of assets

Perpetual growth rates used for the evaluation of CGUs are those used to prepare budgets for each CGU or group of CGUs, and beyond the
period covered, are consistent with growth rates estimated by the business by extrapolating growth rates used n the budgets, without
exceeding the long-term average growth rate for the markets in which the group operates

The fair value {less costs to sell] I1s the price that would be received fram the sale of an asset or group of assets in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, less costs 1o sell These values are determined on the basis of market data {stock
market prices or companson with similar listed companies, with the value attnbuted to similar assets or companies in recent transactions) or
on discontinued future cash fiows in the absence of reliable data

If the recoverable amount 1s lower than the carrying value of an asset or group of assets, an impairment loss equal to the d.fference s
recogmzed in EBIT in the case of a group of assets, this impairment loss s fust recorded against goodwll

The impairment losses recognized in respect of praperty, plant and equipment, and intangible assets {other than goodwill) may be reversed in
a later period if the recoverable amount becomes greater than the carrying value, within the imit of impairment losses previously recognized
Impairment losses recognized in respect of goodwill cannot be reversed at a later date
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1358 Financial assets

Financial assets consist of financial assets measured at farr value and financial assets recognized at amortized cost Financial assets are
initially recognized at fair value corresponding, 1n general, to the consideration paid, which is best evidenced by the acquisition cost {including
assocrated acquisition costs, «f any)

Financial assets at fair value

Financial assets at fair value include avallable-for-sale secunties, dernvative financial instruments with a positive value {please sefer to
Note 137} and other financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss Most of these financial assets are actively traded n
organized public markets, their fair value being calculated by reference to the published market price at period end Fair value 1s estimated for
financial assets which do not have a published market price on an active market As a last reson, when a reliable estimate of fair value
cannot be made using valuation technigues in the absence of an active market, the group values financial assets at historical cost, less any
impawrment losses

Available-for-sale secunties consist of uncansotidated interests and other secunties that cannot be classified in the other financial asset
categones descnibed below Unrealized gams and losses on avallable-for-sale secunties are recogmized n charges and income directly
recognized 1n equity unti the financial asset is sold, collected or removed from the Statement of Financial Position in another way, or until
there 1s objective evidence that the investment is impaired, at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously reported in charges and
income directly recognized in equity 1s expensed in other financial charges and income

Other financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss mainly consist of assets held for trading which Vivend: intends to sell
the near future {pnmanly marketable securities) Unrealized gamns and losses on these assets are recogmized in other financial charges and
Income

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financral assets at amortized cost consist of loans and receivables {primanly loans to affiliates and associates, current account advances to
equity affiliates and unconsolidated interests, cash deposits, securitized loans and recevables, and other leans and recervables, and debtors)
and held-to-maturity investments (financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity) At the end of each period, these
assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method 1f there is ohjective evidence that an impairment loss has been
ingurred, the amount of this loss, measured as the difference between the financial asset's carrying value and its recoverable amount {equal
to the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s nitial effective interest rate), 1s recognized in profit or
loss Impairment losses may be reversed if the recoverabte amount of the asset subsequently increases in the future

1359 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizabfe value Cost comprises purchase costs, production costs and other supply and
packaging costs They are usually catculated using the weighted average cost method Net realizable value 15 the estimated selling price n
the normal course of business, less estmated completion costs and seliing costs

13510 Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are initially recognized at fair value, which 1s generally equal to their naominal value Prowistons for the impairment
of receivables are specifically valued in each business unit, generally using a default percentage based on the unpaid amounts dunng one
reference period For the group’s businesses which are based partly or fully on subscription (Canal+ Groupl, the depreciation rate of trade
account receivables 15 assessed on the basis of historical account recewables from former customerss, primarily on a statistical basis In
addition, account recewables from customers subject to insolvency proceedings or customears with whom Vivend: 15 involved in [itigation or a
dispute are generally impaiwed n full

13511 Cash and cash equivelents

The “cash and ¢ash equivalents” category conststs of cash in banks, monetary UCITS, which satisfy AMF position No 2011-13, and other
highly hiquid investments with inihal matunities of generally three months or less Investments in secunties, investments with nitial matyrities
of more than three months without the possibility of early termination and bank accounts subject to restrictions {blocked accounts}, other than
restrictions due 1o regulations specific to a country or activity sector (e g, exchange cantrols), are not classified as cash equivalents but as
financial assets Moreover, the historical perfornance of the investments 1$ monitored regularly to confirm their cash equivalents accounting
classification
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136 Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

A non-current asset or a group of assets and labiities is held for sale when sts camying value may be recovered principally through its
divestiture and not by +ts continued utilization To meet this definition, the asset must be available for mmediate sale and the divestiture must
be highly probable These assets and habilities are recognized as assets held for sale and habilines associated with assets held for sale,
without offset The related assets recorded as assets held for sale are valued at the lowest value between the fair value {net of divestiture
fees) and the carrying value, or cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and are no longer depreciated

An operation 1s qualified as discontinued when 1t represents a separate major ling of business and the critena for classification as an asset
held for sale have bean met or when Vivendi has sold the asset Discontinued operations are reported on a single line of the Statement of
Earnings for the periods reparted, comprising the eamings after tax of discontinued operations until divestiture and the gain or loss after tax
on sale or fair value measurement, less costs to divest the assets and liabilities of the discontinugd operations In addition, cash flows
generated by discontinued operations are reported on a separate line of the Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows for the relevant penods

Accounting principles and valuation methods specific to telecommunications activities, divested in 2014 (SFR, Maroc Telecom
Group} or currently in the process of being divested (GVT).

Revenues from operations and associated costs
Separable components of bundled offers

Revenues from telephone packages are recognized as multiple-component sales in accordance with IAS 18 Revenues from the sale of
telecommunication equipment (mobile phones and ather equipment), net of discounts granted to customers through the distribution channel,
are recognized upon activation of the line Revenues fram telephone subscriptions are recognized on a straight-line basis over the subscription
contract period Revenues from incoming and outgoing traffic are recognized when the service 15 rendered

Customer acquisition and loyalty costs for mobile phones, principally consisting of rebates on the sale of equipment to customers thraugh
distnibutors, are recognized as a deduction from revenues Customer acquisition and foyalty costs consisting of premiums not related to the
sale of equipment as part of telephone packages and commissions paid to distributors are recognized as selling and general expenseas

Content sales

Sales of services provided to customers managed on behalf of content providers {mamly premium rate numbers) are either accounted for
gross, or net of the content providers” fees when the provider 1s responsible for the cantent and for setting the price payable by subscribers

Custom contracts

Service access and installation costs invoiced primarly to the operator's chents on the installation of services such as a broadband
connection, bandwidth service or IP connection are recognized over the expected duration of the contractua! relationship and the supply of the
primary service

Access to telecommunication infrastructure 1s provided to chents pursuant to various types of contracts lease arrangements. hosting
contracts or Indefeasible Right of Use {iRU) agreements IRU agreements, which are specific to the telecommunication sector, confer an
exclusive and irrevocable right to use an asset (cables, fiber optic or bandwidth) during a {generally lengthy) defined penod without a transfer
of ownership of the asset Revenue generated by leases, hosting contracts in the Netcenters and IRU agreements rs recognized over the
duration cf the corresponding contract, except in the case of a finance lease whereby the equipment is considered as a sale on credit

Costs of revenues

Costs of revenues compnise purchasing costs (including purchases of mobile phones), interconnection and access costs, network, and
equipment costs Selling, general and administrative expenses notably include commercial costs relating to marketing and customer care
expenses

Other intangible assets

Licenses to operate telecom networks are recorded at histoncal cost based upon the discounted value of deferred payments and amortized on
a straight-line basis from their effective service start date over therr estimated usefil hfe until matunity Licenses to operate in France are
recognized n the amount of the fixed, upfront fee paid upon the granting of the license The vanable fee, which cannot be reliably determined
{equal to 1% of the revenues generated by the activity in the case of the telecommunication licenses 1n France), 15 recorded as an expense
when incurred
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Property, plant and equipment

These mainly consist of the netwark equipment for telecommunications activities, each part of which 1s amartized generally over 1 to 50 years
for fiber optic equipment
In respect of commercial supply agreements for telecammunications capacities
» Indefeasible Right of Use {IRU} agreements confer an exclusive and irrevocable right to use an asset during a defined penod [RU
agreements are leases which convey a specific nght of use for a defined portion of the underlying asset in the form of dedicated
fibers or wavelengths {RU agreements are capitalized if the agreement period covers the major part of the useful life of the
undertying asset IRU contract costs are capitalized and amortized over the contract term, and
« some [RU contracts are commercial service agreements that do not convey a nght to use a specific asset, contract costs under these
agreements are consequently expensed as operational costs for the period

Accounting pninciples and valuation methods applicable specifically to Activision Blizzard {video games), a business divested
in 2013

Revenue and refated costs

The major portion of Activision Blizzard revenue 1s generated by the sale of boxes for video games, net of a provision for estimated returns and
price guarantees as well as rebates, if any Regarding video games with significant online functionality or Massively Multiplayer Online Role
Playing Games, revenues are recorded ratably over the estimated relationship period with the customer, usually and respectively beginning 1n
the month following the shipment or upon activation of the subscription The estimated relatronship period with the customer over which
revenues are recognized currently ranges from a mimimum of five months to @ maximum of less than a year Costs of sales associated with
revenues from the sale of boxes for video games with significant online functionality are recorded ratably according to the same method as for
revenues

Content assets

Licensing act:vities and mternally developed franchises are recognized as contents assets at their acquisition cost or development cost and
are amortized over their estimated useful life on the basts of the rate at which the related economic benefits are consumed This generally
leads to an amortization period of 3 to 10 years for hicenses, and 11 to 12 years for franchises

Cost of software for rental, sale or commercialization

Software development costs (video games) are capitalized when, notably, the technical feasibility of the software is established and they are
deemed recoverable These costs are maily generated by Activision Blizzard as part of the games development process and are amortized
using the estimated revenue methed (1€, based on the ratio of the current penod’s gross revenues to estmated total gross revenues) for a
given product, which generally leads to the amortization of costs over a maximum period of 6 months commencing on a product's release
date Non-capitalized software development costs are immediately recorded as research and development costs

137 Finanecial hahilities

Long-term and short-term borrowings and other financial l:abibities include
»  bonds and credit facilities, as well as various other borrawings {including commereial paper and debt related to finance leases} and
related accrued interest,
» pbligations arising out of commitments to purchase non-controiling interests,
=  bank overdrafts, and
the negative value of other derivative fimancial instruments Derivatives with positive values are recorded as financial assets in the
Statement of Financial Position

Borrowings

All borrowmgs are intially accounted for at far value net of transaction costs directly attributable to the borrowing Borrowings bearing
interest are subsequently valued at amortized cost, applying the effective interest method The effective interest rate s the internal yield rate
that discounts future cash flows over the term of the borrowing In addition, where the borrowing comprises an embedded derivative (e g , an
exchangaeable bond) or an equity instrument {e g, a convertible bond), the amortized cost 1s caleulated for the debt component enly, after
separation of the embedded derivative or equity instrument In the event of a change in expected future cash flows (e g. redemption 1s earlier
than ininially expected), the amortized cost 1s adjusted against earnings to reflect the value of the new expected cash flows, discounted at the
initial effective interest rate
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Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests

Vivendi has granted commitments to purchase non-controlling mterests to certain shareowners of 1ts fully consolidated subsidianies These
purchase commitments may be optional (e g , put options) or mandatory {e g, forward purchase contracts)

The following accounting treatment has been adopted in respect of commitments granted on or after January 1, 2003

= upon initial recognition, the commitment to purchase non-controlling interests Is recognized as a financial Liability for the present
value of the purchase consideration under the put option or forward purchase contract, mainly offset through the book value of non-
controlfing interests and the remaining balance through equity attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners,

» subsequent changes to the value of the commitment are recognized as a financial liability by an adjustment to equity attributable to
Vivendi SA shareowners, and

»  upon maturity of the commitment, if the non-controlling interests are not purchased, the previously recognized entries are reversed,
if the non-controlling interests are purchased, the amount recognized in financial liabilities 1s reversed, offset by the cash outflow
relating to the purchase of the non-controlling interests

Derivative financial instruments

Vivend! uses denvative financial instruments to manage and reduce 1ts exposure to fluctuations in interest rates, and foreign currency
exchange rates All mstruments are erther hsted on organized markets or traded over-the-counter with hughly-rated counterparties These
instruments include interest rate and currency swaps, and forward exchange contracts All these derivative financial instruments are used for
hedging purposes

When these contracts qualify as hedges for accounting purposes, gains and tosses ansing on these contracts are offset in gamings against
the gaing and fosses relating to the hedged item When the derivative financial instrument hedges exposures to flugtuations in the fair value
of an asset or a liability recognized in the Statement of Financial Position or of a firm commitment which 1s not recognized n the Statement of
Financial Position, 1t 1s a fair value hedge The mstrument 15 remeasured at fair value in earmings, with the gains or losses afnising on
remeasurement of the hedged portion of the hedged rtem offset on the same line of the Statement of Earmings, or, as part of a forecasted
transaction relating to a non-financial asset or hability, at the imitial cost of the asset or hability When the derivative financial instrument
hedges cash flows, it 15 a cash flow hedge The hedging instrument 15 remeasured at far value and the portion of the gan or loss that 1s
determined to be an effective hedge 1s recognized through charges and income directly recognized in equity, whereas its ineffective portion is
recognized in earnings, or, as part of a forecasted transaction gn a non-financial asset or iability, they are recognized at the initial cost of the
asset or hability When the hedged item 1$ realized, accumnulated gains and losses recognized in equity are released to the Statement of
Earnings and recorded on the same line as the hedged item When the derivative financial instrument hedges a net investment in a forergn
operation, 1t 15 recognized in the same way as a cash flow hedge Denvative financial instruments which do not qualify as a hedge for
accounting purposes are remeasured at fair value and resulting gans and losses are recognized directly in earnings, without remeasurement
of the underlying instrument

Furthermore, income and expenses relating to foreign currency instruments used to hedge highly probable budget exposures and firm
commitmants contracted pursuant to the acquisition of editorial content rights {including sports, avdrovisual and film nights) are recognszed in
EBIT In all other cases, gains and losses ansing on the fair value remeasurement of instruments are recognized :n other financial charges and
income

138 Other liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when, at the end of the reporting period, Vivendi has a legal obhgation (legal, regulatory or contractual} or a
constructive obligation, as a result of past events, and 1t is probable that an outflow of resources embodying econormic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and the obligation can be reliably estimated Where the effect of the time value of money 15 matenal,
provisions are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the t:me value of
money If the amount of the obligation canngt be reliably estimated, no provision 1s recorded and a disclosure 1s made in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Employee benefit plans

In accordance with the laws and practices of each country in which it operates, Vivendi participates in, or maintains, employee benefit plans
providing retirement pensions, post-retirement health care, life msurance and post-employment benefits to eligible employees, former
employees, retirees and such of their beneficiaries who meet the required conditions Retirement pensions are provided for substantially all
employees through defined contribution plans, which are integrated with local social secunty and multi-employer plans, or defined benefit
plans, which are generally managed via group pension plans The plan funding policy implemented by the group is consistent w:th applicable
government funding requirements and regulations
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Defined contribution plans
Contnbutions to defined contribution and multi-employer plans are expensed during the year
Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans may be funded by nvestments in varous instruments such as insurance contracts or equity and debt nvestment
secunittes, excluding Vivend shares or debt instruments

Pension expenses and defined benefit obhigations are calculated by independent actuaries using the projected unit eredit method This method
15 based on annually updated assumptions, which include the probability of employees remaining with Vivendi until retirement, expected
changes in future compensation and an appropnate discount rate for each country in which Vivendr maintains a pension plan The
assumptions adopted in 2013 and 2014, and the means of determining these assumptions, are presented in Note 19 A prowvision 1$ recorded In
the Statement of Financial Position equal to the difference between the actuanal value of the related benefits (actuanial hiabihty) and the fair
value of any associated plan assets, and includes past service cost and actuanal gains and losses

The cost of defined benefit plans consists of three components recognized as follows

¢ the service cost 1s included in selling, general and administrative expenses It comprses current service cost, past service cost
resulting from a plan amendment or a curtailment, immediately recognized in profit and loss, and gains and losses on settlement,

e the financial companent, recarded in other financial charges and income, consists of the undiscounting of the obligation, less the
expected return on plan assets determined using the discount rate retained for the valuation of the benefit obligation, and

« the remeasurements of the net defined benefit hability {asset), recognized in Jjtems of other comprehensive income not reclassified
to profit and loss, mainly cansist of actuanal gains and losses, 1 e, changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
and plan assets resulting from changes in actuanial assumptions and expenience adjustments {representing the differences between
the expected effect of some actuanal assumptions applied to previous valuations and the effective effect)

Where the value of plan assets exceeds benefit obligations, a financial asset Is recognized up to the present value of future refunds and the
expected reduction in future contributions

Some other post-employment benefits, such as life insurance and medical coverage (mainly in the United States) are subject to pravisions
which are assessed through an actuanal calculation comparable to the method used for pension provisions

On January 1, 2004, in accordance with 1FRS 1, Vivend: decided to record unrecognized actuanal gains and losses aganst consolidated equity

139 Deferred taxes

Differences existing at closing between the tax base value of assets and hiabilibes and their carrying value in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position give nise to temporary differences Pursuant to the liability methed, these temporary differences result in the accounting of

s deferred tax assets, when the tax base value 1s greater than the carrying value (expected future tax saving}, and

o deferred tax liabilities, when the tax base value 1s lower than the carrying value (expected future tax expense}

Deferred tax assets and labilities are measured at the expected tax rates for the year during which the asset wili be realized or the hability
settled, based on tax rates {and tax regulations) enacted or substantially enacted by the closing date They are reviewed at the end of each
year, In ling with any changes in applicable tax rates

Deferred tax assets are secogmized for all deductible temporary differences, tax foss carry-forwards and unused tax cred:ts, insofar as it 15
prabable that a taxable profit will be available, or when a current tax hability exists to make use of those deductible temporary differences,
tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, except where the deferred tax asset associated with the deductible temparary difference 1s
generated by imitial recognition of an asset or liability 1n @ transaction which 1s not a business combination, and that, at the transaction date,
does not iImpact eamings, nor tax income or loss

For deductible temporary differences resulting from investments in subsidianes, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
assets are recorded to the extent that tt is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and that a taxable
profit will be avaifable against which the temporary difference can be utilized

The carrying value of deferred tax assets 15 reviewed at each closing date, and revalued or reduced to the extent that 1t 1s more or less
probable that a taxable profit will be availlable to allow the deferred tax asset to be utilized When assessing the probability of a taxable profit
being available, account 1s taken, primarnily, of prior years™ results, forecasted future results, non-recurring ttems unhikely to occur in the future
and the tax strategy As such, the assessment of the group’s ability to utihze tax losses carried forward (s to a large extent judgment-based If
the future taxable results of the group proved to differ significantly from those expected, the group would be required to wncrease or decrease
the carrying value of deferred tax assets with a potentially matenal impact on the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Earmings
of the group
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except where the deferred tax lability results from goodwill or
initial recognition of an asset or l:ability in a transaction which s not a business combination, and that, at the transaction date, does not
impact eamings, tax incame or loss

For taxable temporary differences resulting from nvestments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
ilabilities are recorded except to the extent that both of the following conditions are satisfied the parent, mvestor or venturer 1s able to
control the tming of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future

Current tax and deferred tax shall be charged or credited directly to equity, and not eamings, If the tax relates to (tems that are credited or
charged directly to equity

1310 Share-hased compensation

With the aim of aligning the interests of its executive management and employees with 1ts shareholders’ interests by providing them wath an
additional incentive to improve the company's performance and increase its share price on a long-term basss, Vivend maintains severai share-
based compensation plans {share purchase plans, performance share pians, and bonus share plans) or other equity instruments based an the
value of the Vivend: share price {stock options), which are settled either in equity instruments or in cash Grants under these plans are
approved by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board In addition, the definitive grant of stock options and performance shares (s
contingent upon the achievement of specific performance objectives set by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board Moreover, all
granted plans are conditional upon active employment at the vesting date

In addition, Universal Music Group maintains Equity Long-Term Incentive Plans Under these plans, certain key executives are awarded equity
units, which are settled in cash These eguity units are phantom stock units whose value is mtended to reflect the value of Universal Music
Group

Please refer to Note 20 for details of the features of these plans

Share-based compensation is recognized as a personnel cost at the fair value of the equity instruments granted This expense 1s spread over
the vesting periad, 1 &, three years for stock option plans and two years for performance shares and bonus share plans at Vivendi, other than
In specific cases

Vivend: use a binomial model to assess the fair value of such istruments This method relies on assumptions updated at the valuation date
such as the calculated volatihty of the relevant shares, the discount rate corresponding to the nisk-free interest rate, the expected dividend
yield, and the probability of relevant managers and employees remaining employed within the group until the exercise of their nghts

However, depending on whether the equity instruments granted are equity-settled or cash-settled, the valuaton and recognition of the
expense will differ

Equity-settled instruments
« the expected term of the option granted 1s deemed to be the mid-point between the vesting date and the end of the contractual
term,
the value of the instruments granted 1s estimated and fixed at grant date, and
the expense Is recognized with a corresponding increase in eguity

Cash-settled instruments

« the expected term of the instruments granted rs deemed to be equal to one-half of the residual contractual term of the instrument
for vested nghts, and to the average of the residual vesting penod at the remeasurement date and the residual contractual term of
the instrument for unvested rights,

+ the value of instruments granted 1s initially estimated at grant date and 15 then re-estimated at each reporting date until the
payment date and the expense 1s adjusted pro rata taking into account the vested rights at each such reporting date,

« the expense s recognized as a provision, and
moreover, as plans settled in cash are pnmarily denominated in US doliars, the value fluctuates based on the EUR/USD exchange
rate

Share-based compensation cost 1s allocated to each operating segment, pro rata to the number of equity instruments or equivalent
Instruments granted to their managers and employees

The dilutive effect of stock options and performance shares settled in equity through the 1ssuance of Vivend: shares which are in the process
of vesting 1s reflected n the calculation of diluted earmings per share

In accordance with IFRS 1, Vivendr elected to retrospectively apply IFRS 2 as of January 1, 2004 Consequently, all share-based ccmpensation
plans for which nghts remained to be vested as of January t, 2004 were accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2
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14 Related parties

Group-related parties are those companies over which the group exercises exclusive control, jomt controi or significant infiuence,
shareholders exercising [omt control over group joint ventures, non-controlling Interests exercising significant influence over group
subsidiaries, corporate officers, group managerment and directors and companies over which the latter exercise exclusive control, joint control,
or significant influence

The transactions realized with subsidianes over which the group exercises control are not included in the intersegment operations {a list of
the principal consolidated subsidianes 15 presented in Note 27) Moreover, commercial relationships among subsidiaries of the group,
aggregated in operating segments, are conducted on an arm'’s length basis on terms and conditions similar to those which would be offered
by third parties The operating costs of Vivendi SA’s headquarters, after the allocation of a portion of these costs to each of the group’s
businesses, are included in the Corporate operating segment {Please refer to Note 2 for a detailed descnption of the transactions between the
parent company and the subsidianes of the group, aggregated by operating segments)

15 Contractual obligations and contingent assets and habilities

Once a year, Vivend! and its subsidianes prepare detailed reports on all matenal contractval obligations, commercial and financial
commitments and contingent obligations, for which they are jointly and severally liable These detailed reports are updated by the relevant
departments and reviewed by senior management on a regular basis To ensure completeness, accuracy and consistency of these reports,
some dedicated intemal controf procedures are carried out, including {but not limited to} the review of

+ minutes of meetings of the shareholders, Management Board, Supervisory Board and commitees of the Supervisory Beard in
respect of matters such as contracts, litigation, and authorization of asset acquisttrons or divestitures,

» pledges and guarantees with banks and financial institutions,

« pending htigation, claims {in dispute) and environmental matters as well as related assessments for unrecorded contingencies with
internal and/or external legal counsels,

« taxexaminer's reports and, if applicable, notices of reassessments and tax expense analyses for prior years,

= Insurance coverage for unrecorded contingencies with the nisk management department and insurance agents and brokers with
whom the group contracted,

* related-party transactions for guarantees and other given or received commitments, and more generally

«  major contracts and agreements

16 New IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations that have been published hut are not yet effective

The IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations that have been publhshed by the tASB and endorsed in the European Union, which are not yet
effective but which have been applied in anticipation are detatled in Note 11

Among IFRS standards and iFRIC interpretations 1ssued by the IASB/IFRS IC at the date of approval of these Consolidated Financial
Statements, but which are not yet effective, and for which Vivend has not elected for an earlier application, the main standard which may
have an impact on Vivend 1s IFRS 15 — Revenue froam Contracts with Customers, 1ssued by IASB on May 28, 2014, which applies mandatorily
from January 1, 2017, and still being endorsed in the EU Vivend: 1s currently assessing the potential impact on the Statement of Eamings, the
aggregate comprehensive income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Cash Flows, and the content of the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in applying this standard
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Note 2 Segment data

21 Operating segment data

The Vivendi group compnses several businesses that are leaders in content and media Each business offers different products and services
that are marketed through different channets Given the unique customer base, technology, marketing and distribution requirements of each of
these businesses, each business 1s managed separately and represents the base of the intemal reporting of the group The Vivend) group has
the following main businesses

e  Canal+ Group publishing and distnibution of prermum and thematic pay-TV channels as well as free-to-air channels in France,
Paland, Africa and Vietnam as well as production and distnbution of cinema film and TV series in Europe In 2014 and 2013, Canal+
Group notably acqured Red Production Company {November 22, 2013), Mediaserv (February 13, 2014) and Thema (October 28,
2014), and

¢ Universal Music Group sale of recorded music {physical and digital media), exploitation of music publishing rights as welt as
artist services and merchandising In 2014, UMG notably acquired Eagle Rock Entertainment Limited (Apr B, 2014)

Vivend: Management evaluates the performance of these operating segments and allocates necessary resources to them based on certan
operating Indicators (segment earmnings and cash flow from operations} Segment eamings relate to the EBITA of each business segment

Additionally, segment data 1s prepared in accordance with the following principles

e the operating segment “Vivendi Village™ includes ather operations, notably Vivendi Ticketing (with See Tickets and Digitickl,
Wengo (expert advisory services), and Watchever (platform in broadcasting of audiovisual works),

= the operating segment “Corporate” includes the headguarter's costs, net of the allocation of a portion of these costs to each of the
businesses,

« ntersegment commercial relations are conducted on an arm’s length basis on terms and conditions simitar to those which would be
offered by third parties, and

e  the operatng segments presented hereunder are strictly identical to the information given to Vivendr's Management Board

In addition, Vivend!'s interests in SFR and GVT, discontinued businesses as of December 31, 2014 (plsase refer to Note 3), are no longer
reported 1n segment data as a result of the apphication of IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
the 2013 Consohidated Statement of Eamings and 2013 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows were adjusted to ensure consistency
of information, and
GVT's assets and liabilities were reclassified as unallocated assets as of December 31, 2014

For a detatled description of the adjustments made to the previously published Financial Statements, please refer to Note 31

As of December 31, 2014, Vivendi also presented data categorized according to four geographic regiens, including France and the United
States

Financiat Report and Audited Consohdated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2014 Vivend: /68




Consohidated Statements of Eamings
Year ended Decamber 31 2014

Friday, Febreary 27 2015

Canak Group Mﬂ::?é:bp Vivends Village: Corporate Ehmmatons  Total Vivends
{in milhans of euros)
External revenues 5440 4554 95 - 10089
Intarsagment revenues 16 3 1 120)
Revenues 5.456 4,557 % - 1201 10089
Operating expensas excluding amortizabion and depreciation {4 515) 13 859) (125) 157} 20 (8 645)
EBITDA 84l = {29) 157y - 1,443
Restructunng thargas (s [44) {10} (104)
Gains/llosses) on sales of tangible and intangible assets {t) {2) - 3
Other non recurnng items [15) 113 - (2} {301
Depreciation of tangtbla assets n7 {58) 3 n (232
Amartization of tntangible assets excluding those acquired through business
combinations {72) - 3 {751
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes {EBITA) 583 5%5 {79} (70) - 999
Amartization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations {8) (334) (2) (344)
Imgairment losses on intangible assets acquired through businass combinations {1 91 192)
Other income w3
Other charges (30)
Earmings before interest and income taxes (EBIT) 7386
Income from equity affillates 18]
Interest {96)
Incoma frem investments k]
Other financial income 19
Other finaroial charges 751)
Provasson for income taxas {130)
Earnings from discontinued oparations 5762
Eermngs 5,025
Of which
Esmings sttnbutable to Vivend) SA shareowners 4784
eammgs from @ op attributahle to Viveadi SA
shareowners {230)
earnings from discontinued operations aitributable to Vivend) SA sharaowners 5034
Non-controling interests 281
Year ended December 31, 2013
Canal+ Group Mﬂ::e(:‘:sz Vivend: Village Corporate Ehmingtions  Total Vivend:
{tn milions of euros}
Extemal revenues 5300 482 70 - 0252
Intersegment revenues il 4 1 - {16)
Revenues 5311 &B8E T - 6y 0252
Operating expanses excluding amortization and dapretiation {4 406} {4172) [145) {90) 16 18 797)
EBITDA 905 714 ) 190] - 1455
Restructunng charges (114 - 2 {116)
Gains/llosses] on sales of tangible and intangible assets [E:4) 3] 0] 3)
Other aon recurmng items {50) (26} i) 6 - )
Degraciation of tangible assets {158) 69} 2] M (228)
Amortizauon of intangible assets excluding those acquired through busIngss
combinations {80) 12) 182
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) 611 511 (80} {87) B 955
Amortization of intang:ble assets acquired through business combinations (7 343) 2) {350)
Impairment losses on intangible assats acquired through business combinations - 5 {1} {6)
Other income i)
Other charges {50)
Earnmgs before anterest and income taxes (EBIT) 637
Income from equity affiliates 21)
Intarest (266)
Income from investments 68
Other financiat income 13
Other financial chames (300}
Provision for incoma taxes 17
Earnings from discontinued operations 21633
Earnings —zm
Of which
Earnings atinbutable to Vivendi SA gshargownore 1.967
earmngs from contimuing operations attnbutable to Vivendi SA
shareowners LX)
earnings from discontinued oparations attributable to Vivend: SA sharsowners 1824
Non-controlling intarests 812
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Canal+ Group MUnwersaI Vivend: Village Comporate SFR Total Vivend:
usic Group

{in milhons of euros}

December 31, 2014

Segment assets {a) 7,829 8677 154 5,896 - - 22,556
Unallocated assets {b) 13,182
Total Assets 35,738
Segment liabtliues {c) 2608 3463 129 2,404 - - 8605
Unallocated habiities (d) 4,145
Total Liabilities 12,750
Increase 1n tangible and intangible assets 205 47 7 - - -
Capital expenditures, net {capex, net) (e) 190 45 7 - - - 743
December 31, 2013

Segment assets {a) 7.500 8256 25 154 4674 18,304 39,139
Unallocated assets {h) 10,041

Total Asgets 49,180
Sepment habilities (c) 2,542 3402 78 2213 548 5913 14,696
Unallocated habilites {d} 15,454
Total Liabslitios 30,150
Increase in tangible and intangible assets 213 54 8 1 776 1,665 77
Capital expenditures, net {capex net) (e} m 26 8 - 769 1610 2624

Addtonal operating segment data 15 presented in Note 9 "Goodwill”, and Note 10 “Content assets and commitments”

a  Segment assets include goodwill, content assets, other intangible assets, property. plant and equipment, Investments n equity
affiliates, financial assets, inventories and trade accounts receivable, and other

b Unallocated assets include deferred tax assats, current tax recevables and cash and cash equivalents As of December 31, 2014, they
also included GVT's assets of discontinued businesses for €5,393 milhon As of December 31, 2013, they also included Maroc Telecom
group’s assets of discontinued businesses for €6,562 mallion and the remaining 83 mithion Activision Blizzard shares held by Vivends,
valued at €1,078 million {please refer to Note 3)

¢ Segment habilities include provisions, other non-current habihties, and trade accounts payable

d  Unallocated habiities include borrowings and other financial habtlities, deferred tax habilities and current tax payables As of
December 31, 2014, they also included GVT's liabiities associated with assets of discontinued businesses for €1,094 million (excluding
financial liabilites to Vivendi SA) As of December 31, 2013, they also included Maroc Telecom group’s lhiabilties associated with

assets of discontinued businesses for €2,429 milion (please refer to Note 3)

e Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

Financial Report and Audited Consalidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2014

Vivend /70




22 Geographic information

Revenues are broken down by customer location

{in mithons of euros)
Revenuss
France
Rest of Europe
United States
Rest of the World

(in militons of euros)
Segment assets
France
Rest of Europe
United States
Brazil
Rest of the World

in 2014 and 2013, acquisitions of tangible and intang:ble assets were mainly realized in France by Canal+ Group

Note 3 Discontinued operations

Year ended December 31

2014 2013
4482 4% 4,491 44%
2,505 25% 2 462 24%
1748 17% 1,883 18%
1,354 14% 1.416 14%
10,089 100% 10,252 100%

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

11774 52% 24,950 64%
2518 1% 2483 6%
7 660 34% 6,549 17%

K 0% 4,725 12%
572 3% 432 1%
22,556 100% 39,139 100%

Fday February 27 2015

In compliance with IFRS 5 - Non<urrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, GVT, SFR, Maroc Telecom, and Activision
Blizzard have been reported in Vivendi's Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued operations in accordance with the following

terms

» Ongoing sales as of December 31, 2014 Cn September 18, 2014, Vivend: and Telefonica entered into an agreement for the sale of
GVT As a result, GVT has been reported in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings and Statement of Cash Flows as a discontinued
aoperation as from the third quarter of 2014 lts contribution to each line of Vivendr's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as of
December 31, 2014 has been grouped under the lines “Assets of discontinued businesses” and "Liabilities associated with assets of

discontinued businesses”

+ Completed sales as of December 31, 2014+ Vivend) deconsolidated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Bhizzard as from
November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11, 2013, respectively All three businesses have been reported in the Consolidated
Statement of Earnings and Statement of Cash Flows as discontinued operations

The adjustments to previously published data are presented in Note 31
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31 Saleof SFR

{n November 27, 2014, pursuant to an agreement entered into on June 20, 2014 and following approval by the French Competition Authanty
on October 27, 2014 subject to conditions (see below), Vivend! announced the closing of the combination between SFR and Numencable
The main terms of this transaction are as follows

Cash proceeds €13 5 billion, subject to the sale price adjustment on November 27, 2014, Vivend) receved
€13366 mllion 1n cash and, on December 3, 2014, Vivendi made a contribution of
€200 milhion to the financing of the acquisition of Virgin Mobile by Numencable Group
Under the terms of the agreement, the price adjustment to be calculated 15 based, among
other things, on any exceptional changes in the net working capital, SFR's net debt, as well
as certain restatements as contractually defined by the parties and 1s subject o a
contradictory accounting analysis in accordance with the contract

Vivendi's tnterest in the combined entity | 20% of Numenicable - SFR {publicly-listed)

Altice’s interest in the combined entity Approximately 60% of Numericable - SFR {approximately 20% free float)

Earn-out Eam-out of €750 million if the EBITOA-Capex aggregate of the combined entity is equal to
or higher than €2 billion during any fiscal year, ending not Jater than December 31, 2024

Commitments given Liruted representations and warranties

Governance - Minonity representation for Vivendi on the Board of Dhrectors, or 2 out of 10 directors,

subject to Vivend retaming a 20% interest in Numericable - SFR {1 director f Vivend:
holds an interest between 10% and 20%)

- Veto rights on certain exceptional matters subject to Vivendi retaining a 20% interest in
Numenicable - SFR

- Numericable - SFR has notably given the French Competition Authonty an undertaking
not to disclose any strategic information on the pay-TV market, the distribution of pay-TV
services, or ultramarine telecommunications markets to Vivend)

Liquidity - Lock-up period - Standard 180-day lock-up perod, including restnctions on any disposal or transfer of
shares or equivalent transactions, following the date of setilement-delivery of the rights
1ssue of Numenicable Group {on November 20, 2014}, at the request of the underwniting
banks

- Lotk-up period until the end of November 2015, after which Vivend: may sell or distribute
its Numenicable - SFR shares, without restrictions, with a nght of prionty granted to
Altice {pre-emption right or night of first offer)

- Vivendi has agreed not to acquire any Numericable - SFR shares, directly or indirectly,
until June 30, 2018

- Subject to Vivend! retaining 1ts shares, Altice will have a call option at market value
{subject to a floor') on Vivend:’s interest, exercisable in three tranches (7%, 7%, 6%) over
one-month window periods starting on June 1, 2016, June 1, 2017 and June 1, 2018

- Tag-along rghts for Vivend: if Altice selis its shares

As from the first quarter of 2014, SFR was presented in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings, the Statement of Cash Flows and in the

Statement of Financial Position of Vivend: as a discontinued operation The data presented below relates to the contribution of the operating

segment “SFR" until the effective divestiture date, which includes SFR SA and its subsidianies, as well as the interest held by Vivend:,

through its subsidiary, SIG 50, in the telecommunication products and services distnbution operations

Recognition of 20% interest in Numenceble - SFR

On November 27, 2014, Vivend: sold 100% of ts interest in SFR to Numericable and recewed €13 166 bilhion n cash as well as
97,387,845 shares In the new combined entity Numer:icable - SFR, which represents a 20% nterest and voting nights Since that date,
Vivend deconsolidated SFR Given the significant restrictive nature of the commitments given by Vivendi and Numericable - SFR to the
French Competition Authority with respect to all Numericable - SFR's operations, Vivendi's minority representation on Numericable - SFR's
Board of Directors together with the other specific nghts granted to Vivend: by Numericable - SFR’s governance {see above) helps Vivend)
adequately protect its proprietary interests as a minority shareholder Vivend considers that 1t does not have the nght to participate in
Numericable - SFR's financial and operational policy-making processes, according to IAS 28 Without having a significant influence, the 20%
nterest (n Numericable - SFR was recognized as an “available-for-sale secunties” in Vivendi's Consclidated Statement of Financial Position
and, n accordance with IAS 39, was revalued at the stock market price at each reporting date (€3,987 million as of December 31, 2014) as
the unrealized gains or losses were directly recognized In equity Frem November 27, 2014 to December 31, 2014, the reevaluation of
Vivend!'s interest in Numericable - SFR resulted in an unrealized gain of £743 milhon (before taxes)

! Volume Wesghted Average Price (VWAP) of Numencable Group's share price over the 20 busingss days before the clesing date fwiuch occurred on November 27, 2014)
£29 45 grossed-up at an annual rate of 5% dunng the peried ranging from the closing date until the date of exercese of the call option
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Capital gain on the sale of SFR

In accordance with IFRS, the capital gam on the sale of SFR was calculated as the difference between the sale price of 100% of SFR and the
value of SFR's net assets, as recorded in Vivendi's Cansolidated Financial Statements on the date of the sale The components of the sale
price are {1) the €13 166 billon cash proceeds, and (1) the value of a 20% nterest in the new combined entity Numericable-SFR, valued at
the stock market's price on November 27, 2014 (€33 315 per share), or €3 244 hillion The earn-out {€750 million) was excluded from the
calculation at this stage, due to its contingent nature On this basis, the capital gain on the sale of SFR amounted to €2,378 million {(after
taxes), recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Eamings under the hne "Eamings from discontinued operations™ Excluding the
discontinuation? of amortization since Apnl 1, 2014, 1n accordance with IFRS 5, the capital gain on the sale of SFR amounted to €3,459
midtion

Guarantees related to the sale of Maroc Telecom group

Vivend: has agreed to counter-guarantee SFR for any amount that may be claimed by Etisalat or any third party other than Etisalat i relation
with the sale of its interest in Maroe Telecom
« with respect to the sale agreement entered into with Etisalat, this commitment will expire at the expiry of Etisalat's right to make
a claim against Vivend) and SFR, 1 2, on May 14, 2018, and
+  this commitment, which will also cover any amount that SFR may be required to pay to any third-party other than Etisalat, wll
expire in the absence of any request from Numenicable Group within the applicable statutes of imitations

3.2 Plantosell GVT

On August 28, 2014, Vivendr's Supervisory Board decided to enter into exclusive negotiations with Telefonica to sell GVT After receiving a
positive opinion from employee representatives, on September 18, 2014 1t authorized the execution of an agreement with Telefonica for the
sale of GVT This agreement, the key terms of which are described below, represents a total enterpnise value of €7 45 biliion {(based on the
stock market value and foreign exchange rates on the date the exclusive negotiations were entered into with Telefonica), corresponding to a
2014 estimated EBITDA multiple of 10x The closing of the transaction 1s subject to certain conditions, including the approval by the relevant
regulatory authenties, and is expected to occur duning the second quarter of 2015

Cash proceeds at the completron date £4 66 billion subject to the sale price adjustment, based, among other things, on exceptional
changes in net working capital, GVT's bank debt {approximately €480 milion), as well as
centain restatements as contractually defined by the parties, at the completion date of the
sale Depending on these adjustments and the actual numbers as of the completion date, the
amount of cash consideration paid, may be increased or decreased Moreover, the cash
proceeds, net of adjustments, will also be decreased by any applicable taxes related to the
sale, currently estimated at approximately €500 mition The net sale price 1s estimated at
approximately €3 75 billion

Consideration shares 74% interest n Telefonica Brasil {VIVQ/GVT) and 57% nterest {8 3% voting rights) in
Telscom {tala

Financing Capital increase at Vivo to fund cash proceeds, guaranteed by Telefonica

Conditions precedent Completion of the transaction 1s subject to obtaining approvals from ANATEL (Ag8ncia

Nacional de Telecomunicagdes) and CADE (Consetho Administrative de Defesa EconBmica) in

Brazil, and other conditions customary n this type of transaction

Commitments given Limited representations and warranties

Liguidity With respect to Vivendi's interest in the combined VIVO/GVT entity
maximurm 180 day lock-up period starting as from the completien date of the
transaction, and

- tag-along rights

Governance No specific governance nghts in VIVO/GVT and Telecom ltalia

As from the third quarter of 2014, given the expected closing date of this transaction, GVT was presented in the Consolidated Statement of
Earnings, the Statement of Cash Flows and in Statement of Financial Position of Vivends as a discontinued operation

2 When an actialy 1s discontinued, IFRS 5 requires the discontinuation of the amortization of the aperation s langible and intangible assets Therefore for SFR reported as a
discontinued operation since March 31 2014, Vivend: discontinued the amortization of tangible and intangible assets as from the second quarter of 2014 resulting in 8 positive
mpact attrbutable to Vivend) SA shareholders, of €1 081 militon en earnings from discontinued operations from Apni 1 to November 27, 2014

Financial Report and Audited Consohidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2614 Vivend: /73



Friday, February 27 2015

33 Sale of Maroc Tefecom group

(n May 14, 2014, pursuant to the agreements entered into on November 4, 2013, Vivend: sold its 53% interest in Maroc Tefecom to Etisalat
and receved €4,138 million 1n total cash proceeds from sale, after a contractual price adjustment {-€49 million) On the same date, Vivendi
deconsolidated Maroc Telecom and recorded a capital gamn of €786 million (before taxes and net of costs refated to the sale), which is
presented under “Earnings from discontinued operations” in 2014 The agreements contained representations and warranties customary to
this type of transaction The main terms of the sale were the following

e Vivend: provided certain customary representations and warranties to Etisalat refating to SPT (the holding company of Maroc
Telecom group), Marec Telecom and its subsidianies Vivend: also granted a number of specific guarantees,

» the amount of compensation to be paid by Vivendi in respect of indemnifiable fosses incurred by Maroc Telecom or one of its
subsidiaries was determined in proportien to the percentage of ownership held indirectly by Vivend: 1n the relevant company on
the closing date (1 e , 53% for Maroc Telecom),

» Vivend's overall obligation to indemmfy was capped at 50% of the initial sale price, and this threshold was ncreased to 100% i
respect of ¢claims related to SPT,

« the commitments to indemnify provided by Vivend), other than thase in respect of taxes and SPT. will remain in effect for a
24 month peniod following completion of the transaction (May 2016) Claims for tax-related indemnities must be made by January
15, 2018 The indemnity related to SPT remamns m effect until the end of a four-year penod following the closing (May 14, 2018),
and

* to guarantee the payment of any specific indemnity amounts referenced above, Vivend delivered a bank guarantee to Etisalat in
the amount of £247 mullion, expiring on February 15, 2018 On July 8, 2014, Vivend: received a discharge of this guarantee for the
amount of £229 rmlhion

3.4 Sale of Activision Blizzard shares

In accordance with the agreements entered mto on October 11, 2013, the 83 million Activision Blizzard shares retained by Vivend were
subject to a two-tiered lock-up provision

e from October 11, 2013 untd April 9, 2014, Vivend cannot sell, transfer, hedge or otherwise dispose of any Activision Blizzard
shares directly or indirectly, from Apnil 10, untd July 8, 2014 Vivend) can sell Activision Blizzard shares provided they constitute no
more than the lesser of (I} 50% of Vivendi's 83 million remaining shares and {11} 9% of the outstanding shares of Activision
Blizzard, and

e from July 10, 2014 until January 7, 2015, Vivendi was subject ta another lock-up provision, as fram January 7, 2015, Vivend: may
sell its remaining Activision Blizzard shares without restriction

Considerng the initial intention of Vivend: Management to sell these shares at the end of the lock-up periods if market conditions were
favorabie, the 83 million Activision Blizzard shares were classified as “Assets held for sale”

On May 22, 2014, Vivend) sold a first tranche of 41 5 milhen Activision Blrzzard shares for $852 miltion (€623 miflion) The €84 mullion capital
gain 1s presented :n “Earnings from discontinued operations™ Taking into account the capital gan of €123 million recorded in 2013, the
capital gain realized by Vivendi with respect to this first tranche of Activision Blizzard shares amounted to €207 mullion

As of December 31, 2014, the remaining interest of 415 millian Activision Blizzard shares, valued at $836 million (€689 million) was
reclassified 1 "available-for-sale secunties” as Vivendi Management has decided not to sell this interast in the immediate future As of
December 31, 2014, the unrealized capital gain with respect to this mterest amounted to £273 million {before taxes), directly recogmzed in

equity
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35 Earnings from discontinued operations

In compliance with {FRS 5, the kne "Eamings from discontinued operations™ presented In Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Eamings
includes the operations of GVT (for the years 2014 and 2013), SFR {for the year 2013 and unt:l the date of the sale on November 27, 2014),
Maroc Telecom group (for the year 2013 and until the date of the sale on May 14, 2014), and Activision Blizzard {until the date of the sale on
October 11, 2013} as well as the capital gain on completed divestiture with respect to discontinued operations

2014 contnibutions
GvT SFR Ma“’g{Te'em'“ Other Total
{im milhion of euros) oup
Revenues 1,765 8,981 963 - 11715
EBITDA 702 2129 530 - 3361
Adjusted earmings before interest and ncome taxes {EBITA) 367 689 360 - 1,416
EBITA after discontinuation of amortization (a} 478 1,732 531 - 27
Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT) 457 1676 531 - 2,664
Earnings betore provision for income taxes 31 1,487 527 - 2,407
Prowiston for income taxes {69) (188} {120} - {397)
Earnings 304 1.299 407 - 200
Capital gain on completed divestiture na 2378 786 84 (b 3,248
Other (2) - 6 4
Earnings from discontinued operations 302 3677 1,193 E: 1] 5,262
—
Of which attributable to Vivend) SA shareowners 302 3663 979 90 5034
non-controlling interests - 14 214 - 228
2013 contnbutions
VT SFR MaruGc Telecom A;;Ms‘?jn Total
{in mullions of evros) roup Izzar
Revenues 1,709 10199 2,559 2,328 16795
EBITDA 707 2766 1,453 989 58315
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) 405 1073 984 &7 3333
EBITA after discontinuation of amortization (a) 405 1073 1,215 895 3588
Eamings before tnterest and income taxes (EBIT) 355 11427 (o 1,202 891 101
Earnings before prowsian for income taxes i1 {1689) ic) i169 B46 447
Provrsion for income taxes {32) {315) 473) {154) 974)
Earnings 89 (2,004} (c) 696 692 {527)
Capital gain an completed divestiture na na na 2315 2915
Gain in value of the remaining interest na na na 245 245
Earmings from discontinued operations 89 (2,004} (c) 696 3852 2633
Of which attnbutable to Vivendr SA shareowners 89 2010} {c} 261 3584 1,924
non contralling interests 6 435 268 709
na not applicable
a In compliance with [FRS 5, Vivend: discontinued the amartization of tangible and ntang:ble assets of
GVT as from September 1, 2014,
SFR as from Apnl 1, 2014,
- Maroc Telecom group as from July 1, 2013, and
Actvision Blizzard as from July 1, 2013
b Includes the capital gain on the divestiture of 41 5 million Activision Bhizzard shares, completed on May 22, 2014

c Includes the impairment of SFR's goodwill for €2,431 millon
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In compliance with IFRS 5, the lines “Assets of discontinued businesses” and “Liabilities associated with assets of discontinued bustnesses™
presented in Vivendr's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position repart the contribution of discontinued operations at the closing date

- GVT as of December 31, 2014, and
- Maroc Telecom group as of December 31, 2013

{in mitleons of euros)

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equtpment

Trade accounts receivable and other
Cash and cash equivalents

Other

Assaets of discontinued businesses

Provisions
Borrowtngs and other financial liabdities
of which Borrowings from Vivend (al
Trade accounts payable and other
Other
Liabilities
Borrowings from Vivend (a)
Liabslities associated with assets of discontinued businesses

December 31 2014
GVT

1,676
7
25654
657
179
16
5,353

67
1,506
110

510

121
2204
(1110)
1,094

4239

a  This borrowing from Vivend: will be redeemed on the date of GVT's sate completion

{in milhons of euras})

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Property, plant and egquipment

Trade accounts recervable and other
Cash and cash equivalents

Qther

Assets of discontinued businesses

Provisions

Borrowengs and other financial habilities

Trade accounts payable and other

Other

Liahilities associated with assets of discantinued busimesses

December 31 2013
Maroc Telecom

Group

2,392

386

2466

845

396

77

6,562

78
710
1541
100
2429

4133
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3.7 Statement of Cash Flows of discontinued operations

In accordance with IFRS 5, the hine "Cash Flows of discontinued operations” of Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows takes into
account GVT {for the years 2014 and 2013), SFR (for the year 2013 and until 1its effective sale i 2014}, Maroc Telecom group (for the year
7013 and until 1ts effective sale in 2014}, and Activision Blizzard {until its effective sale in 2013)

2014 contrsbutions
VT SH Marog Telscom Total
{in millions of euros) roup
Operating activities
Gross cash pronded by operating actvities before income tax paid 710 1846 345 290
QOther changes in net working capital (40} {320} 27 (333)
Not cash prowided By operating activities 593 1339 302 284
Investing actiities
Capetal expenditures, nes 617} {1 238} {146) (2 001)
Changa in financial agsets net 2 (35} (33)
Net cash provided by/{used for) investing activities {B15) 1,273} (146) (2,034}
Financing activities
Dwidends paid to non-controling interests 1] (20 {27)
Qther transactions with non-controliing interests - - (1} {11}
Interest pard net on fimancings {22) {6} (28}
Interest paid on borrowings from Vivend: 13 nan (154}
Other transactions on borrawings and ather financial Liabiiities {25) 410 {101} {536}
Net cash provided by/(used for} financing activities excluding intersegment transactions {60} {564) {132} (756)
Transactions with Vivend: on barrowngs and gther finangial Labslities 110 237 - 347
Net cash provided by/{used for} financing activities 50 (3z7) {132} (409}
Foreign currency translation adjustments {2) - {2) {4)
Change 12 cash and cash equivalents % {261} 2 (213)
Cash and cash equivalents
At beginning of the penod 154 394 396 944
At end of the penad 140 133 418 EE]]
2013 contnibutions
v seR Ma:o; Telecom A;Itms:n Total
{in millions of euros) Toup iza
Operating activities
Gross cash provided by operating actwities before incame tax paid n7 2565 1448 07 5637
Other changes in net working caprtai 139} {305) 29 {524} {8331
Net cash provided by operating sctivities 575 1961 1,110 307 3.953
Investing activities
Capital expenditures net {758) (1610 {434) {44} (2 857)
Change in financia! assets net (4) (28) 5 11479) {1 506}
Net cash provided byf{used for) investing actrvities {3} 11.638) [429) 11,523} {4.363)
F|I'III'II’:II1U octivittas
Diwvidards paid to non contralling interests - [k}} {328} (68) {397}
Interest pard net an financings 123) {16} (29} 1 {67
Interest paid an barrewings from Vivend: 1] [212) {222}
Other transactions on borrowings and other financial habiities 43 {46} (13 i _':ﬂ 1703
Net cash proveded hy/(used for) hinancing activitiss excloding intarsegment transactions 10 [F23]] (370) 1,554 1017
Dradends paid to Vivend: 1382) {98) {1 080
Transactions with Vivend) on barrowangs ang other financeal hatalities 84 1063 1247
Net cash provided by/{used for) financing actwities 194 196} {370) 1 556 1184
Foreign currency translation agjustments 128) i) {43) {72}
Change in cash and cash equivalents {32) 127 310 27 702
Cesh and cash equivalants
At beginning of the pericd 186 267 86 2,989 3 528
At end of the penod 154 3 396 3286 4230
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Note 4 EBIT

Breakdown of revenues and cost of revenues

Year ended December 31

{in mitlions of euros) 2014 2013

Product sales, net 4701 5028
Services revenues 51322 5,196
Other 66 23
Revenues 10,089 10,252
Cost of products sold, net (2 365) {2514}
Cost of service revenues {3,748) {3 576}
Other {8) (7}
Cost of revenues {6.121) {6,097)

Personnel costs and average employee numbers

Year ended December 31,

{in milhons of euros except number of employees) Note 2014 2013
Annual avarage number of full-time equivalent employees {in thousands) 15.0 146
Salaries 1,015 1043
Social security and other employment charges 251 M
Capitahzed personnel costs {3) (3}
Wages and expenses 1,263 1281
Share-based compensation plans 201 {8} pac|
Emptoyee benefit plans 191 10 17
Other 42 I
Personnel costs 1.307 1361

Additional information on operating expenses
Advertising costs amounted to €407 million in 2014 {compared to €442 mtllion in 2013)

Expenses recorded in the Statement of Earmings, with respect to service contracts related to satellite transponders amounted to £115 million
in 2014 {compared to €108 million 1n 2013}

Net expense recorded 1 the Statement of Earmings, with respect to operating leases amounted to €104 million 1n 2014 {compared to
€97 mulion in 2013}

Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible assets

Year ended December 31

{in millions of euros) Note 2014 2013
Amartization (excluding intangible assets acquired through business combinations} 307 310
of which property, plant and equipment 12 232 228
content assets 10 4 22
other intangible assets 11 §! 60
Amartization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations 344 350
of which content assets 10 334 339
other intangible assets " 10 i1
Impasrment losses on intangible assets acquired through busiress combinations 101 92 ia) &
Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible assets 43 666

a  Prmarily relates to full impairment losses of goodwill related to Digrtck for €43 million and Wengo for €48 million (please refer to
Note 9)
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Other income and other charges

Year ended December 31,

{in mullions of euros) 2014 2013
Caprtal gain on financial investments 194 {a} 37
Capital gain on the divestiture of businesses - 3
Other ] 48

Other income 203 88
Downside adjustment on financiak Investmants 117 (28}
Other 113) (22}

Other charges (30} {50)

Nettotal 173 3

a  Includes the capital gain of the sale of Universal Music Group's interest in Beats (€179 million)
Note 5 Financial charges and income
Interest
Yeer ended December 31
{in millions of euros} Note 2014 2013
{Charge)/Income
Interest expense on borrowings 21 {283} {434}
Interest mcome on SFR s loans 159 212
Interest mncome on GVT's loans 13 10
Interest expense net of borrowings {1t1) (272)
Interest income from cash and cash equivalents 15 6
Interest from continuing operatons (96) (266)
Premium paid and other costs related to the early redemptions of bonds {a) {698) {202}
(794) (468}
Other financial income and charges
Year ended December 31
(in millions of euros) Note 2014 2013
Expected return on plan assets related to employes herefit plans 192 12 13
Foreign exchange gain 7 -
Other financial income 19 13
Premium paid and other costs related to the early redemptions of bonds (a) {698} (202)
Effect of undiscounting habifities (b} {8) {12)
Interest cost related to employee benefit plans 192 131} {31)
Foreign exchange loss 18 (45)
Change in value of denvatwe struments . m
fther {6) {9
Other financial charges {151} (300)
Net tota) (132} (287)

a  Includes net premium paid related to the early redemption of bonds
- anet amount of €642 million in 2014, following the completion of the sale of SFR, and
- anetamount of €182 million 1n 2013, following the sale of 88% of Vivend!'s interest in Activision Blizzard

b Inaccordance with applicable accounting standards, when the effect of the time value of money 1s matenial, assets and liabilities are
initially recorded on the Statement of Financial Position in an amount corresponding to the present value of the expected revenues and
expenses At the end of each subsequent penod, the present value of such assets and liabilities ts adjusted to account for the passage

of tme As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, these adjustments only applied to habihties {mamly trade accounts payable and
provisions)
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Note 6 Income taxes

61

French Tax Group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems

Vivendl SA benefits from the French Tax Group System and considers that it bengfied, until December 31, 2011 inclusive, from the
Consolidated Global Profit Tax System, as authorized under Article 209 quinguies of the French Tax Code Since January 1, 2012, Vivend
only benefits from the French Tax Group System

Under the French Tax Group System, Vivend: is entitled to consolidate (ts own tax profits and losses with the tax profits and losses
of subsidiaries that are at least 95% owned directly or indirectly by 1t, and that are located in France for 2014, this mainly applied
to Universal Music in France and Canal+ Group In 2014, SFR 15 no tonger part of Vivend's tax group following its sale to
Numericable Group at the end of November 2014

Untif Becember 31, 2011, the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System entitled Vivend: to consolidate 1ts own tax profits and losses
with the tax profits and losses of subsidiaries that were at least 50% owned directly or indirectly by 1t, and lecated in France or
abroad, 1 e, other than the French companies that were at least 95% owned directly or indirectly by Vivendi Activision Blizzard,
Universal Music Group, Maroc Telecom, GVT, Canal+ France and its subsidiaries, as well as Société d'Edition de Canal Plus
(SECP) As a reminder, on May 19, 2008, Vivendi lodged an appeal with the French Ministry of Finance in relation to the renewal of
its authorization to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System and an authorzation was granted by an order dated
March 13, 2008, for a three-year penod beginning with the taxable year 2009 and ending with the taxable year 2011

In addition, as a reminder, on July 6, 2011, Vivend: lodged an appeal with the French Ministry of Finance in relation to the renewal
of its authorization to use the Consolidated Glabal Profit Tax System for a three-year period, from January 1, 2012 to December 31,
2014

The changes in French Tax Law in 2011 terminated the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System as of September 6, 2011 and capped
the deduction for tax losses carried forward at 60% of taxable income Since 2012, the deduction for tax losses carmed forward 15
capped at 50% of taxable income and the deductibility of interest is limited to 85% of financial charges, net{75% as from January
1,2014)

The impact of the French Tax Group and Consohidated Global Profit Tax Systems on the valuation of Vivend!'s tax attributes {tax losses and
tax credits carred forward) are as follows

.

as Vivend! considers that its entitlement to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System was effective until the end of the
authorization granted by the French Ministry of Finance, inctuding fiscal year ending December 31, 2011, on November 30, 2012,
Vivend filed for a refund of €366 million with respect to the tax saving for the fiscal year ended December 31,2011 As this
request was denied by the tax authorities, in tts Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, Vivend: accrued a
€366 million provision for the associated nisk, unchanged as of December 31, 2013 On October 6, 2014, the Administrative Court
of Montreu| ruled in favor of Vivendi Pursuant to this ruling, on December 23, 2014, Vivend: rece:ved a €366 miihon refund and
moratorium interests of €43 million which were received on January 16, 2015 On December 2, 2014, the tax authonties appealed
this ruling As a result, in its Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, Vivend maintained the provision related
to the €366 mitlion pringipal refund increased by €43 mitlion with respect to moratorium interests {please refer to Note 6 6),
roreover, considering that the Consalidated Global Profit Tax System permitted tax credits to be carried forward upon the end of
the authorization on December 31, 2011, Vivend! requested a refund of taxes due, under the French Tax Group System for the year
ended December 31, 2012, or €208 million, brought to €220 million, in 2013 when filing the tax return with respect to fiscal year
ended December 31, 2012 This position was challenged by the tax authonties as part of an in-process control procedure and
Vivend: accrued the associated risk for a principal amount of €208 mitlion in provision in its Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2012, brought to €220 million as of December 31, 2013 In its Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2014, Vivendi maintained the €220 million principal refund, increased by an additional default mterest of £11 mithon
{please refer to Note 6 &),

in the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, the 2014 tax results of the subsidianies within the scope of
Vivend SA's French Tax Group System were estimated, and as a resuit, the amount of tax attnbutes as of December 31, 2014
could not be reliably determined Taking into account the impact of the estimated 2014 tax results and befare the effects of the
ongoing tax audits (please refer to Note 6 B) on the amount of tax attnbutes, Vivendi SA may achieve €1,400 million in tax savings
from tax attnbutes (undiscounted value based on the current income tax rate of 38 00%), and

as of December 31, 2014, Vivench SA valued 1ts tax attrbutes under the French Tax Group System on the basis of one year's
forecasted results, taken from the following year's budget On this basis, Vivend: would achieve tax savings from the French Tax
Group System :n an amount of £126 muiion {undiscounted value based on the current income tax rate of 38 00%)
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6.2 Provision for income taxes

{in milhons of suros)
{Charge}/Income
Current

Use of tax losses and tax credits
Related to Vivendi SA's French Tax Group System and to the Consolidated

Global Profit Tax System
Related to the US tax group

Adjustments to prior year's tax expense
Consideration of nisks related to previous years' income taxes

Other income taxes 1tems

Deferred

Impact of Vivend SA's French Tax Group System and of the Consolidated Global

Profit Tax System
Impact of the US tax group

Other changes mn deferred tax assets
Impact of the change(s) in tax rates

Reversal of tax habilities

Other deferred tax income/(expenses)

Provision for income taxes

Note

61

61

Fnday February 27 2015

Year ended December 31,

63 Provision for income taxes and income tax paid by geographic area

{in millions of euros)
{Charge}/Income
Current
France
United States
(Other countries

Deferred
France
United States
Other countries

Provision for income taxes

Income tax {paid)/collected
France
United States
Other countries

Income tax (paid}/collected

Fwancial Report and Audized Consofidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2014

2014 2013
147 45
86 25
{21) {22)
3) 133
{283) {375)
(94) 176
37) (161}
21 2
- kT
- 12
(20) (46)
(36) {159)
{130) 17
Year ended December 31,
2014 2013
{44) 199
5 8
{5%) {31)
{94) 176
{61} {163)
(58) (48}
83 50
(36 (159)
{130 17
320 277
(5) 8
{35} (64}
280 205
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6.4 Effective tax rate

(in millions of euros except %)
Earnings {before non-controlling interests}
Elimination

Income from equity affihates

Eamings from discontinued operations

Provision for mcome: taxes

? Earnings from continuing operations before proviston for tncome taxes
French statutory tax rate
Theoretical provision for income taxes based on French statutory tax rate

Reconcthation of the theoretical and effective provision for income taxes
Permanent differences
of which  ather differences from tax rates on earnings
impacts of the changes i tax rates

Changes in deferred tax assets related to Vivendi SA's French Tax Group System
and to the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System

Other tax losses and tax credits
of which  use of unrecognized losses and tax credits
unrecognized losses

Other temporary differences
of which  reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corporation hitigation in the Uneted States

Adjustments to prior year's tax expense
of which  consideration of risks related to previous years' ncome taxes

Caprtal gain or lass on the divestiture of or downside adjustments on financial
investments or businesses
of which impasrment of Digitick goodwall
mmpairment of Wengo goodwill

Dther

Provision for income taxes
Effective tax rate

6.5 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Changes in deferred tax assets/(hablities), net

Friday, February 27, 2015

{in milhons of euros)

Opening balance of deferred tax assets/{liabilitias)
Provision for income taxes (a)
Charges and income directly recorded n equity
Business combinations
Diwvestitures in progress or completed
Changes n foreign currency translation adsustments and other

Closing balance of deferred tax assets/{liabtlities)

Year ended December 31,
2014 203
5.025 2719
8 al
(5.262) (2.633)
1306 (17
{89) 150
38 00% 38 00%
3 {57)
14 (28)
12 4
. 34
{37 (161)
{175) (205)
48 -
{221} (205}
42 s
41
{33} 130
{3 145
{35) 2}
{17} -
{18} -
- bx]
(130) 17
-146 1% -113%
Year ended December 31,
2014 203
53 454
{53} {437
o4 - (b
9 163
(20} (208)
10 79
53 53

a  Includes income/{charges) related to taxes from discontinued aperations in accordance with IFRS 5, these amounts were reclassified

to the line “Earnings from discontinued operations” in the 2014 and 2013 Consolidated Statement of Earnings

b Includes -€43 mullion recognized in other items of charges and mcome directly recognized in equity for the year ended

December 31, 2013 (please refer to Note 8)

Financial Report and Audited Consalidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2014

Vivend /82




Components of deferred tax assets and liabilities

{in mihans of euros)

Deferred tax assets
Recognizable deferred taxes

Friday, February 27, 2015

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

Tax attributes {a) 2437 2,581
of which Vivend: SA (bl 1,400 1527
f US tax group {c) 419 354
Temporary differences (d} 704 1,105
Netting (124) {501)
Recognizable deferred taxes 3017 3195
Deferred taxes, unrecogmzed
Tax attnibutes [a) {2,155) (2,262)
of which Vivendt SA {b) 1,274} {1,364}
US tax group {c} {419) {364)
Temporary differances (d) {152} (200)
Deferred taxes, unrecognized {2307} (2.462)
Recorded deferred tax assets 70 733
Deferred tax Labilities
Asset revaluations (e} 484 591
Other 297 590
Netting (124) {501}
Recorded deferred tax hiabilities 657 680
Deferred tax assets/{liabilities), net 53 53

The amounts of tax attnbutes, as reported in this table, were estimated at the end of the relevant fiscal years In junisdictions which
are significant for Vivendi, mamnly France and the United States, tax returns are filed on May 1¥ and September 15* of the following
year at the latest, respectively The amounts of tax attributes reported in this table and the amounts reported to the tax authorities
may therefore differ, and if necessary, may need to be adjusted at the end of the follow:ng year in the above table

Relates to deferred tax assets recognizable in respect of tax attributes by Vivendi SA as head of the French Tax Group, representing
£1,400 milhon as of December 31, 2014 (please refer to Nete 6 1), of which €1,115 million related to tax losses and €285 m:llion
related to tax cred:ts, taking into account the estimated impact (€110 mullion} of 2014 transactions (taxable income and use or
expiration of tax credits), but before taking into account the effects of engoing tax auduts {please refer to Note 6 6)

In France, tax losses can be camed forward indefinitely and Vivendi considers that tax credits can be carmed forward for a minimum
penod of five years upon exit from the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System In 2014, €265 million tax credits matured as of

Relates to deferred tax assets recognizable in respect of tax attnbutes by Universal Music Group, Inc 1n the United States as head of
the US tax group, representing $509 million as of Becember 31, 2014, taking nto account the estimated impact {-$68 million) of the
2014 transactions {taxable income, capital losses, and tax credits that expired, capital losses and tax credits generated, but before
taking nto account the final outcome of ongoing tax audits {please refer to Note 6 6}

As a reminder, with respect to the divestiture of 88% of the nterest iIn Actvision Blizzard and in accordance with U § tax rules,
Vivend: alfocated to Actwision Blizzard, the acquirer of the majority of the Activision Blizzard shares transferred in the transaction, a
fraction of its tax losses estimated at more than $700 million In addition, Universal Music Group inc replaced Vivendi Holding | LLC
{formerly, Vivend: Holding | Corp } as head of the Tax Group System in the United States

In the United States, tax losses can be carmed forward for a period of up to 20-years and tax creduts can be carmed forward for a penod
of up to 10-years No tax credit will mature prior to December 31, 2021 and no tax credst had matured in 2014

Manly relates to the deferred tax assets associated with non-deducted provisions upon recognition, including provisions relating to

a
b
December 31, 2014
¢
|
|
d
employee benefit plans, and share-based compensation plans
e

These tax habilities, generated by asset revaluations following purchase allocations are terminated upen the amortizauon or
divestiture of the underlying asset and generate no current tax charge
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6.6 Tax audits

The: fisca! year ended on December 31, 2014 and prior years are open to tax audits by the respective tax authorties In the junsdictians in
which Vivend: has or had operations Vanous tax authorties have proposed adjustments to the taxable income reported for prior vears It is
not possible, at this stage of the current tax audits, to accurately assess the impact that could result from an unfavorable outcome of these
audits Vivendi Management believes that these tax audits should not have a matenal unfavorable impact cn the financial position or
liquidity of the group

Regarding Vivendi SA, in respect of the Consolidated Glabal Profit Tax System, the consolidated income reported for fiscal years 2008, 2007,
and 2008 1s under audit by the French tax authonties This tax audit began in January 2010 In addition, 1n January 2011, the French tax
authanties began a tax audit on the consol:dated ncome reported for fiscal year 2009 and in February 2013, the French tax authonties
expanded the audit to include the consolidated income reported for fiscal year 2010 Finally, the audit of Vivend: SA’s tax group System for
the years 2011 and 2012 began in July 2013 As of December 31, 2014, all of these audits were ongoing Vivendi Management believes that
It has solid legal grounds to defend its positions for determining the taxable income for the fiscal years under audit In any event, a provision
for the impact of the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System in 2011 has been accrued (€409 million), notwithstanding the decision of the
Administrative Court of Montrewi| on October B, 2014, subject to the appeal filed by the Tax Authonities (please refer to Note 6 1), as well as
a provision for the impact n relation to the use of tax credits n 2012 (€231 mellion)

In respect of the US tax group, the fiscal vears ending December 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007 were under a tax audit The final outcome of this
tax audit did not materially impact the amount of tax attnbutes Vivendi's US tax group was also under audit for the fiscal years ending
December 31, 2008, 2008, and 2010 This tax audit has now been completed and its final outcome did not materially impact the amount of
tax attributes In Jung 2014, the US tax authorities began a tax audit for fiscal years 2011 and 2012, and in December 2014, stated that they
undertook a tax audit for fiscal year 2013 As of December 31, 2014, the audit with respect to these fiscal years was ongoing Vivendi
Management believes that 1t has solid tegal grounds to defend its positions for determining the taxable income for the fiscal years under
audit

Note 7 Earnings per share

Year ended December 31

2014 2013
Basip Diluted Basic Diluted

Earnings (in mithons of euros)

Earmings from continuing operations attnbutable to Vivend) SA shareowners (290} {290 43 43
Earniags from discontinued operations attnibutable to Vivend) SA shareowners 5034 5034 1924 1921
Earnings atinbutable to Vivendi SA shareowners 4744 4744 1,967 1964
Number of shares (in millions}

Weighted average number of shares outstanding (a) 13458 1,3458 13306 133086
Potential dilutive effects related to share-based compensation {p) - 55 - 47
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 13458 13513 13306 13353
Earnings per share (in euros)

Earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share 022) (022) 003 003
Earmngs from discontinued operations attributable to Vivend) SA shareowners per share 374 373 145 144
Earnings attributable te Vivendi SA sharecwners per share 352 351 148 147

a  Net of treasury shares {please refer to Note 17)

b Does not include accretive instruments as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, which could be potentially dilutive The balance of common
shares n connection with Vivend: SA’s share-based compensation plans 1s presented in Note 20 2 1
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Note 8 Charges and income directly recognized in equity

{in milkans of euros) Note

Actuanal gans/losses) retated to employee defined benafit plans 13
Items not reclassified to profit or loss

Foreign currency translation adjustments (a}

Unrealized gainsHlosses)
Change in far value (b}
Transferred to profit or loss of the penod (¢}
Other (d)
Assets avallable for sale 14

Cash flow hedge instruments
Change m far value
Transferred to profit or lass of the period
Net investmen? hedge instruments
Change in fair value
Transferred to profit or foss of the peniod
Hedging instruments 22

Other impacts
Items to be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Charges and income directly recognized in equity

{in mbiens of euros) Note

Actuanial gains/ltosses) related to employee defined benefit plans 19
Items not reclassified to profit or loss

Forergn currancy translation adjustments (g)

Unrealhized gains/{losses)
Change in fair value
Transfarrad to profit or loss of the period
Assets avallable forsale 14

Cash flow hedge instruments
Change i fair valug
Transferred to profit or loss of the period
Net investment hedge instruments
Change tn fair value
Transfarred to profit or loss of the penod
Hedging instruments 22

Other impacts
Iteemns ta be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Charges and income directly recegnized n equity

Friday February 27 2015

Year ended December 31 2014

Gross Tax Net

{33} 25 [68)
(93} 25 (68)
78 - i)
907 29 936
920 {5 s
{95) 35 {59
123 - 123
948 n 979

15 {1 14

& i 5

g g
{56) - (56)
f56) - {56)
{41 il (42)
(94) - (94)
1,50 29 1,620
1,438 54 1,552

Year ended December 31 2013
Gross Tax Net

122} 1) i23)
(22) {1} {23)
{1,029) - (1.429)
99 (a1} 58
120 {42} 78

i - 1

121 142 Fi|

2 1 3

16 - 6
14} 1 13}
24) (24}

15 15
{38} - {39/
{22 1 21}

16 {1} 15
{1.319) (42) {1.356)
{1.336) {43) {1,379}

a  Manly relates to foreign currency translation adjustments due to fluctuations in exchange rates at UMG (€730 million)

b Primarly includes unrealized capital gains related to 97 4 million shares in Numericable - SFR from Novemnber 27 to December 31, 2014
for €743 million {please refer to Note 3 1) and 41 5 mullion shares in Activision Blizzard 1n 2014 for €150 million {please refer to Note
34) In accordance with IAS 39, these avalable-for-sale securities were valued on stock market price at each reporting date, relevant
unreahzed gains and losses were directly recognized in equity and will be reclassified to profit or loss upon their sale, if any

¢ Relates to the reclassification to profit or loss of the gain realized on the sale of the :nterest in Beats by UMG m August 2014

d Relates to the unrealized gain generated from October 11 to December 31, 2013 with respect to 41 5 mdlion Activision Blizzard shares
held by Vivendi as of December 31, 2014 following their reclassification from assets held for sale to available-for-sale securities as
Vivendi Management has decided not to sell this interest in the immediate future As of December 31, 2014, this interest amounted to
$836 mullion (€689 million) and the unrealized capital gain with respect to this interest amounted to €273 millon

e Includes the changes i foreign currency translation adjustments relating to discontinued operations for €685 millien and the

reclassification in earnings for €555 million as part of the sale of 88% of the interest in Actmwsion Blizzard
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Note 9 Goodwill

{in milhons of euros} Dacember 31, 2014 December 31 2013

Goodwill, gross 22622 31,539
Impairment losses {13,293) {14 392}
Goodwnll 9,329 17.147

Changes in goodwill

Changes In foreign

Becember 31 Impairment losses Business combinations Divestitures in progress currency translation December 31
2013 or completed diustments and oth 204

{in meliions of euros} acjustments and other
Canal+ Group 4 464 10 (a) 1) 4573
Universal Music Group 4,100 - B 550 (b} 4 656
Vivend Village 185 91} (e B 100
e177) 1676 - - {} B76}
SFR 6722 n 16 798}
Total 17,147 {M) 193 {8,475) 565 9329

December 31 Divestitures n progress Changes in forergn December 31

Impa:ment Josses Business combinations currency transfation
mz or completed drstments and oth 2013

{in millons of euras) Bojusiments and other
Canal+ Group 4513 148 - (3 4 464
Unversal Music Group 4138 ] 64 [d) 5 oz} 4100
Vivend: Vitlage 184 2 - {1} 185
GVT 2006 - 1330) 1676
SFR 9153 (2431) - 6722
Maroc Telecom Group 2407 (2392} {15} -
Actision Blizzard 2255 (2 208} 187
Total 24,656 12.436) 20 {4,505} [[F0) 17,147

a Notably includes goodwill attributable to Mediaserv and Thema acquired by Canal+ Overseas on February 13, 2014 and October 28,
2014, respectively

b Includes €548 million related to foreign currency translation {EUR/USD)
c Relates to full impairment losses on the goodwill of Digitick and Wengo (€43 million and €48 mifhion, respectively)

d Mainly relates to a €57 mill:on adjustment to goodwll attributable to EMI Recorded Music, recorded within the 12-month period for
the purchase price atlocation as required by IFRS 3 The final goodwill of EMI Recorded Music amounts to €358 million
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Goodwill impairment test

In 2014, Vivend: tested the value of goodwill allecated to its cash-generating umits {CGUs) or groups of CGU applying valuation methods
consistent with previous years Vivend ensured that the recoverable amount of CGU or groups of CGU exceeded the:r carrying value
{including goodwill} The recoverable amount 15 determined as the higher of the value n use determined by the discounted value of feture
cash flows {discounted cash flow method (DCF)) and the fair value (less costs to sell), determined on the bas:s of market data (stock market
prices, comparable listed companies, companson with the value attributed to similar assets or companies in recent transactions} For a
description of the methods used for the iImpairment test, please refer to Note 1357

Presentation of CGU or groups of CGUs tested

Operating Segments Cash Generating Units (CGU} CGU or groups of CGU tested
Pay-TV in Mainland France Pay-TV anc free to a TV In
Canal+ Qverseas (a) France Afnica and Vietnam (b}
Canal+ Group Free to-aw TV
nc+ {Poland) Nnc+
Studigcanal Studwocanal

Universal Music Group

Recorded music

Artist services and merchandising

Music publishing

Universal Music Group

See Tickets See Tickets
Vivend Village Bigick Digitsck
Wengo Wengo

a  Relates to pay-TV in France overseas, Africa and Vietnam

b The process of integrating free-to-air TV operations {D8/017 channels acquired on September 27, 2012) with pay-TV operations n
mainland France, as well as the development of pay-TV in Vietnam reflects the further convergence of pay-TV and free-to-air TV
operations in French-speaking countries in which Canal+ Group operates As a result, as of December 31, 2014, Vivend: performed a
goodwill impairment test related to pay-TV and free-to-air TV operations in France, Africa and Vietnam by aggregating the CGU of pay-
TV i Manland France, Canal+ Overseas and free-to-air TV, which corresponds to the level of monitoring the return on such
Investments

During the fourth quarter of 2014, Vivend: performed a goodwill impairment test on each cash generating umit {CGU} or groups of CGU, on
the basis of valuations of recoverable amounts determined with the assistance of third-party appraisers, for pay-TV and free-to-air TV in
France, Africa and Vietnam as well as Universal Music Group and internal valuations for nc+ in Poland, Studiocanal, See Tickets, Digitick
and Wengo As a result, Vivend: Management cancluded that, as of December 31, 2014, except for the cases of Digitick and Wengo (see
above), the recoverable amount for each CGU or graups of CGU tested exceeded their carrying value

As a reminder, as of December 31, 2013, Vivend examined the value of goodwill of pay-TV in Manland France and Canal+ Overseas
{previously Canal+ France), using the usual valuation methods and concluded that its recoverable amount, based upon the DCF method, using
the most recent cash flow farecasts appraved by the Management of the group, exceeded 1ts carrying value at that date Since November 5,
2013, Vivend holds a 100% interest n pay-TV operations of Canal+ in France and Africa pursuant to the acquisition of Lagardére Group's
20% nterest in Canal+ France for £1,020 million, 1n cash In accordance with IFRS 10, this transaction was recognized as the acquisition of a
non-controlling interest and the difference between the consideration paid and the carrying value of the acquired non-contralling interest
was recorded as a deduction from equity attributable to Vivend| SA sharecwners

As a reminder, s respect of SFR as of December 31, 2013, Vivend examined the value of SFR's goodwill SFR's recoverable amount was
determined upon the basis of the usual valuation methods, n particular the value in use, based upon the DCF method The most recent cash
flow forecasts, and financial assumptions approved by the Management of the group were used and were updated to take mto account the
strong impact on revenues of the new pricing policies decided by SFR in a competitive environment, partally offset by cost savings which
were consistent with expectations under SFR's transformation plan, while maintaining high capital expenditures, notably due to SFR's
acceleration of very-high speed mobile network investments As a result, Vivendr’'s Management concluded that SFR's recoverable amount
was below its carrying value as of December 31, 2013 and decided to record a goodwill impairment loss of €2,431 million
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The value i use of each CGU or groups of CGU is determined as the discounted value of future cash flows by using cash flow projections
consistent with the 2015 budget and the most recent forecasts prepared by the operating segments These forecasts are prepared for each
operating segment, on the basis of financial targets as well as the following main key assumptions discount rate, perpetual growth rate and
EBITA as defined in Note 12 3, capital expenditures, the competitive and regulatory environments, technotogical developments and level of
commercial expenses The recoverable amount for each CGU or groups of CGU was determined based on its value n use i accordance with
the main key assumptions set out belaw

Veluation Method 0, Rats (a} Porpstuat Growth Rate

Qp g CGU or groups cf CEGU tested 2014 a3 014 2013 a1 ma
::z ‘\I;\It:::n:ree to-air TV n France Africa DCF & comparables fhode! o {e) {d} {al If
Canak Group .y DCF {0 975% {gt 300% 4
Studiocanal DCF OCF 975% 900% 100% 000%
Universal Music Graup Unvarsal Music Group DCF & comparables model | DCF & comparables model §90% 9 15% 1.00% 1 00%
Sea Tickats DCF OcF 11 50% 11 50% 2 00% 200%
Vivend Villaga Digitick DCF ocF 11 50% 11 50% 2 00% 2 00%
Wenga OCF ncF 13 20% 1500% 200% {h}
GVT GVT 1) DCF {1} 1124% U} 400%
SFR SFR [N} DCF & comparables madal {1} 730% ] 0 50%

DCF Discounted Cash Flows

a The determinaton of recoverable amounts using a post-tax discount rate applied to post-fax cash fiows provides recoverable amounts
consistent with the ones that would have been obtained using a pre-tax discount rate applied to pre-tax cash flows

b Pay-TVin Manland France and Canal+ Overseas OCF & comparables model
Free-to-air TV DCF

¢ Pay-TV-Mamland France 8 04%, France overseas 9 04%, Africa 10 04%, Vigtnam 10 88%
Free-to-ar TV 95%

d  Pay-TV-Manland France B 3%, France overseas 9 3%, Africa 103%
Free-to-air TV 5%

e  Pay-TV-Manland France 1 5%, France overseas 15%, Africa 3 14%, Yietnam 4 5%
Free-to-ar TV 2%

f  Pay-TV-Maintand France 15%, France overseas 2 2%, Africa 317%
Free-to-air TV 2%

a  Asof December 31, 2013, no goodwill impairment test in respect of nc+ (pay-TV in Poland) was undertaken given that the completion date of
the goodwill of “n”, acquired on November 30, 2012 was close to the closing date, and considering that no tnggering event had occurred
between those dates

h  Asof December 31, 2013, the terminal value was determined by using an EBITDA multiple

i Considering the current plan 1o sell GVT, and in accordance with IFRS 5, GVT has been classified as a discontinued operation since the third
quarter of 2014

| SFRwas sold on November 27, 2014 (please refer to Note 3 1)
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December 31 2014

Disgount rate

Perpetual giowth rata

Discounted cash flows

Increase in the drscount rate

Decrease m the perpetual growth rate

Decrease in the discounted cash flows

Apphed mn order for the recoverable ameunt Applied wn order for the recoverable amount 1n order for the recoverable amount
raie te be equal to the carrying amount rate 10 be equat to the carrying amount to be equal te the carnyng amount
{n %) {in number of peinish (in %) {1n number of points) fin %)

Canal+ Group

Pay TV and Free-to-ar TV in France Afrca
and Vietnam al +) 268 pt 1bl 933pts A%
nc+ 975% +631 pts 300% -1025 pts -49%
Studigcanal 975% +166pt 100% 257 pts 18%
Universal Mus:c Group 890% +062 ot 100% Q77 ot £%
December 31 2013
Discount rate Perpetual growth rate Discounted cash flows

Increase in the discount rate Decrease in the perpetual growth rate Decrease In the discounted cash flows
Appled 40 arder for the recaverable amount Applied 1n arder for the recoverable amount n order far the recoverable amgunt
rate to be equal to the carnying amount rate to be equat 1o the carrying amount to be equal te the carnang amount
{in %) {in nurmber of points} {in %) {in nurnber of points) {in %)

Canal+ Group
;a,v;s:;: Mamland France and Canake o D2t id) o1pt 2%
Free-to-ane TV 350% + 84t 200% 2 14 pts 21%
Studiocanal 900% +219pts 000% 153 pts %
Universal Music Group 915% 2% 100% 298 pts 2%
GVY 1124% +128 pt 490% 257 pts 0%
SFR 730% e} 050% e} {e)

a  Pay-TV-Mainland France 804%, France overseas 904%, Africa 10 04%, Vietnam 10 88%

Free-to-air TV 95%

b Pay-TV-Manland France 15%, France overseas 1 5%, Afnca 3 14%, Vietnam 4 5%

Free-to-aw TV 2%

¢ Pay-TV-Mamland France 83%, France overseas 9 3%, Afnca 103%

Free-to-anr TV 2%

d Pay-TV-Manland France 1 5%, France overseas 2 2%, Africa 317%

Free-to-ar TV 2%

e  SFRwas sold on Noverber 27, 2014 {please refer to Note 3 1)
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Note 10 Content assets and commitments

101 Content assets

December 31 2014

Accumulated amortization
Content assets gross and impaiment losses Content assets
{in millions of euros)

Filmand television costs 6003 {5 244) 799
Sports nghts a1 - au

Music catalogs and publishing rights 7897 {6,031} 186§

Advances to artists and reperiowre owners 642 - 642
Merchandising contracts and artists services 27 120} 7
Content assets 14.980 {11,295) 3685
Deduction of current content assets (1155} 20 {1135
Non-current content assets 13,825 {11,215) 2,550

December 31, 2013

Accumulated amortization
Content assets, gross Content assets
and impairment losses

(in millions of euros)

Film and television casts 5678 {4875) 803
Sports rights 380 - 380
Music catalogs and publishing rights 6,932 [5,032) 1,960
Advances to artists and repertoire owners 621 - ivdl
Merchandising contracts and artists services 25 {17} ]
Content assets 13,686 {9,924) 3,712
Deduction of current content assets {1,176) 27 [1,149)
Non-current content assets 12,520 {9.897) 2,623

Changes in main content assets

Year ended December 31,
{in millons of euros) 2014 2013
Opening balance m 43N
Amgrtization of content assets excleding those acquired through business combinations (14) any
Amartization of content assets acquired through busmess combmations (334) [344)
Increase 2339 2,495
Decrease (2,352} (2.332)
Business combinations 27 3
Dwestitures in progress or completed - (347)
Changes in foreign currency translation adjustments and other 247 7
Closing balance 3685 32

102 Contractual content commitments

Commitments giwven recorded in the Statement of Financial Position content iabilities

Content habilities are mamnly part of “Trade accounts payable and other” or part of "Other non-current liabilities” whether they are current or
non-current, as applicable {please refer to Note 15)

Minimum future payments as of Decexnber 31 2014 Tatal minumum future
Total Due in payments as of

{in retleons of guros) 2015 2016-2019 After 2019 December 31 2013
Film and television nights (a} 193 193 - - 208
Sports nghts 400 400 - - 402
Music royalties to ariists and repertoire owness 17 1699 2 - 1 614
Creativa talent employment agreements and others 119 42 75 2 m
Content liabilities 2433 g,_g aa 2 g
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Mimmum future payments as of Decamber 31 2014

Total mimimum future

Totsl Bue in payments as of

{in milhons of euros) 2095 2016-2019 After 2019 December 31 2013
Film and telewsion nghts (a) 2443 982 1416 45 2383
Sports nghts {b 3087 635 2457 . 1350
Creative talent, employment agreements and others {c} 807 367 401 39 754
Given commitments 6,337 1584 4269 B4 4,487
Film and talevision nghts (&) {199) {85) {69) (25) {179)
Sports nghts {3 3 - - (10)
Creative talent employment agreements and others (c) ot gvaileble

Received commitments {202) (88} {89} (25) {189}
Total net 6,135 18% 4180 59 4298

Manly includes contracts valid over several years for the broadcast of film and TV productions {mainly exclusivity contracts with major
US studios, as well as the license agreement entered into on March 29, 2013 in respect of the entire HBO new series, for 5 years, as
of May 2013} and pre-purchase contracts relating to the French movie industry, Studiccanal film production and co-product:on
commitments {given and received) and broadcasting nights of Canalsat and nc+ multichannel digital TV packages They are recorded as
content assets when the broadcast is available for initial release or after the initial significant payment As of December 31, 2014,
provisions recorded relating to these commitments amounted to €73 milhon, compared to €71 million as of December 31, 2013

In addition, this amount does not include commutments n relation 1o channel right contracts, ISP {Internet Service Provider) royalties
and non-exclusive distnbution of channels, under which Canal+ Group has not granted or received minimum guarantees The variable
amount of these commitments cannot be reliably determined and is not reported in the Statement of Financial Position or 1n
commiments and is instead recorded as an expense for the period in which 1t was incurred Based on the estimation of the future
subscriber number at Canal+ Group, commitments in relation to channe! night contracts would have increased by a net amount of
£342 million as of December 31, 2014, compared to €354 million as of December 31, 2013

Moreover, according to the agreement entered into with organizations of cinema professianals on December 18, 2009, Seciété
d'Ed:tion de Canal Ptus {SECP) 1s required to invest, every year for a five-year peniod {2010-2014), 12 5% of its annual revenues in the
tinancing of European films With respect to audiovisual, in accordance with the agreements entered into with producers and authors’
organsuzations, Canal+ Group 1s required to invest, in France, a percentage of 1ts revenues in the financing of heritage work every year
Agreements with cinema organizations and with producers and authors’ crganizations are not recorded as off balance sheet
commitments as the future estimate of these commitments cannot be reliably determined

Notably includes broadcasting nights of Canal+ Group for the following sport events

- the French professional Soccer League 1, for the 2015/2016 season (€427 millon} and the four seasons (2016/2017 to 2019/2020}
awarded on Apnil 4, 2014 for the two premium lots (€2,160 mill:on), compared to €854 million as of December 31, 2013 with
respect to the two seasons 2014/2015 and 2015/2018,

- the Soccer Champions League for three seasons (2015/2016 to 2017/2018) awarded on Apnil 11, 2014 for one lot,

- the Soccer English Premier League for the 2015/2018 season, renewed in January 2013 for three seasons, and

- the Formula 1 World Championship awarded in February 2013

These commitments will be recognized in the Statement of Financial Position erther upon the start of every season or upon a
significant initial payment

Moreover, on January 19, 2015, following to a call for tenders carried out by the National Rugby Leagus, Canal+ Group secured
exclusive rights related to all of the National French Rugby Championship’s “TGP 14" matches These nghts, which include all seven
games on each match day, play-off games, as well as the Jour de Rugby show, cover the seasons 2015/2016 to 2018/2019

Primanly relates to UMG which routinely commuts to pay agieed amounts to artists and other parties upon delivery of content or other
praducts ("Creatwe talent and employment agreements”) Until the artist or the other party has delivered his or her content or the
repayment of an advance, UMG discloses its obligation as an off-balance sheet given commitment While the artist or the other party
15 obligated to deliver a content or other product to UMG (these arrangements are generally exclusive), this counterpart cannot be
reliably determuned and, thus, 1s not reported in received commitments

Financial Report and Aedited Consohdated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2014 Vivend: /91



Note 11

{tn millions of euros)

Software
Customer bases
Trade names
Other

{sn eullions of euros)

Software
Telecom licenses
Customer bases
Trade names
Other

Changes in other intangible assets

(in emillions of euros)

Opening balance

Depreciation

Acquisitions

Increase reltated to internai developments
Divestitures/Decrease

Business combinations

Divestitures in progress or completed

Other intangible assets

Friday, February 27, 2015

December 31, 2014

(Other intangible assets,

Accumulated amortization

Other intangible assets

gross and impairment i0sses
242 {204} 38
230 {178} 52
44 {25} 13
337 (217} 120
853 (624} 229

December 31, 2013

Other intangible assets

Accumulated amortization

Other intangible assets

qross and impairment losses
5158 (3.908) 1,252
2505 (620} 1885
956 811) 145
167 {51) 116
1,825 {917} 908
10,611 {6,305} 4,306

Changes in foreign currency translation ad;ustments and other

Closing balance

Year ended December 31

2014 2013

4,306 5,190
{278) (924) ()

275 477

169 264

{1 (4)

60 kK]

{4310) {678

18 (52]

229 4306

a Relates to the depreciation of other intangible assets as published in the Z013 Financial Report This amount was not adjusted to take
Into account the impact of the application of IFRS 5 to Maroc Telecom group

Depreciation of other intangible assets related to continuing operations (primanly Canal+ Group and UMG) was recognized as cost of
revenues and in selling, general and administrative expenses (-€61 million in 2014 and €60 miflion in 2013)

Depreciation of other intangible assets related to discontinued businesses was recognized in the line “Earnings from discontinued
operations” for -€207 million 1n 2014 and -€853 million 1n 2013 (of which -€729 million related to SFR}
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Note 12

{in milkkons of euros)

Land

Buildings

Equipment and machinery
Set top boxes
Construction-in-progress
Other

{in mithons of euros)

Land

Buitdings

Equipment and machinery
Set top boxes
Constructron-in-progress
Other

Changes in property, plant and egquipment

{in millions of eurgs)

Opening halance

Depreciation

Acquisitions/Increase
Dvestitures/Decrease

Business combinations

Divestitures in progress or completed

Changes tn foreign currency translation adjustments and other

Closing balance

Property, plant and equipment

Friday, February 27, 2015

December 31 2014

Accumulated
depreciation and
impalrment losses

Property plant and
equipment gross

Property plant and equipment

4 - 4
133 (101} 32
488 (402) 86
976 (584) 392
35 B 36
587 {430) 167
% {1.517) n?
December 31 2013
Accumulated
Property plant and depreqation and Property plant and equipment
eqmpment gross
impatrment losses
82 {2 80
3052 {1718} 1334
8768 {4 704} 4064
2197 {1224) 973
353 - 353
2109 {1372} 737
16,561 {9.020} 1,541
Year ended December 31,
2014 2013
1541 9,926
(643) {1.851} {a)

1,404 2,448

{42) {115)

25 (40)

{7,542 {2.381)

{26) {446)

ni 1,50

a Relates to the depreciation of property, plant and equipment as published in the 2013 Financial Report This amount was not adjusted
for the impact on the Consolidated Income Statement of the application of IFRS 5 ta Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group as

well as SFR and GVT {please see below)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment related to continuing operations {pnmarily Canal+ Group and UMG) was recognized as cost of
revenues and in selling, general and administrative expenses for -€232 mallion 1n 2014 and -€228 million 1n 2013 It mainly consists of set top
boxes {-€129 million (n 2014, compared to -€125 million in 2013}

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment related to discont:nued operations was recognized as earnings from discontinued operations
It amounted to -€411 million i 2014 and -€1,624 million 10 2013 and pnimanly pertains to SFR and GVT for -€212 million and -€189 millen,
respectively in 2014 {compared to -€932 million and -€28t million, respectively, in 2013)
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Note 13  Investments in equity affiliates

Voting interast Value of equsty affiliates
{in eathions of euros) December 31, 2014 December 31 2013 December 31, 2014 December 31 2013
N-Vision {3} 49% 49% 213 215
VEVO 48% 47% n 58
Numergy - 47% - %
Other na na 22 8
306 4436

na not applicable

a  As of December 31, 2014, N-Vision, which indirectly owns a 51% :nterest in TVN {FTA broadcaster in Poland), was held by Canal+
Group {49% nterest) and ITI {51% interest) On October 16, 2014 Canal+ Group and ITI announced that they were jontly considening
strategic options 1n respect of their iInterest in TVN

Note 14  Financial assets

{in millions of euros) December 31, 2014 Dacember 31, 2013

Available-for-sale securities (a) 4,881 360
(Other loans and receivables 1160 (b} 206
Derwative financial instruments 139 126
Cash deposits backing borrowings - 2
Other financial assets 13 5
Financial assets 6,193 699
Deduction of current financial assets {49) {45)
Non-current financial assets 6,144 654

a  Asof December 31, 2014, available-for-sale secunties notably included

- 97,387,845 Numericable - SFR shares valued at stock market price on the closing date, or €40 34/share, for an aggregate value of
£€3,987 mithon (please refer to Note 3 1), and

- 41,499,688 Activision Bhzzard shares valued at stock market price on the closing date, or USD$20 15/share, for an aggregate value
of $836 mullion (€689 million) (please refer to Note 3 4)

As of December 31, 2013, available-for-sale securtties included securities held by UMG in Beats for €161 mithon On August 1, 2014,
these securities were sold for a net amount of €250 million resulting in a €179 mill:on net gain on sale

Available-for-sate securities did not include any other publicly quoted securities as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, and
were not subject to any impairment with respect to fiscal years 2014 and 2013

b Relates to the cash deposits of €975 million as part of the appeal against the Liberty Media judgment and €45 milhon (355 rmillion) as
part of the securitres class action 1n the United States Please refer to Note 26
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Note 15 Net working capital

Changes in net working capitai

Changes in
Gecember 31 Changes 1 Business Drvestitures in foresgn currency December 31
operating working progress or Other {b}
2013 capital (2) combirations complated translaton 2014
{in mllicns of euros) adjustmants
Inventonies 30 16 19 (257} 6 - 114
Trade accounts recenvable and other 4 898 135 107 {3218} 42 19 1983
Working capital asgets 5228 151 1% (3.475) [T] 19 2,097
Trade accounts payable and other {c} 10418 20 139 (5422} 155 2) 5306
Cither non-current abities 757 ] 18 {576) 13 {73) 121
Working capital habilties 1 -] 130 15.998) 169 {75) 5427
Net working caprtal 15945) T4 ™ 1553 121} [ @330
Changas in
December 31 Changes n Business Divastitures in ferergn currency December 31
operating working progress or Other {b)
20z combinatigns translation 2013
[in millions of uros) capuai (2} complated adrustrents
Inveniones R 1200 3 1376} 191 330
Trade accounts recarvable and other 6587 18) 1182} {1 118} 79 9 4898
Waorking capital assets 135 (28) {195) (1,785} (83) 9 5228
Trade accounts payable and other {c) 14196 1252) 8 {3 506) {211} 197 10 416
Othes non-current habilities 1002 Eﬂ 17 {12} 123) [143) 757
Working caprtal Liabilties 15188 (336} 9 {3518} (234) 54 173
Net working capita) 7a7) 08 1204 1783 6 145) 15.945)

a  Excludes content investments made by Canal+ Group and UMG In 2013, related to amounts as published in the 2013 Annual Report,
does not :nclude the adjustments from the impact of the application of IFRS 5 to Activisian Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group as well
as GVT and SFR on the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

b Manly includes the change in net working capital relating to content investments, capital expenchtures, and other investments

¢ Includes trade accounts payable for £2,215 million (€5,454 mullion as of December 31, 2013} as well as music royalties to artists and
repertoire owners of UMG whose matunity is lesser than one year for €1,699 mdlion as of December 31, 2014 (€1,598 million as of
December 31, 2013) Please refer to Note 102

Note 16  Cash and cash equivalents

{in milhans of euros} December 31, 2014 Jecember 31, 2013
Cash 240 525
Cash equivalents 6,605 516
of which UCITS 4,754 45
Term deposits and interest-beanng current accounts 1.851 470
Cash and cash equivalents 6,845 1,041

As of December 31, 2014, outstanding cash and cash equivalents of Vivendi amaunted to €6,845 milhon, of which €6,524 million 1s held by
Vivend! SA and invested in the following financial institutions with at least an A2/A rating
e £4.754 millon in ten UCTIS monetary funds, managed by five management companies, and
e €1770 million in term deposits and interest-bearing current accounts within erght banks Term depesits with imhial matunties
greater than three months contain an option to terminate at any time and present an insignificant nisk of changing in value
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Note 17  Equity

Share capital of Vivend) SA

{tn thousands) December 31, 2014 December 31 2013
Common shares outstanding {(rominal value €55 per share) 1,351,601 1,339,610
Treasury shares {50 {51)
Voung nghts 1,351,551 1,339,550

As of December 31, 2014, Vivend: held 50 thousand treasury shares, representing a non-significant portion of (s share capital These shares
are backed to the partial hedging of performance share plans As of December, 31, 2014, the market value of the portfolic amounted to
approximately €1 millon

In addition, as of December 31, 2014, approximately 42 7 million stock options were outstanding, representing a potential maximum nominal
share capita! increase of €235 million {ie , 3 16%)

Non-controlling interests

{in millions of euros) December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Canat+ Group 369 368
Maroc Telecom Group {a} - 1176
Other 13 29
Total 2 1513

a On May 14, 2014, Vivend: sold 1ts 53% interest in Maroc Telecom group {please refer to Note 3 3)

Distributions to shareowners of Vivendi SA

On June 30, 2014, Vivendi SA paid an ardinary €1 per share to its sharehoiders from additional paid-in capital for an aggregate amount of
€1,348 millron, considered as a return of capital distnbution to shareholders

On February 11, 2015, the date of Vivendi's Management Board's meeting which approved the Consolidated Financial Statements as of
December 31, 2014 and the appropriation of earmings for the fiscal year then ended, Vivendr’'s Management Board decided to propose to
shareholders an ordinary dividend of €1 per share, compnsing €0 20 relative to the Group's business performance and a €0 80 retum to
shareholders as a result of the disposals of assets Based on Vivendr's share capital outstanding shares as of December 31, 2014, this
dividend would represent a total distribution estimated at approximately €1 4 billion, to be paid in cash on Apnil 23, 2015, following the
coupon detachment an April 21, 2015 This proposal was presented to, and approved by, Vivend:'s Supervisory Board at its meeting held on
February 27, 2015

Share repurchase program

In addition to this distnibution, a share repurchase program will be submitted to shareholders’ appraval, within the legal hmit of 10% of the
share capital, for approximately €2 7 billion in accordance with the market regulations on share repurchases The program will run over a
peniod of 18 months
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Note 18 Provisions

Friday February 27 2015

Divestitures changes in

Dacember 31 Business foreign currency December 31
Noto 2003 Addnan Utirzation Reversal combinations translat:on adjustments 2014

{m milbons of euros} . ___ and other
Employes benefits {a) 54 F:3 153} (51) 4 54 654
Restructuning costs {b) 156 79 {121} - 142} 72
Lingations {c) 26 131 276 16 {45) 3 {294} 1206
Losses on onarous conuacts 128 49 143} [} 124
Cont:ngent habulities due to disposat (d) 24 7 m {13) 17
Cost of dismantling and restoring sites 4] n - {14
Gther (e} 1087 110 152} (53) 1 14 1105
Provisions 3523 538 1387) (163) [] (341) 3

) B e St el
Deduct:on of current provisions {613} 1325) 165 65 {4) 427 1290
Non-cument provisions 2,904 213 {722} 97) [] BS 288

Divestitures changes m
December 31 Business foreign currency December 31
Neta w02 Addiien Unhzation Reversal combinations translatron adjustmants 2043

fin millions of euros) and other
Employee benefits {a) 715 23 (56) {16} 10 7] 614
Restructunng costs (b} 258 199 {256} L] 15 139) 156
Litigations fc} 26 1357 143 (98) 4n 13 {38) 1379
Losses on anerous contracts 143 13 (62) (1) 35 128
Cantingent llabiMties dua to disposal (d) 24 3 - [k]] 24
Cast of dismantling and testoring sites B3 14) . 14) 75
Othet (8} 1389 9 {i11} [245) 34 {75} 1087
Provisions QE 2‘ (Sﬂ (307) !;. {159) 350
Deduction of current provisions {711) {277) 237 130 17) ‘2_ {618}
Non-current provisions 3258 03 [EIL) {377} BO [150) 2,904

a  Includes deferred employee compensation as well as provisions for defined employee benefit plans (€608 million as of December
31, 2014 and €613 million as of December 31, 2013, please refer to Note 19 2), but excludes employee termination reserves recorded

under restructuring costs

b Asof December 31 2014, manly relates to provisions for restructuring at UMG (€38 mihon) As of December 31, 2013, mainly relates
to provistons for restructuring at SFR (€85 milhon) and UMG (€67 mullion)

C Notably includes the reserve accrual in relation to the Liberty Media Corporation htigation and securities class action n the United
States for €945 million and €100 miflion, respectively

d  Certan commitments given in relation to divestitures are the subject of provisions These provisions are not significant and the

amount 15 not disclosed because such disclosure could be prejudicial to Vivend

e  Notably includes litigation prowisions for which the amount 1s not detailed because such disclosure could be prejudicial to Vivend
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Note 19  Employee benefits

19.1 Analysis of expenses related to employee henefit plans

The table below provides infarmation about the cost of employee benehit plans excluding its financial component The total cost of defined
benefit plans 1s set forth in Note 19 2 2 below

Year ended December 31,

{in mullions of euros) Note 04 2013

Employee defined contribution plans 20 16
Employee defined benefit plang 1922 {10) 1
Employee benefit plans 10 17

192 Employee defined benefit plans

1921 Assumptions used in the evaluation and sensitvity analysis
Discount rate, expected return on plan assets, and rate of compensation increase

The assurnptions undetlying the valuation of defined benefit plans were made i compliance with the accounting policies presented
Note 138 and have been applied consrstently for several years Demographic assumptions (including notably the rate of compensation
increase) are company specific Financial assumptions {notably the discount rate) are determined by independent actuanes and other
independent advisors and reviewed by Vivend’'s Finance Department The discount rate is therefore determined for each country by
reference to yields on notes issved by investment grade companies having a credit rating of AA and matunties dentical to that of the valued
plans, generally based an relevant rate indices The discount rates selected are therefore used, at year-end, to determine a best estimate by
Vivendr's Finance Department of expected trends in future payments from the first benefit payments

In accordance with amended IAS 19, the expected retumn on plan assets is estimated using the discount rate used 10 value the obligat:ons of
the previous year

In waightad average

Pension benefits Post-retirement benefits

20t4 2013 2014 2013
Discount rate (a) 29% 36% 38% 45%
Rate of compensation ingrease 20% 20% 30% 29%
Duravon of the benehit obligation (in years) 147 142 108 100

a A 50 basis point increase (or a 50 basis point decrease, respectively) to the 2014 discount rate would have led to a decrease of
€1 mithon in pre-tax expense (or an increase of €1 million, respectively) and would have led 1o a decrease in the obhigations of pension
and post-retirement benefits of €66 million (or an increase of €73 million, respectively)

Assumptions used in sccounting for pension benefits, by country

United States United Kingdom Germany France
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Discount rate 375% 450% 375% 4 50% 200% 300% 200% 300%
Rate of compensation tncrease (weighted average) na na 500% 500% 200% 200% 343% 336%

na not applicable

Assumptions used in accounting fer post+vetrement benefits, by country

United States Canada
2014 2013 2014 N3
Discount rate 375% 450% 375% 450%
Rate of compensation inerease 350% 350% na na

na not apphcable
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Allocation of pension plan assets

December 31, 2014 {a)

December 31, 2013 {a}

Equity secunities 3% 4%
Debt secunities 45% 48%
Dwersified funds 6% 3%
Insurance contracts 4% 5%
Real estate 1% 1%
Cash and other 1% 1%
Total 100% 100%

Fnday, February 27, 2015

a  Pension plan assets are mainly financial assets actively traded in organized financial markets

Pension plan assets which were not transferred have a mited exposure to stock market fluctuations These assets do not include occupied
buildings or assets used by Vivendi nor shares or debt instruments of Vivend

Cost evolution of post-retirement benefits

For the purpose of measuning post-retirement benefits, Vivend) assumed the annual growth in the per capita cost of covered health care
benefits would slow down from 6 7% for the under 65 years of age and 65 years of age and older categories in 2014 to 4 5% n 2022 for
these categories In 2014, a one-percentage-pomnt increase 1n the assumed cost evolution rates would have increased post-retirement
benefit obligations by €11 million and the pre-tax expense by €1 million Conversely, 2 one-percentage-point decrease in the assumed cost
evolution rates would have decreased post-retirement benefit obligations by €9 million and the pre-tax expense by €1 million

1922 Analysis of the expense recorded and of the amount of bensfits paid

Pension benefits Post-retrement benefits Total

{in milliens of euros) 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Current senice cost 14 12 14 12
Past service cost (a) (25 {5} (25) {5)
{Gains)/losses on settlements - [ 7
Other 1 1 1 1
Impact on sellmg, admmistrative and generat expenses {10} 1 - (10) 1
Interest cost 25 25 6 3t 3
Expected return on plan assets {12} (13} - - 112) {13}
Impact on other financial charges and income 13 12 6 6 19 18
Not benefit cost recogrized i profit and loss 3 13 6 9 19

a2  The recorded past service cost relates to the change of part of the group’s management team since June 2012

In 2014, benefits pard amounted to {1} €45 million {compared to €35 mithon in 2013} with respect to pensions, of which €18 milhion {compared
to €9 mithion 1n 2013) was paid by pension funds, and (1} €9 mitlion (compared to €10 millon 1n 2013} was paid with respect to post-

retirement benefits
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1923

Analysis of net benefit ohligations with respect to pensions and post-retirement benefits

Changes n value of benefit obligations, fair velue of pien assets, and funded status

{in milliens of euros)

Cpaning balance
Current service cost
Past service cost
(Gains)/losses on settlements
Other
Impact on sefling, administrative and general expenses
Interest cost
Expected retum on plan assets
Impact on other inanciel charges and income
Net benefit cost recognized wn profitand loss
Expenence gains/{losses) ()
Actuarial gains/llosses) related to changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial gans/{losses) related to changes in financial assumptions
Adjustment related to asset celing
Actuarial gains/{tosses) recognized 1n other comprahansive income
Contributions by plan participants
Contributrons by employess
Benefits paid by the fund
Benefits paid by the emplover
Business combinations
Divestitures of businesses {b)
Transfers
Other (of which foreign currency translation adjustments)
Reclassification ta assets held fos sale
Closing helance
of which wholly or partly funded benefits
wholly unfunded benefits (c)
of which assets related to emploves benefit plans
provisions for employee benefit plans (d)

Note

Friday, February 27, 2015

Employee defined benefi1 plans
Year ended December 31, 2014
Benefit obligation  Faw vatue of plan Net
assets {provisony/asset
recorded in the
statement of
financial position
{A) {B} {BHA)
966 356 {610)
20 20
{26) Y]
M i
5
33 133)
12 12
(21)
{16)
24 24
7 7
122 122
91)
1 1 B
a3 43
{18) (18) -
{36) {36 -
1 - m
(102) - 102
51 23 (28)
006 ] 1601)
558
447
7
508!
Vivendi /100
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Employee defined benefit plans
Year ended December 31, 2013

Benefit obligation

Fair value of plan

Net
{provision}/asset
recorded m the

statement of
financial position
{in millions of euras) Note {A) {BI-{A]
Opening balance 1020 367 (653}
Current service cast 21 [21)
Past service cost [e) (18 18
(Gains)/losses on settiements (29} (22} 7
Other 1 1]
Impact on selfing, adnunistrative and general expenses 3
Interest cost 35 135)
Expected return on plan assets 13 13
Impact on other financial charges and mcome 22)
Net benafit cost recognized n profit and loss (19)
Expenence gains/llosses} {a) 12 i (13)
Actuanal gains/{losses) related to changes in demagraphic assumptions 2 {2)
Actuanal gans/liosses) related to changes in financial assumptions 5 (5)
Ad)ustment related to asset cerling
Actuarial gains/{losses) recognized in other comprehensive income {20}
Contnbutions by plan participants 1 1
Contributions by employers 45 46
Benefits pard by the fund 9 (9)
Berefits paid by the employer {36) [36)
Business combinattons {f) 12 L] {3
Owestitures of businesses .
Transfers -
Other {of which foresgn currency translation adjustments) {200 (12) 8
Reclassification to assets held for sale (g) {3t) L 3
Closing balance 966 356 (610)
of which wholly or partly funded benefits 487
wholly unfunded benefits fc) 473
of which assets related to employee benefit plans 9
provisions for employee benefit plans (d) 8 {619

Includes the impact on the benefit obligation resulting from the difference between actuanal assumptions at the previous year-end
and effective benafits during the year, and the difference between the expected return on plan assets at the previous year-end and the
actual return on plan assets during the year

Relates to the impact of the sale of SFR on November 27, 2014

In accordance with local faws and practices, certain plans are not covered by plan assets As of December 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013, such plans principally compnise supplementary pension plans in the United States, pension plans :n Germany and post-
retirement benefit plans in the United States

includes a current liabihty of €48 mullion as of December 31, 2014 {compared te €55 mithion as of December 31, 2013)

In 2013, past service costs mainly related to the effect of decreases related to restiuctuning at SFR, as well as the renewal of some
members of the group's management team since the end of June 2012

Relates to the adjustment in 2013 to account for the impact of the acquisition on September 28, 2012 of EM! Recorded Music on the
value of the obhigations, plan assets, and underfunded obligation

Relates to the impact of the reclass/fication of Marac Telecom group as a discontinued operation, in accordance with IFRS 5
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Benefit ohligation, fair value of plan assets, and funded status detailed by country

Friday, February 27, 2015

Pension benefits (a) Post-retirement benefits b} Total
{in millions of euros) December 31, Oecember 31 December 31
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Benefit ohligation
US companies 125 107 136 120 261 27
UK companies 2% 233 1 1 297 234
German companies 209 19 - 09 190
French companies 157 233 - 157 ek}
Other 53 B7 16 15 81 82
B52 &30 15 136 1.005 966

Fair value of plan azsets
US companies 57 a8 57 48
UK companies 252 201 52 m
Garman companies 3 3 3 k]
French companies 54 65 54 &5
Cther 38 39 I8 39

204 356 4 356
Underfunded chligation
US companies (68) (59} {136} (20 (204} {179}
UK companies 144) (32} {1) [y (45) {33
German companies {208) 187) - {206) (187}
French compantes (103) {168} - (103 {168}
Other {27) 126} {18) {15} {43) (43)

{848) {a74) {153) (136} (601) {610)

a No employee defined benefit pfan indwidually exceeded 10% of the aggregate value of the obhgations and of the underfunded

obligation of these plans

b Prnimarily relates to medscal coverage (haspitalization, surgery, doctor visits and drug prescriptions), post-retrrement and life insurance
benefits for certain employees and retirees in the United States In accordance with the current regulation in relation to the funding
policy of this type of plan, the plan 1s not funded The main nsks far the group relate to changes i discount rates as well as the

increase in the cost of benefits [please refer to the sensitivity analysis described n Note 192 1)

1924 Benehts estimation and future payments

For 2015, hedge fund contributions and benefit payments by Vivend) to retirees are estimated to be €40 million in respect of pensions, of
which €22 million relates to pension funds and £8 million relates to post-retirement benefits
Estimates of future benefit payments to beneficiaries by the relevant pension funds or by Vivendi (in nominal value for the following

10 years) are as follows

Pension benefits Postretrement
{in millions of euros) benefits
2015 43 g
2018 3z g
2017 32 9
2018 29 g9
2019 ba g
2020-2024 162 14
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Note 20  Share-based compensation plans

201 Impact on the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

[in millions of euros) Year ended December 31
Charge/iincome) Note 2014 2013
Stock optiens performance shares and bonus shares g 5
Employes stock pirchase plans
Stock Appreciation Arghts {SAR) - 1
Yivends stock Instruments 202 9 24
UMG equity unit plan 203 15| 5
Charge/{Income) related to share-based compensation plans {8) Fa:]
Equity-settled instruments g 23
Cash-sattled nstruments {17} [}

202 Plans granted by Vivendi

Vivendi grants severat share-based compensation plans each year based on Vivend: shares to officers and employees of the group stock
option plans {without discount), performance share plans, as well as a capital increase reserved for employees and retirees (classic and
leveraged plans)

In 2013, the Supervisory Board decided, upen the recommendation of the Management Board and after the adwice of the Human Resources
Commuttee, to stop granting stock option plans In add:ition, in 2013, Vivend: put into place a capital increase reserved for employees and
retirees (employee stock purchase and leveraged plans)

in 2014, due to the changes in the scope already completed or in progress, Vivend: did not grant any annual plan to rts employees and only
granted 380,000 performance shares to a member of the Management Board and certain executive officers of its subsidianes

The accounting methods applied to value and recognize these granted plans are described in Note 1310 More specifically, the nsk-free
interest rate applied 1s the rate of French fungible treasury bonds or "Obligations Assimilables du Trésor” {CAT} with a matunty
corresponding to the expected term of the instrument at the valuation date, and the expected dividend yield at grant date 15 based on
Vivend's dividend distrnibution policy

2021 Equity-settled instruments

Transactions on outstending instruments, which have occurred since January 1, 2013

Stock options Performance shares
Number of outstanding Weighted average strike Number of outstanding
price of outstanding stock
stock options performance shares
oplions
{in thousands} {in euros} [in thousands)
Balance as of December 31, 2012 53,406 205 3594
Granted na 2782
Exercised [3362) {a) 133 [t 408}
Forfeted {354) 129 na
Cancelled 194) 159 (198}
Adjusted ¢b) 3319 194 286
Balance as of Dacember 31, 2113 62,835 197 534
Granted - na 380
Exercised {11,264) (a) 175 {1 600)
Forfested 77} 175 na
Cancelled (&) {571} 137 {440}
Adjusted {b) 2439 191 183
Belance as of December 31, 2014 2722 (d) 193 3867 (e}
Exercisable as of December 31, 2014 40,268 98 -
Acquired as of Dacember 31, 2014 40,413 ‘ﬁ 845

na not applicable

a  Asof the dates of exercise of the stock options, the weighted average share price for Vivend: shares was €19 68 {compared to €16 21
for stock options exercised 1n 2013)
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b In accordance with legal requirements, the number and strike pnice of stock options, as well as the number of performance shares
were ad)usted to take into account the impact for the beneficiaries of the following distributions (please refer to Note 17)
+ onMay17, 2013 a dwvidend distribution of €1 per share from reserves with respect to fiscal year 2012, and
e onJune 30, 2014 an ordinary distribution of €1 per share from additional paid-in capital
These adjustments have no impact on share-based compensation expenses retated to the relevant stock option and performance share
plans

¢ Atits meeting on February 2t, 2014, after review by the Human Resources Committee, the Supenisory Board approved the feve! of
satisfaction of objectives for the cumulative fiscal years 2012 and 2013 for the performance share plans and the last stock option plan
granted in 2012 1t confirmed that not all the cnteria that had been set were satisfied for fiscal year 2013 The final grant of the 2012
performance share and stock option plans represents 88% of the ongmnal grant Conseguently, among the instruments cancelled in
2014 were 335,784 stock options and 239,207 performance shares granted in 2012

g The total intrinsic value of outstanding stock options was €98 million

e  The weighted-average remaining period before delivering performance shares was 0 8 year

Please refer to Note 17 for the potential impact on the share capital of Vivend: SA of the outstanding stock options, the perfermance shares
and bonus shares

Information on stock options as of Dacember 31, 2014

Qutstanding stock options Vested stock options
Weighted average Weighted average Weighted average
Range of strike prices Number remaining Number
strike price strike price
contiactual life
(in thousands) {in euros} {in years) {in thousands) {n euros)
Under €15 2454 19 73 145 18
€15-€17 10980 159 48 10,580 1549
€17-€19 9,286 185 20 9286 185
£19-€21 7.012 202 33 7.012 02
EN-€23 6413 229 13 6,413 229

€23-€25 6577 247 23 6,577 247
€25 and more - - - -

42,12 193 32 40,413 198

Performance share plans

In 2014, due to the changes m the scope already completed or in progress, Vivend: did not grant any annual plan to its employees and only
granted 380,000 performance shares to a member of the Management Board and certain executive officers of its subsidianies

On February 22, 2013, 2,573 thousand performance shares were granted The share price was €14 91

After taking Into account a discount for non-ransferability of 8 3% of the share price on February 22, 2013 and an expected dividend yield of
6 71%, the fair value of each granted performance share was €11 79, corresponding to an aggregate fair value of £30 million This value 15
estimated and 1s set at grant date

These nights vest at the end of a two-year peniod, the compensation cost 1s therefore recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period Granted performance shares are then avallable at the end of a two-year period However, as the shares granted are ordary shares
of the same class as existing shares making up the share capital of Vivendi SA, employee shareholders are entitled to the dividends and
voting rights attached to these shares from the end of the two-year vesting period The recognized compensation cost corresponds to the
value of the equity instruments received by the beneficiary, and 1s equal to the difference between the fair value of the shares to be receved
and the discounted value of dividends that were net received over the vesting period

The definitive grant of performance shares Is subject to the satisfaction of performance conditions Such performance conditions include an
external indicator, therefore following the recommendations of the AFEP-MEDEF Code The objectives relating to the performance
conditions are determined by the Suparvisory Board upon proposal by the Governance, Nominating and Human Resources Committee

The objectives refating to the performance conditions are assessed on a two-year penod (three-year penod for plans granted since June 24,
2014) The definitive grant 1s effective upon the satisfaction of the following performance conditions
» ntema! indrcators {with a weighting of 70%} for corporate head office, the group’s EBITA margin and for each subsidiary, 1ts
EBITA margin, as a function of the cumulative income from fiscal years 2013 and 2014, and
« external indicators {with a weighting of 30%) performance of Vivendi's share price aver two consecutive trading years,
compared to a basket of indices, the STOXX® Evrope 600 Media and the STOXX® Europe 600 Telecommunications
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At the meeting held on February 27, 2015, after review by the Gevernance, Nomiating and Human Resaurces Committee, the Supervisory
Board approved the level of satisfaction of objectives for the cumulative fisca! years 2013 and 2014 for the performance share plans granted
n 2013 It confirmed that not all the cntena that had been set were satsfied for fiscal year 2014 The final grant of the 2013 performance
share plans represents, depending on the subs:dianes of the group, between 62% and 80% of the originaf grant Consequently, & portion of
performance shares granted in 2013 will be cancelled

50 bonus share plan

On July 16, 2012, Vivend) granted a 50 honus share per employee plan for all the group’s French subsidianes 727 thousand shares were
issued on July 17, 2014 at the end of a two-year vesting period The compensation cost is therefore recognized on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period These shares will only be avaitable at the end of another two-year period However, as the shares granted are ordinary
shares of the same class as existing shares making up the share capital of Vivend: SA, employee shareholders have been entitled to the
dividend and voting nghts relating to these shares since July, 17, 2014

2022 Employee stock purchase and leveraged plans

in 2014, no capital increase, reserved for employees of participating group companies that have jomed an employee stock purchase and
leveraged plans, was put into ptace by Vivendi

In 2013, Vivend) made a capital increase reserved for employees (stock purchase and leveraged plans) that allowed substantially all of its
employees and retirees to subscribe for Vivendi shares These shares, which are subject to certain sale or transfer restnctions, may be
subscribed by empleyees for a maximum discount of 20% on the average opening market price for Vivendi shares during the 20 trading days
preceding the date of approval of the share capital increase by the Management Board and the subscription price of new shares to 1ssue
The difference between the subscription price of the shares and the share price on that date represents the benefit granted to the
beneficiaries Furthermore, Vivend: applied a discount for non-transferability in respect of the restrictions on the sale or transfer of the
shares during a five-year period, which 1s deducted from the benefit granted to the employees The value of the subscribed shares 15
estimated and fixed at the date of the subscniption price for new shares to 1ssue

For the employee stock purchase and leveraged plans subscribed in 2013, the applied valuation assumptions were as follows

2013
Grant date June 28
Subsenption price (in euros) 1210
Data at grant date
Share price {in euros) 14 55
Discount to face value 16 82%
Expected dvidend yield 687%
Risk free interest rate 119%
S-year interest rate in fing 608%
Repo rate 036%

Under the employee stock purchase plans, 2,055 thousand shares were subscnbed in 2013 at €12 10 per share After taking into account
a 15 2% discount to the share price on the grant date for non-transferability, the fair value per subscribed share was €0 24 on June 28,
2013

Under the leveragad ptans, 9,758 thousand shares were subscribed in 2013 After taking nte account a discount for non-transferability
measured after the leveraged impact, the fair value per subscribed share on June 28, 2013 was €2 23

The leveraged plans entitles virtually all employees and retirees of Vivendi and its French and foreign subsidianies to subscribe for Vivend
shares through a reserved share capital increase, while obtaiming a discounted subscnption price, and to ulimately receive the capital gain
(calculated pursuant to the terms and conditions of the plan) corresponding to 10 shares for one subscribed share A financial institution
mandated by Vivend hedges this transaction

In 2013, the charge racognized with respect to employee stock purchase and leveraged plans amountad to €8 mutlion

Stock purchase and leveraged plans resutted in a capital increase (including sssug premium) with an aggregate value of €143 milion on July
25,2013
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2023 Cash-settled mnstruments

fn 2006 and 2007, Vivend: granted specrfic instruments to 1ts US resident managers and employees, with economig features similar to those
granted to non-US restdent managers and employees, except that these equity instruments are settled in cash only The value of the cash-
settled instruments granted 1s inihally estimated as of the grant date and 1s then re-estimated at each reporting date until the payment date
and the expense 1s adjusted pro rata taking into account the vested rights at each such reporting date All of the nights for these plans were
defimitively vested as of April 2010

Stock appreciation right plans

When the instruments entitle the beneficiaries thereof to receive the appreciation in the value of the Vivend) share price, they are knawn as
“stock appreciation rights” (SAR} which are the economic equivalent of stock options Under @ SAR plan, the beneficiarnies will receive a
cash payment upon exercise of thew nghts based on the Vivend: share price equal to the difference between the Vivend: share price upon
exercise of the SAR and their strike price as set at the grant date SAR expire at the end of a ten-year penod

As of December 31, 2014, the outstanding SAR was 4,427 thousand (compared to 2,980 thousand as of December 31,2013) All nghts
related to SAR were vested and their aggregate intrinsic value amounted to $6 millon As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the amount
accrued for these instruments was non-significant

20.3 UMG long-term incentive plan

Effective from January 1, 2010, UMG tmplemented long-term wmcentive arrangements under which certain key executives of UMG are
awarded phantom equity units and phantom stock apprectation nights whose value 15 intended to reflect the value of UMG These units are
simply account units and do not represent an actual ownership interest in either UMG or Vivendi The equity units are notional grants of
equity that will be payable in cash upon settlement no later than 2015 or earlier under certain circumstances The stock appreciation nights
are essentially options on those notional shares that provide additional compensation tieg to any increase in valve of UMG over the term

Payouts under the plan generally coincide with terms of employment, but can be accelerated or reduced under certain circumstances The
values for both payouts are based upon third party valuations While the participants’ nghts vest at the end of a fixed vesting period,
compensation expense is recognized over the vesting peniod as services are rendered At each closing date, the expense 1s recagnized based
on the portion of the vesting period that has elapsed and the fair value of the units calculated using an appropriate grant date model in
accordance with IFRS 2

During the third guarter of 2014, one executive, who benefited from the plan, ended his employment contract The phantom equity units and
phantom stock appreciation nights that were awarded to him were therefore cancelled Consequently, the amount previously accrued for
these nghts was reversed (€19 million}

As of December 31, 2014, the remaiming amount accrued under these arrangements was €12 muillion (€26 million as of December 31,
2013) No payments have been made to date
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Note21  Borrowings and other financial liabilities

Nate December 31 2014 December 31 2013

{in millans of euros) Total Long-term Short-term Total Long-term Short-term

Bonds 211 1,950 1,950 - 1827 6633 1194

Bank credit facilities {drawn confirmed) n2 - - 2075 2014 61

Commercial paper sssued - - 1,906 - 1,906

Bank overdrafts 168 - 158 143 - 143

Accrued interest to be paid 27 - 27 186 186

Qther 54 5 49 73 53 20
Nomnal value of borrowings 2199 1985 244 12210 8700 3510

Cumulative effect of amartized cost and reevaluation due to

hedge accounting 28 28 - 8 8

Commutments to purchase non-controlling interests B7 79 8 22 22 -

Derwatve financial instruments 22 33 12 21 26 7 19
Borrowings and other financial habilitves 2347 2,074 273 12,266 8,737 3520

211 Bonds
Interest rate {%} December Maturing during the following periods December
nommal  effective Maturty 31 After 3

{n millions of euros) 204 2015 2018 017 2018 2019 2019 2613
€750 million {March 2010) 4 000% 415% Mas-17 750 . - 750 - 750
€700 mdlion {December 2009) 4875%  495% Dec 19 700 - - 700 700
€500 million {December 2009) 4 250% 439% Det 16 500 500 . - 500
£300 mitlion - SFR (Jduby 2009) 5 000% 505% Jul 14 - - 300
£€1,120 milhon (January 2009} 7 790% 7 69% Jan-14 {a) - - - - - - 894
Bonds without make-whale option 1950 - 500 750 . 700 - 3144
£750 million {July 2013} 237%% 251% Jan-19 - . - 750
€700 million {December 2012} 2 500% 265% Jan-20 - - - 760
$650 millor (Apnil 2012) 3450%  355% Jan 18 - - - 69
$800 million {Apn 2012) 4750% 491% Apr-22 - - - - 189
€1 250 milhon (January 2012} 4125% 431% Jul17 - - . - - - 1250
€500 mill:on {November 2011} 4 875% 500% Nov-18 - - - - - - 500
€1 050 mithon {July 2011) 4750% 467/% Jul 21 - - - - - - 1,050
$700 millign {Apnd 2008) 6625% 685% Ap-18 - . . - 175
Boads with make-whole option (b) - - - - - - - 4,683
Nominal value of bonds 1950 - 500 750 - 700 - 1827

a  Redemption at matunity in January 2014 of the 7 75% bond issued in January 2009 for €834 million

b Vivend allocated a portion of the SFR sale proceeds to the early redemption of all eight tranches of its euro and US dollar
denominated bonds with a make-whole option, representing an aggregate principal amount of €4 250 million and $595 million
{E420 mullion} This transaction, completed in December 2014, resuited in a premium payment of €642 million (net of gains on interest
rate nisk hedging) in addition to the principal amount of €4,670 million

The bonds denominated in euros are hsted on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange

Bonds 1ssued by the group contain customary provisions related to events of default, negative pledge and, nghts of payment (pan-passu
ranking) In add:tion, bonds 1ssued by Vivend: SA contain an early redemption clause in case of a change in control trigger «f, as a result of
any such event, the long-term rating of Vivendi SA 1s downgraded below investment grade status {Baa3/BBB-)

21.2 Bank credit facilities

On Novernber 27, 2014, fotlowing the receipt of cash proceeds from the sale of SFR, Vivend) cancelled all of 1ts existing bank credit facilities
for €7 1 billion and set up a new €2 biflion bank credit facility, matuning m five years (2019} and with two cne-year renewal options As of
December 31, 2014, this credit facitity was undrawn

The €2 billion bank credit facility contains customary provisions relating to events of default and covenants relating to negative pledge,
divestiture and merger transactions In addition, at the end of each half year, Vivend) SA is required to comply with a Proportionate Financial
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Net Debt? to EBITDA* financial covenant over a 12 month rolling period not exceeding 3 far the duration of the loan Non-compliance with
this covenant could result in the early redemption cf the facility if 1t were drawn, or its cancellation As of December 31, 2014, Vivendi SA
was (n compliance with 1ts financial covenant

The renewal of Vivend SA's confirmed bank cred:t facility when it 1s drawn Is contrgent upon the 1ssuer rerterating certain representations
regarding its abuhity to comply with its financal obfigations with respect to loan contracts

In addition, on March 4, 2013, a letter of credit for £375 million, maturing in March 2616, was 1ssued in connection with Vivendi's appeal
aganst the Liberty Media judgment {please refer to Note 26) This letter of credit is guaranteed by a syndicate of 15 intemational banks with
which Vivend) signed a Reimbursement Agreement that includes an undertaking by Vivend: to reimburse the banks for any amounts paid out
under the letter of credit On July 16, 2014, Vivend: strengthened the guarantees given to the banks that are parties to the Raimbursement
Agreement by placing a cash deposit of €975 miilien in an escrow account This cash deposit could be used i prionity against a claim made
against Vivends, if any, and if the banks were called with respect to the letter of credit This deposit, which significantly reduced the letter of
credit’s financing cost, resulted in a €975 million decrease in the group’s Net Gash Position Prior to this deposit being placed, the letter of
credit was recorded as an off-batance sheet financial commitment, with no impact on Vivend's Financial Net Debt

213 Breakdown of the nominal value of borrowings by maturity, nature of the interest rate, and

currency
Breakdown by matunty
{in millions of euros} December 31 2014 Oecember 31, 2013
Maturity
<1year(a) 244 1% 3510 29%
Between 1 and 2 years 505 23% 588 5%
Between 2 and 3 years 750 4% 1562 13%
Between 3 and 4 years - - 2,085 17%
Between 4 and 5 years 700 32% 1005 8%
> 5years - 3.480 28%
Nominal value of horrowings 219 100% 12210 100%

a  Asof December 31, 2014, short-term borrowings (with a matunty of less than one year) primanly included bank overdrafts for €168 midlion As
of December 31, 2013, they mainly (ncluded commercial paper 1ssued for €1,906 million (with a 17-day average remaining period), Vivendi SA's
€894 mition bond, maturing m January 2014, SFR's €300 million bond, maturing i July 2014, and bank overdrafts for €143 million

As of December 31, 2014, the average “economic” term of the group’s financial debt, pursuant to which all undrawn amounts on available medium
term credit Iines may be used to redeem group borrowings with the shortest tern was 4 9 years {compared to 4 2 years at year-end 2013)

Breakdown by nature of interest rate

{tn milhons of euros} Nate December 31, 2014 December 31 2013
Fixed interest rate 1985 1% 1,830 64%
Floating interest rate 204 9% 4380 6%

Nomina! value of horrowings before hedging 2,199 100% 12,210 100%

m———

Pay-fixed interast rate swaps 450 450

Pay-flgating interest rate swaps {1,450 {2,600}

Nat position at fixed 1nterest rate 212 {1,000) {2,150}

Fixed interest rate 995 45% 5,680 47%

Floating interest rate 1,204 55% B 530 53%

Nomina! value of borrowtngs after hedging 2,199 100% 12210 100%
— —— ]

* Relates to Financial Net Debt as defined by Vivend:
* Relates to EBITDA as defined by Vivend: plus dividends recewved from unconsohidated compames
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Breakdown by currency

{in miflions of eurps)

Euro - EUR
US datlar - USD
Other {of which BRL and PLN}
Nominal value of barrowings before hedging

Currency swaps SO
Other currency swaps
Net total of hedging instruments

Euro - EUR
US dolfar - USD
Other {of which BRL and PLN})
Nominal velue of borrowings after hedging

21.4 Credit ratings

Frnday, February 27 2015

Note December 31 2014 December 31 2013
2162 8% 11,396 9%
. 433 4%
37 2% 381 3%
2199 100% 12210 100%
= — -}
748 1458
{52} {199
222 696 1269
2858 130% 12 6685 104%
{748) 4% (1,035 -5%
89 4% 580 5%
2199 100% 12,210 100%

As of February 11, 2015, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved the Financial Statements far the year ended December

31,2014, Vivend!'s credit ratings were as follows

Rating agency Type of debt Ratings Outlaok
Standard & Poor's Long term corporate debt BBB
Short-term corporate debt A2 Positive
Senior unsecured debt B8B
Moody's Lang-term sentor unsecured debt Baa? Stable
Fitch Ratings Long-term semor unsecured debt BBB Stable
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Note 22  Financial instruments and management of financial risks
22.1 Fair value of financial instruments
Financial instruments, as assets under Vivendi’s Statement of Financia! Position, include financial assets measured at fair value and at
historical cost, trade accounts receivable and other, as well as cash and cash equivalents As hiabilities, they include bonds and bank credit
facilities, other financial liabilities {including commitments to purchase non-controlling interests), as well as trade accounts payable and

other non-current habilities In addrtion, financial instrements include derivative instruments {assets or habil:ties)

Accounting category and fair value of financial instruments

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Carrying Farr value Carrying Fair valug
{in mithans of euros) Note value value
Assets
Availablefor-sale securities 4581 4,881 360 360
Dervative financial instruments 139 139 126 126
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or foss 13 13 5 5
Financral assets at amartized cost 1160 1,160 208 208
Financial assets 14 6,193 6,193 699 699
Trade accounts receivable and other at amortized cost 15 1.983 1983 4,898 4,898
Cash 240 na 525 na
Term deposits and mterest-beanng current accounts 1851 na 470 na
Ucrs 4754 4,754 46 46
Cash and cash equivalents 16 6845 4,754 1041 46
Liabilities
Borrowings, at amortized cost 22727 2,483 12218 12,721
Derivative financial mstruments 33 33 26 26
Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests 87 87 22 22
Borrowings and other financial lrabihities 21 2347 2,603 12,266 12 769
Other non-current habilities, at amortizad cost 121 121 757 157
Trade accounts payable and other, at amortized cost 15 5306 5,306 10416 10416

na not applicable

Valuation method for financial instruments at fair value

The following tables show the fair value method of financial mstruments according to the three following levels
- level 1 fair value measurement based on guoted prices i active markets for (dentical assets or habilities,
Level 2 fair value measurement based on observable market data {other than quated prices included within Level 1), and

Level 3 fair vatue measurement based on valuation technigues that use inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on
observable market data

As a reminder, the other financal instruments at amortized cost are not included in the following tables

December 31, 2014

{n mullrons of euros) Note Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets

Available-for-sale secunties {a) 14 4,881 4676 162 43
Denvative financial instruments 222 138 - 133 -
Other financial assets at farr value through profit or loss 13 5 8
ucITs 16 4,754 4754

Liatnlibes

Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests 87 - - 87
Benvative financial instruments 222 33 - 33 -
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December 31 2013

{in millions of euros) Note Total Level 1 Lavet 2 Leval 3
Assats

Available-for-sale securities 14 360 - 304 56
Denvative financial instruments 222 126 - 126 -
QOther financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 5 5 - -
UcITS 16 46 a6 - -
Liahilities

Commitments to purchase non-contralling interests 22 - - 22
Denvative financial instruments 222 26 - 26 -

a  Asof December 31, 2014, available-for-sale secunties pnmanly included secunties held by Vivend, valued on stock market price at that
date an interest in SFR - Numericable for €3,987 milhon and an interest in Activision Blizzard for €689 million

In 2014 and 2013, there was no transfer of financial instruments measured at fair value between level 1 and level 2 In addition, as of
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, finangial instruments measured at level 3 fawr value did rot include any significant amount

222 Management of financial risks

As part of its business, Vivend 1s exposed to several types of financial nsks market nsks, credit risks, counterparty risks, as well as iquidity
nsks Market nisks notably include interest rate nisks, foreign currency nsks and equity market value nsks Vivendr's Financing and Treasury
Department centrally manages financial risks for the group and its subsidiaries, reporting directly to Vivendr's Chief Financial Officer The
Department has the necessary expertise, resources {notably technical resources), and information systems for this purpose The Treasury
Commuttee monitors, on a bi-monthly basis, the quidity positions in afl business units and the exposure to main financial nisks, in particular
counterparty risk, equity market value nisks as well as foreign currency nsks and interest rate nisks Finally, short- and long-term financing
activities are performed at the group’s headquarters and are subject to the prior approval of the Management Board and Supervisory Board,
in accordance with the provisions of therr Internal Regulations

As of December 31, 2014, the financial position of Viverd: may be summed up as follows

- due to the sale of 88% of Vivendi's interest in Actwvision Blizzard in October 2013, the sale of Maroc Telecom in May 2014 and
mainly the sale of SFR in November 2014, Vivend: has a Net Cash Position of €4 6 billion, of which €6 8 billion in cash and cash
equivalents and €2 2 biflion in gross financial debt, prtmanly in bonds for €2 0 bilhon Vivends has a bank credit facility available
for €2 0 bulhon, undrawn as of December 31, 2014,

- Vivend held a portfolio of quoted and unquoted minority interests, notably Numericable — SFR, Activiston Blizzard and TVN In
Poland, as well as at UMG (Spotify, Vevo, Deezer), which represented an aggregate market value of approximately €51 brllion
(before taxes) as of December 31, 2014, and

- as part of the current appeals 1n connection with Liberty Media Corporatien and secunties class action litigations in the United
States, Vivend: put into place cash guarantee deposits for an aggregate amount of approximately €1 billion

In addition and as a reminder, once the sale of GVT has been completed (expected during the second quarter of 2015), Vivendi's portfolio of
securities will increase with the minonty interests it wili receive m Telefonica Brastt (VIVO/GVT) and Telecom ltalia, which represented an
aggregate market value cf approximately €2 B billion {before taxes) as of August 28, 2014 (starting date of the exclusive negotiations with
Telefonica)

Denivative financial instrument values on the Statement of Financial Positon

December 31 2014

December 31, 2013

{in mullions of euros) Note  Assets Liabilities Assetls Liabilities
Interest rate risk management 2223 75 (12} 68 {7
Pay-fued interest rate swaps {12} - {7}
Pay floating interest rate swaps 75 - 58 -
Forergn currency nsk management 2224 43 {21} 17 {19)
Other 21 21 -
Dernvative financial instruments 139= (33} 126 {26)
Deduction of current denvative financial instruments {40) 21 (‘I-ﬂ- 19
Non-current derivative financial instruments 99 12} 109 n
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2221  Investment nsk and counterparty nsk management

Vivend!'s policy for mvestments mainly aims to minimize 1ts exposure to counterparty nsk Consequently, Vivends 1s mainly committed within
highly rated mutual funds and commercial banks, and allocates investments among selected banks and limits the amount of each such
nvestment

As of December 31, 2014, outstanding cash and cash equivalents of Vivendi amounted to €6,845 million, of which €6,524 million 1s held by
Vivendi SA and invested in the following financial institutions with at least an A2/A rating
e €4,754 millicn in ten UCTIS monetary funds, managed by five management companies, and
e £€1,770 million in term deposits and interest-beanng current accounts within erght banks Term deposits with initial matunties
greater than three months contain an option to terminate at any time and present an insign:ficant risk of changing in value

As of December 31, 2014, the average interest rate on Vivendi's investments was 0 49%

In addition, Vivend: does not consider there to be a significant nsk of non-recovery of trade accounts recewvable for its business operations
the large individual customer base, the broad vanety of customers and markets, as well as the geographic diversity of its business
operations (manly Canal+ Group and Universal Music Group) enable to mimimize the nisk of credit concentration related to trade accounts
receivable

2222  Equity market value nsk management

Vivend's cash mvestment policy prohibits equity investments However, following divestiture or acquisition, Vivend: may hold non-
consolidated Interests as part of an opportunist strategy in more or less long term As of December 31, 2014, Vivendi held shares in the
following listed companies, recognized as “Available-for-sale secunties’ in the Consohdated Statement of Financial Poesition, for an
aggregate amount of £4,676 million

* 97 4 million Numericable - SFR shares, 1 e, a 20% interest held following the sale of SFR to Numericable Group on November 27,
2014, valued at €3,987 mdhon as of December 31, 2014 These shares are notably subject to a lock-up provision please refer to
Note 3 1, and

+ 415 milhon Actvision Blizzard shares valued at €689 million as of December 31, 2014 These shares were subject to a lock-up
provision, which matured on January 7, 2015 please refer to Note 3 4

Vivend: 15 thus exposed to the nsk of fluctuation in the value of these shares As of December 31, 2014, the unrealized gain with respect to
these shares amounted to €1,015 million, directly recognized in equity An unfavorable and uniform change of 10% i all of these shares
would have a negative impact of €468 million on Vivend:'s equity

In additon, Canal+ Group holds 95 million shares in TVN (free-to-air TV i Poland) indirectly held by N-Vision and consolidated under the
equity method by Canal+ Group On October 16, 2014, Canal+ Group and Tl Group announced they were jointly considering strategic options
in respect of their interest in TVN {please refer to Note 13)

Finally, as part of the plan to sell GVT, which 1s expected to be completed dunng the second quarter of 2015 (please refer to Note 3 2},
Vivendi should receive Telefenica Brasil {ViVO/GVT) and Telecom Italia shares, valued at €1,830 mulliorr and €960 mithion, respectively, based
on the stock market price and currency exchange rate on August 28, 2014 (starting date of the exclusive negotiations with Telefonica),
representing an aggregate amount of €2 8 illion

2223 Interest rate nsk management

Vivend!’s interest rate nsk management seeks to reduce 1ts net exposure to Interest rate increases Therefore, Vivend: uses pay-floating and
pay-fixed interest rate swaps These instruments enable thus the group to manage and reduce volatility for future cash flows related to
interest payments on borrowings

In December 2014, concomitantly with the redemption of the bonds with make-whole option, Vivend: early settled pay-floating interest rate
swaps with a notional amount of €750 millien and €400 million As of December 31, 2014, the portfolio of Vivendi's interest rate hedging
nstruments included the following swaps

e pay-fixed interest rate swaps with a notional amount of €450 million, maturing 1n 2017, set up In 2012,

= pay-floating interest rate swaps with a notional amount of £450 million, matuning in 2017, set up 1n 2010, and

= pay-floating interest rate swaps with a notional amount of £1,000 million, maturing in 2016, set up in 2011
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December 31, 2014

Notional amounts Farr value
After

{in millions of euros) Tatal 2015 2016 07 2018 2019 2019 Assets Liabilittes
Pay fixed interest rate swaps 450 450 - {12)
Pay floating interest rate swaps {1 450} {1 000} {450) L] -
Net posttion at fixed interest rate {1,000 {1.000) - [a) 5 {12
Breakdown by accounting gateqory of ratg hedaing instruments

Cash Flow Hedge - -

Fair Value Hedge 11,000 {1,000) 35

Econamic Hedging (b) - [al 40 {12}

December 31, 2013
Notionat amounts Fair value
After

i millions of euros] Total 204 205 2016 2017 2018 2018 Assets Liabiities
Pay-fixed intesest rate swaps 450 450 - {7
Pay floating nterest rate swaps {2 600) {1 400} {450) {750} 83
Net posttion at fixed interestrate (2,950} {1,400} - (a) {750} 88 {7)
Breakdo unting ¢at f rate hedging instrument

Cash Flow Hedge -

Fair Value Hedge {2 150} {1400} (750} 45

Econamic Hedging (b) - [a) 42 {7

a Includes pay-floating interest rate swaps for a notional amount of €450 million as well as pay-fixed interest rate swaps for a notional
amount of €450 million, maturing in 2017, qualified as economic hedges

b The economic hedging instruments relate to dervative financial instruments which are not eligible for hedge accounting pursuant to
1AS 39

2224 Foreign currency nsk management

Excluding GVT, the group’s foreign currency nsk management 1s centrahized by Vivendi SA's Financing and Treasury Department and
pnimanly seeks to hedge budget exposures {at an 80% level) resulting from monetary flows generated by activities performed in currencies
other than the euro as well as from extemnal firm commitments {at a 100% level), pnmanty relating to the acquisition of editonal content
(including sports, audiovisual and film rights} and certain capital expenditures {e g , set-top boxes), realized in currencies other than the euro
Most of the hedging instruments are foreign currency swaps or forward contracts that have a maturity of less than one year Considering the
foreign currency hedging instruments established, an unfavorable and uniform euro change of 1% against all foreign currencies in position
as of December 31, 2014, would have & non significant cumulative impact on net gamings (below €1 millon) In addition, the group may
hedge foreign currency exposure resulting from foreign-currency denominated financial assets and habilities Moreover, due to their non-
significant nature, net exposures related to subsidianes’ net working capital (internal flows of royalties as well as external purchases) are
generally not hedged The relevant risks are settled at the end of each month by translating the amounts into the functional currency of the
relevant operating entities

The principal currencies hedged by the group are US dollars {USD) and British pounds {(GBP) In 2014 and 2013, to hedge against a posssble
depreciation of its net investment in certain subsidianies in the United Kingdom due to an unfavorable change in GBP, Vivendi set up a hedge
using forward contracts for a notional amount of £832 mitlion, or €1,046 million From an accounting perspective, these hedge instruments
were considered as net investment hedges
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The following tables present the foreign currency nsk management instruments used by the group, the positive amounts relate to currencies
to be received, the negative amounts relate to currencies ta be delivered

December 31 2014

Natior2l amounts Fair value
{im milliens of euros) Total LSD PN GBP Other Assels Liabilities
Sales against the euro {1233} (52) {56) {1,062} {63) 2 HED
Purchases agamst the euro 1,308 77 51 1020 120 40 (2}
Other 59 - 1 {60) 1
675 24 {5} {41) {3) 43 21}
eakdown by accgunti teqory of foreign cur ing Instrumen
Cash Flow Hedge
Sales aganst the euro (67} 19 (49) {2l (i1} 2 {1}
Purchases agast the euro 3 33 - . - 2 -
QOther - - - -
(34) 2 (45} [F]] ) [ {1}
Fair Value Hedge
Sates against the euro {68) {43) (1) (18) - )}
Purchases agamst the euro 2715 275 - - 4 -
Other k| 1 {4 -
20 235 {11 (13) 1] 1L} i1}
Net Investment Hedge
Sales against tha euro (1046) - {1 046} (a) - - nn
Purchases aganst the euro - - - - -
Other - - - -
(1,046) - . (1,045} - - (7
Economic Hedging (b}
Sales against the euro (52) - (52) - -
Purchases aganst the ewro 1600 409 5 1020 12 = vl
Other 56 - {56) 1 -
1,548 465 3] 1,020 12 25 2)
December 31 2013
Notional amounts Fair value
{in millions of euros) Total LS PN GBP Other Agsats Liabibities
Sates agamst the euro {1060 {49) (105} (834) 72} 2 nn
Purchases against the euro 2329 1330 21 888 %0 11 7
Other 187 181} {4) {102} 4 {2)
1,269 1,468 {165} 50 [{:L]] 17 {19)
Breakdgwn by accounting cateqory of foreign currency hedging wstruments
Cash Flow Hedge
Sales against the euo 73 1) 142 1] 1k)] -
Purchases against the euro BS 85 - - 1 {1)
Other 168 {75) - {93) 4 {2)
EF] 22 7 (]} {106) 5 3t
Farr Value Hedge
Sales against the guro {93} 138) {51) {4) - 1 (2}
Purchases aganst the euro 450 432 - 18 - - {6}
Dther 8 [6) {4) 2 -
357 402 (57 10 2 1 (8)
Net Investment Hedge
Sales aganst the euro {823} - - {823} (@) - {8}
Purchases aganst the euro - - -
Other - - - -
(823) - - (823} - - (8)
Economic Hedging (b}
Sales agamst the euro m 12 (59 ! -
Purchases aganst the euro 1794 813 4l 870 80 10
Other - 1 - - 11} -
113 B2 8 870 20 11 -

a Relates to the hedge of the net investment in certain subsidiaries in the United Kingdom for a notional amount of £832 milhion as of
December 31, 2014 (£692 mullion as of December 31, 2013)

b The economic hedging nstruments relate to denvative financial instruments which are not eligtble for hedge accounting pursuant to
I1AS 39
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2225 Liquidity nsk management
Vivendi SA centralizes daily cash surpluses {cash poehing) of all controlled entities (a) that are not subject to local regulauons restricting the

transfer of financial assets or {b) that are not subject to other contractual agreements

As of December 31, 2014, the future undiscontinued cash flows related to borrowings and other financial habilities amounted to
€2,623 mihion (compared to a carrying value of €2,347 million) and are presented 1n Note 25 1 within the group’s contractual minimum
future payments

As of February 11, 2015, Vivend: considers that the cash flows generated by its operating activities, its cash and cash equivalents, as well as
the amounts avallable through its current bank credit facility will be sufficient to cover 1ts operating expenses and capital expenditures,
service its debt, pay its income taxes, dividends and share repurchases, if any, as well as to fund its investment projects, 1f any, for the next
12 months

Note 23 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

231 Adjustments

Year ended December 31,
{in mullions of euros} Note 2014 2013
Items related to operating activifies with ne cash impact
Amortizatton and depreciation of intangible and tangible asseis 4 143 666
Change In provision, net {125) {72)
Other non-cash items from EBIT 1)) 2
Other
Other income from EBIT 4 {203) 188}
Other charges from EBIT 4 30 50
Proceeds from sales of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets 2 3 3
Adjustments 447 557

232 Investing and financing activities with ne cash impact

On November 27, 2014, Vivendi sold 100% of its interest in SFR to Numerncable and recewed €13 166 bilhon in cash as well as
97,387,845 shares in the new combined entity Numericable - SFR, which represents a 20% interest and voting nghts This 20% nterest in
Numernicable - SFR was valued at the stock market’s price on November 27, 2014 (€33 315 per sharel, or €3.244 million As of December 31,
2014, the value of this interest in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position amounted to €3,987 million (please refer to Note
31

In 2014, there was no significant financing activity with no cash impact

In 2013, there was no significant nvesting or financing activity with no cash impact
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Note 24  Transactions with related parties

241 Corporate officers

Situation of corporate officers

On June 24, 2014, Vivend!'s General Shareholders’ Meeting notably appomted three new Supervisory Board members Ms Katie Jacohs
Stanton, Ms Virgimie Morgon and Mr Philippe Bénacin

Vivendi's Supervisory Board, which was convened immediately following the General Shareholders’ Meeting on June 24, 2014, appointed
Mr Vincent Bolloré as Chairman The Board also appointed Mr Pierre Rodocanachi as Vice-Chairman and Mr Jean-René Fourtou, who had
chaired the group since 2002, as Honorary Chairman The Board appointed Mr Daniel Camus as Chairman of the Audit Committee, and Mr
Ptulippe Bénacin as Chairman of the Corporate Governance, Nominations, and Remuneration Committee

On June 24, 2014, the Superisory Board also appointed the members to the Management Board, which 1s compnised of Messrs Arnaud de
Puyfontaine, who serves as Chairman, Hervé Philippe, and Stéphane Rousse!

The Supervisory Board s currently comprised of 14 members, including an employee shareholder representative and an employee
representative

Compensation of corporate officers

e The current members of the Management Board received, in respect of their position as Corporate officers in 2014, a fixed
compensation of €18 million and, except for its Chairman, extracrdinary compensation of €06 mihon linked to the proper
implementation of the divestiture of SFR, previously granted in respect of their position as Corporate officers and paid in respect of
therr current position The vanable compensation with respect to 2014 will be paid in 2015 for an aggregate amount of
€2 2 million, as approved by the Supervisory Board on February 27, 2015

The Chaiman of the Management Board, Mr Armaud de Puyfontaine, renounced his employment contract At the General
Shareholders’ Meeting to be held on Apnl 17, 2015, a proposal will be made to grant him a contractual severance package in the
event of forced departure and subject to the satisfaction of performance conditions

In addition, with respect to 2014, the members of the Management Board n office until June 24, 2014 recewed a fixed and
variable compensation in 2014 for an aggregate amount of €2 1 miilion, and the varable compensation of €1 0 million with respect
to 2013, as approved by the Supervisory Board on February 21, 2014

in 2013, the members of the Management Board in office received a fixed and variabfe compensation with respect to 2012 for an
aggregate amount of €2 3 millon In addition, the members of the Management Board in office until June 28, 2012 received in
2013 the prorated variable compensation component with respect to 2012, as approved by the Supervisory Board an February 22,
2013, for an aggregate amount of €4 6 million {excluding any severance payments)

= The aggregate charge recorded by the group with respect to equity-settied share-based compensation plans {performance shares,
stock options, and employee stock purchase plan) granted to the members of the Management Board, m office on the grant date.
amounted to €2 mithon in 2014 {compared to €2 million 1n 2013}

e  The amount of net pension obligations toward the current members of the Management Board amounted to €52 million as of
December 31, 2014 On June 24, 2014, the former Charman of the Management Board exercised nght pension benefits after
23 years of service within the group and a debut on plan assets was recorded for €3 4 million

e The amount of the current Chairman of the Supervisory Board's compensation s €400,000 per year, subject to the same
performance conditions as the members of the Management Board On February 27, 2015, the Supervisory Board approved the
level of satisfaction of objectives and decided to set the compensation of the current Chairman of the Supervisory Board at
€207,778 for the period from June 24 to December 31, 2014

+ The fixed compensation pad to the Chairman of the Supervisory Board in office until June 24, 2014 amounted to €338,333 in pro-
rata temporns {compared to €700,000 paid in 2013)

» The aggregate amount of directors’ fees paid to the members of the Supervisory Board with respect to 2014 was €1 1 million
{E1 2 million with respect to 2013) In addition, at its meeting held on Aprl 4 and 5, 2014, the Supervisory Board decided to award
additional compensation of €130,000 to members of the ad hec Committee, owing to the workload due to its mandate and the high
quality of the work they had contnbuted

Chapter 3 of the Annual Report contains a detailed descnption of the compensation pokicy and the compensation and benefits of corporate
officers of Vivendi SA, in accordance with the recommendations of the AFEP-MEDEF Code, as amended in June 2013
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24.2 Other related parties

Excluding corporate officers, Vivendi's main related parttes were those companies over which the group exercises an exclusive or joint
control, and companies over which Vivend exercises a significant influence {please refer to Note 27 for a list of its main subsidiaries, fully
consolidated or accounted for under the equity method), and non-controlling interests that exercise significant influence as of December 31,
2014 on group affiliates 1 e, TVN, which owns 32% of nc+ {a subsidiary of Canal+ Group} as well as corporate officers of the group and its
related subsidianies, in particular Havas Group and Bolloré Group

Excluding the following transactions with related parties, there are no transactions between Vivendi, Havas Group and Bolloré Group and
their corporate officers

{in millions of euros) 2014 2013
Assets
Trade accounts recevable and other 32 35
Of wiich Havas 1 15
Liabilitres
Trade accounts payable and other 12 2
Of which Havas 5 1
Statement of eamings
Operating income 100 88
Of which Havas 2 !
Operating expensas {72) {70
Of which Havas {24) {24)
Bolloré 9 i7)
Contractual obhgations, net off balance sheet 66 63
Advertising transactions
Oi which Advertising sales realized via Havas' agencies 89 g8
Media costs realized via Havas' agencies {62} {62}

Some subsidiaries of Havas Group render operating services to Vivends and its subsidianes under arm’s tength terms
Regarding Canal+ Group
- as part of advertising campaigns, customers of Havas Group entered into transactions through media space with Canal+
Group for an aggregate amount of £83 million 1n 2074 (€88 mulhon in 2013},
- as part of advertising campaigns developed for Canal+, Canalsat, and Canalplay, Canal+ Group entered into transactions with
main media companies through Havas Group and 1ts media spaces for €62 mullion in 2014 {£62 mullion n 2013},
- transactions excluding media, production, broadcast rights and fees were completed by Havas Group and its subsidiaries for
€9 million in 2014, and
- Havas Group and its subsidraries developed and designed advertising campaigns n favor of Canal+ Group for €13 million in
2014

In addit:on, Havas and Universal Mus:c Group (UMG) announced the following agreements
- on September 29, 2014 digital brand :ntegrations in select UMG music videos by using Mirnad’s Academy Award-winning video
technelogy, and
- onJanuary 5, 2015 formation of Global Music Data Alliance (GMDA) related to consumer’s data

\
|
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Note25 Contractual obligations and other commitments

Vivend!'s matenal contractual obligations and contingent assets and liabilities include

= contracts entered into, which relate to the group’s business operations, such as content commitments {please refer to Note 10 2),
contractua! obhigations and commercial commitments recorded In the Statement of Financial Position, including finance Jeases, off-
balance sheet operating leases and subleases and off-balance sheet commercial commitments, such as long-term service contracts
and purchase or investment commitments,

* commitments related to the group’s consohdation scope contracted through acquisitions or divestitures such as share purchase or
sale commitments, contingent assets and liabilities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the divestiture or
acquisition of shares, commitments resulting from shareholders’ agreements and collateral and pledges granted to third parties over
Vivend's assets,

e commitments related to the group’s financing undrawn confirmed bank credit facilities as well as the management of interest rate,
foreign currency and hquidity nsks (please refer to Notes 21 and 22), and

= gontingent assets and liabilities related to litigatton i which Vivend and/or its subsidiaries are erther plaintiff or defendant (please
refer to Note 26}

251 Contractual obligations and commercial commitments
Mimimum future payments as of Decamber 31 2014 Total minimum futura

Totat Payments due in paymants as of
{tn millions of euros) Note 2015 2018 2019 After 2019 Dagember 31 2013
Barrowings and other financeal labilitres 7623 363 79 n 13867
Content labilties 102 2433 2334 a7 2 2335
Consolidated statement of financial positon ttems 5.056 2697 236 3 16,302
Contraciual content commitments 102 6135 1895 4 180 59 4798
Commercial commitmants 1t 1160 5 568 247 2209
Operating leases and subleases 2512 640 81 219_ 270 2700
Htems not recorded in the consohidated statement of financial pesition 1835 302 5.057 576 9.207
Contractual obligations and commercial commitments 12991 1939 1,383 25 509

2511 Off balance sheet commercial commitments
Mincmum future payments as of December 31 2014 Total minimum future
Total Due in payments as of

{tn mullions of euros) 2015 2016-2015 After 2019 December 31 2013
Satelive transponders 752 118 399 235 686
Investment commitments 85 55 30 - 1078
Other 510 235 259 16 132
Given commitments 1347 408 51 2,496
Satellnte transponders (187) {83) (100 (4) {159)
Other - - {128)
Received commitments (187) {83) (100) {4) {287)
Net total {a) 1,160 325 588 247 2209

a

The decrease n off balance sheet commercial commitments was mainly related to SFR sold on November 27, 2014, and GVT, whose
sale by Vivendi 1s underway (€339 million and €127 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2013)
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2512 0ff balance sheet operating leases and subleases

Mintmum future leases as of December 31, 2014 Total - mimmum future

Total Due in leases as of December

{in millions of euros} 2015 2016 - 2019 After 2019 31,2013

Buildings 652 84 298 270 2,895
Other 6 3 3 - 221
Leases 658 87 in 2N 2916
Buildings {18 16 12l - {216)
Subleases {18) (6) (12) - {216)
Net total {a} 640 11 289 210 2,700

a  The decrease n the amount of off balance sheet operating leases and subleases was manly related to SFR sold on November 27,
2014, and GVT, whose sale by Vivend 1s underway (€1,790 million and €451 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2013}

252 Other commitments given or received relating to operations

Raf 1(:onmn Charactenistics (nature &nd amount) Expiry
| _{Given commitments ™ - 7 t™% ° T LT . s i D
Indtvidual nghts to traimng for French employess Approximately D 4 mulion hours (3 6 million hours as of December 31 2013} -
Dbligations (n connaction with pension plans and post retirement benetits |Please refer to Note 19
{a) |Other guarantees geven Cumylated amount of €93 mitlien {compared to 8156 millien a5 of Decembar 31 2013)
[ IRecewed commitments R . N -
{b) |Agreements on the digital distnbution of music nghts Minimum guarantess
Other guarantzes received No impact as of December 31 2014 {compared to €1 milhon as of December 31 2013)

a  Vivend grants guarantees in various forms to financial institutions on behalf of its subsidianies in the course of their operations
b Manly relates to commitments received by UMG from third parties i connection with agreements subject to mimimum guarantees on
the digital distnbution of music nghts

253 Share purchase and sale commitments

In connection with the purchase or sale of opesations and financial assets, Vivend: has granted or received commitments to purchase or sell
securities

s On September 18, 2014, pursuant to an agreement entered into with Telefonica, Vivendi committed to sell GVT (please refer to Note
32),

« the liquidity nights related to Vivendr's interest in Numericable - SFR are described in Note 3 1, and

o the Iquidity nights 1n respect of the strateqic partnership between Canal+ Group, T, and TVN are detailed in Note 255 below

Vivend) and its subsidraries have granted or received purchase or sale options related to shares in equity affihates and unconsolidated
Investments
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254 Contingent assets and liabilities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the

divestiture or acquisition of shares

Re! |Context Charactaristics (nature and amount} Exptry
| “|Céntingént liabilsties  x . - R WS e . . = D
{a) |Acquisition of Bollord Group s channals (September 2012) Commitments undertaken 1n connection with the authonzaron of the acquisition with
the French Competition Authonty and w7
the French Broadcasung Authonty 2015
Merger of Cyfra+ and n° platforms (November 2012} Rectprocat guarantees in favor of TVN
PLN 1 bilfion 1n the event of a braach of any reprasentation or warranty or covenants and 2015
PLN 300 million in the event of a breach of specific representation or watranty
{b} |Canal+ Group's pay TV actmues in France (January 2007 July 2017) New approval of the acqunsiuon of TPS and CanalSatellte subject to complianca with injunctions ordered by 2017
the Franch Competiton Authonty
{c}) JDwvaestiture of Canal+ Nordic {Dctober 2003) Distribution guarantees expired as of Dacember 31 2014 given in faver of Canal Thgnal end Telenor Broadeast | 2014
Holding by a former subsediary
{d) |Divestisure of NC Numencabla {March 2605) {Spatific guarantaes capped at E241 million {incluging tax and social nsks) expired as of December 34 2014 2014
Divestitura of PSG (Juns 2006) Unlimited specific guarantaes 2018
Divastitura of UMG manufactuning and distribution cperations {May 2005] {Various commutments for manufacturing and distribution services rit:]
{e) {NBC Universal transaction {May 20041 and subsaquent amencdments {20051 Breaches of tax rep 1DNns -
2010) Obligation to cover the Most Favorad Nation prowisions and
Claims related to remedsal actiens on May 11 2014 at the latest 2014
{f  |Owesuture of Sithe (Decamber 2000) Speafic guarantaes capped at $480 million
{g) [Safe of real estate assets {June 2002) Autonomous first demand guarantees capped at €150 million 1n totzl (tax and decenntal guarantees) 2017
{h} |Dwestiture of PTC shares {December 2010} Commitments undertaken (n order to end Jtigation over the share ownership of PTC in Poland
{1} |Sale of Activision Blizzard (October 2013} unlimited general guarantees and -
tax guarantess capped at $200 millon under certain circumstances.
Sale of Marot Telecom group {May 2014) {Commitments undertaken in connecuon with the sate (please refar to Note 3 3)
Sala of SFR {November 2014) Commitments undertaken 1n connection with the sala [please rafer to Nota 3 1)
Other contingent habilities Cumulated amount of €7 million (unchanged compared to Decembar 31 2013)
{a)  [Acquisition of Bollosé Group s channels (September 2012) Guarantees capped at €320 mellron 017
Acquistion of 40% of N Vision (November 2012) Guarantess made by IT| capped at approximately
£28 million for genaral guarantaes, expired on May 30 2014 and 014
€277 milhon for specific guarantees (inctuding tax matters frae and full ownership of shares sold
authorizations / approvals for she exercise of tha activity)
Merger of Cyfra+ and n* platform {Novembar 2012) Raciprocal guarantees in favor of TVN
PLM 1 biHion in the event of a breach of ary representation of warranty or covenants 2015
PLN 300 mullion in the event of a breach of spacific représentahan or warranty and
PLN 145 million telated to Neowsion § unuti'ized tax Josses carned lorward
Acquisition of Kinowelt [Apnl 2008) Specific guarantess notably on film nghts were granted by the sellers .
(d} [Owvestiture of NC Numencable (March 2005) €151 millon counter-guaranteed by Orange expired as of Decomber 31 2014 2014
Acquisition of EMI Recarded Music {September 2012} - Commitments relating to fult pension obligations in the United Kingdom assumed by Citr and -
Guarantees relating to losses stamming from taxes and ktrgation clams in particutar those related to pension
{obligations in the Urited Xingdom
{3 [Dwestiture of Xfera (2003) Guarantaes amount to €71 mullion
Other cantingsnt assets Cumulated amount of €86 mithion (comparad to €70 milion 25 of Decembar 31 2013)

The accompanymng notes are an integral part of the contingent assets and liabilities descnbed above

a

As part of the French Competition Authonty's approval of the acquisition of the Direct 8 and Direct Star channels {renamed D8 and
D17, respectvely) on July 23, 2012, Viverd: and Canal+ Group gave certain commitments These commitments pravide for restrictions
on the acquisition of nghts for Amencan movies and televiston seres from certan Amenican studios and for French movies, the
separate negotiation of certain rights for pay-TV and free-to-air movies and television series, imitations on the acquisition by D8 and
D17 of French catalog movies from Studiocanal, and the transfer of nights to broadcast major sports events on free-to-air channels
through 2 competitive bidding process These commitments are made for a five-year penod and are renewable once if the French
Competition Authonty, after having performed a competition analysis, deems 1t necessary In addition, on September 18, 2012, the
French Broadcasting Authonty (Conse Supérieur de I'Audiovisuely approved the acquisition of these channels, subject to certain
commitments relating to broadcasting, mvestment obligations, transfer rights, and the retention by Canal+ Group of the D8 shares for
a minimum penod of two and a half years

On December 23, 2013, the French Council of State annulled, with a delayed effect as from July 1, 2014, the French Campetition
Authonity’s approval of the acquisition of the Birect 8 and Direct Star channels (renamed DB and D17, respectively), which had bsen
approved on July 23, 2012 On January 15, 2014, Vivend: and Canal+ Group submitted a new notification to the French Competition
Authority On Apnl 2, 2014, the French Competition Authority reapproved the transaction, subject to compliance with commitments
given by Vivend and Canal+ Group These commitments are similar to the ones contained i the previous 2012 authonzation except
for an additional commitment relating to the acqursition of broadcasting nghts covering second and third exhibition windows for
French films All commitments are binding for a period of five years starting July 23, 2012 In 2017, the French Competition Authonty
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will have the opportunity to request a renewa! of these commitments for the same duration, If deemed necessary. after a new
competitive analysis

On August 30, 2006, the merger between TPS and the Canal+ Group was authorized, in accordance with the merger control
regulations, pursuant to a decision of the French Minister of Economy, Finance and Industry, subject to Vivend) and Canal+ Group
complying with certain undertakings for a maximum perod of six-years, with the exception of those commitments concerning the
avaitabibty of channels and VOD, which could not exceed five-years

On October 28, 2009, the French Competition Authority opened an enquiry in respect of the implementation of certain undertakings
given by Canal+ Group in connection with the merger of Canalsatellite and TPS
On December 21, 2012, the French Council of State rejected Vivendi and Canal + Group's fited motions reguesting the annulment of
the French Competition Authority’s decisions of September 20, 2011 and July 23, 2012 Under the first motion, the €30 milhon fine
imposed on Canal+ Group was reduced to €27 million Under the second motion, the transaction was once again cleared, subject to
comphance with 33 injunctions
Canal+ Group has implemented a number of these injunctions, some since July 23, 2012 and others since October 23, 2012 The
inunctions manly focus on
= Acquisition of movie nghts
- by hmiting the duration of output deals to three years, requinng separate agreements for different types of nghts (first pay-TV
window, second pay-TV window, series, etc} and prohibiting output deals for French films, and
by the Canal+ Group divesting its interest in Orange Cinema Sernies — OCS SNC or by adopting measures limiting its influence
aver Qrange Cinema Series — QCS SNC On February 4, 2013, at the request of Multithématiques and to comply with
injunction 2(b} ordered by the French Competition Authonty on July 23, 2012, the members of Orange Cinema Series - OCS
SNC’ Board of Drrectors resigned from therr positions As a result, Multithématiques appointed by letter with an effective
date of February 4, 2013, two independent representatives with no affiliat:on to Multithématiques to the Board of Directors of
Orange Cinema Senes - 0CS SNC
* Distnbution of pay-TV channels
- by the distnbution of a minimum number of independent channels, the distribution of any channel holding premium rnights, and
by drafting a model distribution deal relating to independent channels included in the Canalsat offer,
by the obhigation to promote, in a transparent and separate manner, the distribution of exclusive independent channels on
each owned platform serving mere than 500,000 subscribers, and
by making all #s own movie channels distnbuted by Canal+ Group {Ciné+ channels} available to third-party distrbutors
{unbundhng})
* Video-on-demand {VOD} and subscrnption video-on-demand {SVOD)
by separating contracts entered into for the purchase of VOD and SYOD nghts on a non-exclusive basis, and not combining
them wrth nights purchased for linear distribution on pay-TV,
- by offering Studiocanal's VQD and SVOD rights to any interested operator, and
- by forbidding exclusive distribution deals for the benefit of Canal+ Group's VOD and SVOD offers on Intemet Service Providers
platforms
These imunctions are imposed for a period of five-years and are renewable once At the end of the five-year penod, the French
Compstition Authority will review the competition situation to determine whether the injunctions should be kept in place i market
conditions have changed significantly, Canat+ Group will be able to request that these injunctions be lifted or partially or totally
revised An independent trustee, proposed by Canal+ Group and approved by the French Competition Authonty on September 25, 2012,
will be responsible for monitoring the implementation of the injunctions

In connection with the divestiture of Canal+ Nordic in October 2003, Canal+ Group had retained distnbution guarantees given in favor
of Canal Digital and Telenor Broadcast Holding by a former subsidiary These guarantees, which were covered by a counter-guarantee
given by the buyers, expired on December 31, 2014

As part of the divestiture of NC Numericable on March 31, 2005, the Canal+ Group granted specific guarantees with a €241 million
cap (including tax and social nsks) Specific nsks relating to cable networks used by NC Numericable were included in this maximum
amount and were counter-guaranteed by Orange for up to €151 midlion As of December 31, 2014, all of these guarantees were
expired

As part of the NBC Universal transaction which occurred in May 2004, Vivendi and General Electric (GE) gave certamn reciprocal
commitments customary for this type of transaction, and Vivend: retained centain liabihties relating to taxes and excluded assets
Vivend! and GE undertook to indemnify each other against losses resuiting from, among other things, any breach of their respective
representations, warranties and covenants

Neither party will have any indemnification obligations for losses ansing as a result of any breach of representations and warranties
{1) for any indidual item where the loss 15 less than $10 million and {u) in respect of each individual item where the loss 1s equal to or
greater than $10 million except where the aggregate amount of all losses exceeds $325 million In that event, the liable party will be
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required to pay the amaunt of losses which exceeds $325 millian, but in no event will the aggregate indemnification payable exceed
$2,088 mullon

In addition, Vivendi wil have indemmufication obligations for 50% of every US dollar of loss up to $50 million and for all lasses in
excess of $50 mulion relating to liabilities ansing out of the Most Favored Nation provisions set forth i certain contracts As part of
the unwinding of 1ACI's interest in VUE on June 7, 2005, Yivendi's commitments with regard to environmental matters were amended
and Vivend:'s hability 1s now subject to a de minimis exception of $10 million and a payment basket of $325 million

The representat:ons and warranties given as part of the NBC Universal transaction other than those in respect of authonzation,
capitalization and tax representations terminated on August 11, 2005 Notices of environmental claims related to remedration had to
be brought by May 11, 2014 Qther claims, including those related to taxes, will be subject to applicable statutes of mitations

The sale of Vivendr's interest in NBC Universal to GE completed on January 25, 2011 did not modify these commitments

In connaction with the safe of 1ts 49 3% interest in Sithe to Exelon in December 2000, Vivend: granted customary representations and
warranties Claims, other than those made in refation to foreign subsidiary commitments, are capped at $480 million In addition,
claims must exceed $15 mullion, except if they relate to foreign subsidianes or the divesuture of certain electrical stations to Reliant in
February 2000 Some of these warranties expired on December 18, 2005 Some environmental commitments still exist and any
potential iabihties related to contamination risks will survive for an indefinite period of time

In connection with the sale of real estate assets 1n June 2002 to Nexity, Vivendi granted two autonemous first demand guarantees,
one for €40 mithon and one for €110 mullion, to several subsidianes of Nexity (Nexim 1 to 6} The guarantees are effective until Juna
30, 2017

On Oecember 14, 2010, Vivend:, Deutsche Telekom, Mr Solorz-Zak (Elektrim’s main shareholder) and Elektnm's creditors, including
the Polish State and Elektrim's bondholders, entered into various agreements to put an end to the litigation surrounding the share
capital ownership of Polska Telefonia Cyfrowa (PTC). a mobile telecommunication operator With respect to these agreements, Vivend
notably entered into the following commitments
s Vivend: granted to Deutsche Telekom a guarantee over Carcom that was capped at €600 mullion, which exprred in August
2013,
*  Vivendr committed to compensate the Law Debenture Trust Company {LDTC) aganst any recourse for damages that could be
brought against LDTC in connectron with the completed transaction, for an amount up to 18 4% for the first €125 mullron,
46% between €125 milhon and €288 midlion, and 50% thereafter, and
* Vivendi committed to compensate Elektnm’s administrator for the consequences of any action for damages that may be
taken against i, in connection with the decisions that were taken to end certain procedures

As part of the sale of 88% of Vivend:'s interest in Activision Bhizzard, which was completed on October 11, 2013 {the “Closing Date”},
Vivend:, ASAC Il LP, and Activision Bhizzard gave certam reciprocal commitments customary for this type of transaction
{representations, warranties and covenants) Vivends, ASAC Il LP, and Activision Biizzard undertook to indemnify each other against
any losses stemming from any breach of their respective commitments Such indemnification s unlimited as to tme and amount

In addition, Vivend: has agreed to indemnify Activision Blizzard with respect to any tax or other habilities of Amber Holding Subsidiary
Co ("Amber”), the Vwend subsidiary acquired by Activision Blizzard, relating to periods preceding the Closing Date Such
indemnification 15 unlimited as to time and amount Tax attributes (mawnly net operating loss) held by Amber and assumed by
Activision Bhzzard were estimated at mare than $700 million, which represent a potental future tax benefit of approximately
$245 million Vivend agreed to indemmify Activision Bhzzard, under certain circumstances, with respect to these tax attributes, subject
to a cap of $200 miflion limited to taxable years ending on or prior to December 31, 2016

On May 22, 2014, in accordance with the agreements entered into on July 25, 2013, Vivendi sold a first tranche of 415 million
Activision Blizzard shares, representing 58% interest in this company Following thrs sale, Vivend: owns a residual interest of
41 5milkon Activision Blizzard shares, which 1s subject to a lock-up restniction that expired on January 7, 2015 Since this date,
Vivendi 1s free to sell its remaming Activision Blizzard shares without restnction

Activision Bhzzard agreed to file a registration statement prior to each sale window to enable Vivend: to sell the Activision Blizzard
shares in a public offening

Prior ta any sale of Activision Blizzard shares by Vivend in a market offering that occurs prior to the secand anniversary of the Closing
Date (Uctober 11, 2015), Vivend must notify Activision Bhizzard of :ts intention to sell the shares and Activision Blizzard may, at its
election, offer to purchase some or all of the shares that Vivend: intends to sell n such market offering Vivendi may accept or decline
such offer at its sole discretion

ASAC Il LP was also subject to a lock-up provision which expired on Apnif 9, 2014

Vivend received guarantees in respect of the repayment of amounts paid in July 2007 (€71 million), In the event of a favourable
decision of the Spanish Courts concerming Xfera's tax litigation seeking to cancel the 2001, 2002 and 2003 radio spectrum fees These
guarantees include a first demand bank guarantee relating to 2001 fees for an amount of €57 mullion
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Several guarantees given in 2014 and during prior years in connection with asset acquisitions or disposals have expired However, the time
periods or statute of imitations of certan guarantees relating, among other things, to employees, environment and tax liabilities, in
consideration of share ownership, or given 10 connection with the dissolution or winding-up of certain businesses are stifl i effect To the
best of Vivendt's knowledge, no matenial clams for indemnufication against such lrabitiies have been made to date

In addition, Vivendi regularly delivers, at the settlement of disputes and liugations, commitments for damages to thud parties, which are
typical i such transactions

255 Shareholders’ agreements

Under existing shareholders” or investors’ agreements (pnmarly these relating to nc+), Vivend: holds certain nghts {such as pre-emptive
nghts and prionity nghts) that give 1t control over the capital structure of consolidated companies that are partialty owned by minerity
shareholders Conversely, Vivend: has granted simitar rights to these other shareholders in the event that it sells its interests to third parties

In addition, pursuant to other shareholders’ agreements or the bylaws of consolidated entities, equity affiliates or unconsolidated interests, Vivend
and its subsidianes have given or received certain nghts {pre-emptive and other rights) entitling them to maintain their nghts as shareholder

20% interest in Numencable - SFR

The main terms of the shareholders’ agreement between Altice and Vivend: resulting from Vivends's interest in Numericable - SFR are
described in Note 3 1

Strategic partnership among Canal+ Group, ITl, and TVN

The key hguidity nghts provided under the strategic partnership forred in November 2012 in relation to television services i Poland are as
follows

- Atthe level of N-Vision

e Canal+ Group has a call option to acquire ITI's remaiming N-Vision shares, exercisable at any time dunng the two three-
manth periods beginning February 29, 2016 and February 28, 2017, at the then-prevailing market value,

= conversely, in the event that Canal+ Group does not exercise 1ts call gption on {Tl's intgrest in N-Vision, IT has a call option
to acquire Canal+ Group’s interest in N-Vasion, exercisable at any ttme during the two three-month perrods beginming May
30, 2016 and May 29, 2017, and between November 1, 2017 and December 31, 2017 and between May 1, 2018 and June
30, 2018, at the then-prevailing market value, and

o Canal+ Group and ITI each has the hquidity right, following the above calt option periods, to sell its entire interest in N-
Vision

- Atthe leve! of nc+
» (Canal+ Group has a call option to acquire TVN's 32% nterest in nc+ at market value, which i1s exercisable dunng the two
three-month penods beginning November 30, 2015 and November 30, 2016,
o 1if Canal+ Group exercises its call option, Canal+ Group will be reguired to acquire HI's remaining mterest in N-Vision, and
e n the event that Canal+ Group does not exercise its call option, TVN has liquidity nghits in the form of an Initiat Pubhic
Offering of its interest In nc+

In addition, in compliance with Article L 225-100-3 of the French Commercial Code, it 1s stated that some nghts and obligations of Vivend
resulting from shareholders” agreements {nc+) may be amended or termmated in the event of a change in contrel of Vivend: or a tender offer
for Vivend being made These shareholders’ agreements are subject to confidentiality provisions

256 Collaterals and pledges

As of December 31, 2014, no asset in Vivend:'s Statement of Financ:al Posiion was subject to a pledge or mortgage for the benefit of third
parties

In addition, the amount of assets of GVT, a discontinued operation, which were pledged or mortgaged for the benefit of third parties,
amounted to €183 million as of December 31, 2014 {compared to €128 million as of December 31, 2013) This amount related to assets
pledged with respect to judicial guarantees for varnious litigations

As of December 31, 2013, the amount of assets of SFR, sold on November 27, 2014, which were pledged or mortgaged for the benefit of
third parties amounted to €84 million
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Note 26  Litigation

In the normal course of its busmess, Vivendr 1s subject to vanous lawsuits, arbitrations and governmental, administrative or other
proceedings (collectively referred to herein as “Legal Proceedings”)

The costs which may result from these proceedings are only recognized as prowisions when they are likely to be incurred and when the
obligation can reasonably be quantified or estimated, in which case, the amount of the provision represents Vivend!’s best estimate of the
nsk, provided that Vivendi may, at any time, reassess such nisk if events occur during such proceedings As of December 31, 2014, provisions
recorded by Vivend: for all claims and litigations amounted to €1,206 million, compared to €1,379 milfion as of December 31, 2013 {please
refer to Note 18)

To the company’s knowledge, there are no Legal Proceedings or any facts of an exceptional nature, including, to the company's knowledge,
any pending or threatened proceedings m which it 1s a defendant, which may have cr have had in the prevtous twelve months a significant
impact on the company’s and on 1ts group’s financial position, profit, busmess and property, other than those described herein

The status of proceedings disclosed hereunder 1s described as of February 11, 2015, the date of the Management Board meeting held to
approve Yivendr's Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014

Vivendi litigation

Secunties Class Action in the United States

Since July 18, 2002, sixteen claims have been filed agamst Vivend), Messrs Messier and Hanrezo in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York and in the United States District Court for the Central Distnct of Califomia On September 30, 2002, the New
Yark court decided to consohdate these claims under its junisdiction into a single action entitled o re Vivend) Univarsal SA Securities
Lihgation

The plaintiffs allege that, between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, the defendants violated certain provisions of the US Secunities
Act of 1933 and US Secunities Exchange Act of 1934, particularly with regard to financial communscations On January 7, 2003, the plaintiffs
filed a consolidated class action suit that may benefit potential groups of shareholders

On March 22, 2007, the Court decided, concerning the pracedure for certification of the potential claimants as a class (“class certification”),
that persons from the United States, France, England and the Netherlands who purchased or acquired shares or Amencan Depositary
Receipts {ADRs) of Vivend: {formerty Vivendi Universal SA) between Qctober 36, 2000 and August 14, 2002, could be included in the class

Follow:ng the class certfication decision of March 22, 2007, a number of individual cases were filed agamst Vivend) on the same grounds as
the class action On December 14, 2007, the judge 1ssued an order consolidating the individual actions with the secunties class action for
purposes of discovery On March 2, 2009, the Court deconsolidated the Liberty Media action from the class action On August 12, 2008, the
Court 1ssued an order deconsalidating the individual actions from the class action

On January 29, 2010, the jury returned s verdict It found that 57 statements made by Vivendi between October 30, 2000 and August 14,
2002, were materially false or misleading and were made n violation of Section 10(b} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Plamtiffs had
alleged that those statements were false and misleading because they failed to disclose the existence of an alleged “liquidity nisk” which
reached 1ts peak n December 2001 However, the jury concluded that neither Mr Jean-Mane Messier nor Mr Guilaume Hannezo were
liable for the alleged misstatements As part of its verdict, the jury found that the price of Vivendr's shares was artificially inflated on each
day of the class period in an amount between €0 15 and €11 00 per ordinary share and $0 13 and $10 00 per ADR, depending on the date of
purchase of each ardinary share or ADR Those figures represent approximately half the amounts sought by the plamtiffs n the class action
The jury also concluded that the inflation of the Vivend: share price fell to zero in the three weeks following the September 11, 2001,
tragedy, as well as on stock exchange holidays on the Pans or New York markets (12 days) duning the class period

On June 24, 2010, the US Supreme Court, m a very clear statement, ruled, in the Morrison v National Australia Bank case, that Amenican
securities law only applies to “the purchase or sale of a secunty histed on an American stock exchange”, and to “the purchase or saie of any
other securty i the United States "

in a decision dated February 17, 2011 and 1ssued on February 22, 2011, the Court, in applying the "Momson” decision, confirmed Vivendi's
position by dismissing the claims of all purchasers of Vivend's ordinary shares on the Panis stock exchange and limited the case to claims of
French, Amenican, British and Dutch purchasers of Vivend's ADRs on the New York Stock Exchange The Court denied Vivendi's post-trial
motions challenging the jury’s verdict The Court also dechined to enter a final judgment, as had been requested by the plaintiffs, saying that
to do s0 would be premature and that the process of examining individual shareholder claims must take place before a final judgment could
be 1ssued On March 8, 2011, the plaintiffs filed a petitton before the Second Circuit Court of Appeals seeking to appeal the decision
rendered on February 17, 2011 On July 20, 2011, the Court of Appeals denied the petition and dismissed the claim of purchasers who
acquired their shares on the Pars stock exchange
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In a decision dated January 27, 2012 and 1ssued on February 1, 2012, the Court, in applying the Mornison decision, also d:smissed the claims
of the indwidual plaintiffs who purchased ordinary shares of the company on the Panis stock exchange

On July 5, 2012, the Court denied a request by the plaintiffs to expand the class to nationalities other than those covered by the certification
decision dated March 22, 2007

The claims process commenced on December 10, 2012, with the sending of a notice to shareholders who may be part of the class
Reciprents of the notice had until August 7, 2013 to file a claim form and submit documentation evidencing the validity of their claim These
claims are currently beng processed and verfied by an independent clamms administrator and by the parties Vivend) will then have the nght
to challenge the ments of these claims On November 10, 2014, at Vivend's wutiative, the parties filed a mutually agreed upon proposed
order requesting the Court to enter a partial final judgment on the January 29, 2010 jury verdict, coverng 2 substantial portion of the claims
Certan large claims were excluded from this proposed judgment order as Vivend! continues to analyze whether to challenge the validity of
those claims On December 23, 2014, the Court entered the partial judgment

On January 21, 2015, Vivend: filed its Notice of Appeal with the Second Cirewit Court of Appeals This appeal will be heard together with
Vivendi's appeal in the Liberty Media case

Vivend behieves that it has solid grounds for an appeal Vivendi intends to challenge, among other 1ssues, the plaintiffs’ theonies of
causation and damages and, more generally, certain decisions made by the judge during the conduct of the trial Several aspects of the
verdict will also be chaltenged

On the basis of the verdict rendered on January 29, 2010, and following an assessment of the matters set forth abave, together with support
from studies conducted by compamies specializing in the calculation of class action damages and in accordance with the accounting
principles described 1n Notes 1 3 1 (Use of Estimates) and 1 3 8 (Prowisions) Vivendi made a provision on December 31, 2009, in an amount
of €550 million in respect of the damages that Vivendi might have to pay to plaintiffs Vivend: re-examined the amount of the reserve related
to the Securities class act:on litigation n the United States, given the decision of the District Court for the Southern District of New York on
February 17, 2011, which followed the US Supreme Court's decision on June 24, 2010 m the Momson case Using the same methodology
and the same vatuation experts as n 2009, Vivend: re-examined the amount of the reserve and set it at €100 million as of December 31,
2010, n respect of the damages, if any, that Vivendi might have to pay solely to shareholders who have purchased ADRs in the United
States Consequently, as of December 31, 2010, Vivend: recognized a €450 million reversal of reserve

Vivend considers that this provision and the assumptions on which 1t 1s based may require further amendment as the proceedings progress
and, consequently, the amount of damages that Vivend: might have 1o pay to the plantffs could differ from the current estimate As 15
permitted by current accounting standards, no details are given of the assumptions on which this estimate 1s based, because their disclosure
at this stage of the proceedings could be prejudicial to Vivend)

Comptaint of Liberty Media Corporation

On March 28, 2003, Liberty Media Corporation and certain of its affiliates filed suit against Vivendi and Jean-Marie Messier and Guillaume
Hannezo i the District Court for the Southern District of New York for claims ansing out of the agreement entered into by Vivend: and
Liberty Medra relating to the formation of Vivendt Universal Entertainment in May 2002 The plaintiffs allege that the defendants violated
certain provisions of the US Exchange Act of 1934 and breached certatn contractual representations and warranies The case had been
consolidated with the securities class action for pre-trial purposes but was subsequently deconsolidated on March 2, 2009 The judge
granted Liberty Media's request that they be permitted to avail themselves of the verdict rendered by the secunties class action jury with
respect to Vivendi's liabihity (theory of “collateral estoppel”}

The Liberty Media jury retumed 1ts verdict on June 25, 2012 It found Vivend: hable to Liberty Media for making certan false or misleading
statements and for breaching several representations and warranties containgd in the parmes’ agreement and awarded damages to Liberty
Media in the amount of €765 million Vivend: filed certain post-tnal motions challenging the jury’s verdict, iIncluding motions requesting that
the Court set aside the jury’s verdict for lack of evidence and order a new triat

On January 9, 2013, the Court confirmed the jury’s verdict It also awarded Liberty Media pre-judgment interest accruing from December 16,
2001 untit the date of the entry of judgment, using the average rate of return on one-year US Treasury bills On January 17, 2013, the Court
entered a final judgment in the total amount of €345 million, including pre-judgment interest, but stayed its execution while 1t considered
two pending post-trial motions, which were denied on February 12, 2013

On February 15, 2013, Vivend filed with the Court a Notice of Appeal against the judgment awarded, for which 1t believes 1t has strong
arguments On March 13, 2013, Vivend: filed a motion in the Second Circit Court of Appeals requesting that the Court stay the Liberty
Media appeal until the Class Action judgment 1s entered so that the two appeals can be heard simuttaneously On Apnil 4, 2013, the Court of
Appeals issued an Order granting Vivendi's motion, agreeing to hear the Liberty Media case together with the Class Action Vivend filed its
Notice of Appea! in the Class Action on January 21, 2015, these two cases will be heard together by the Court of Appeals

On the basis of the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012, and the entry of the final judgment by the Court, Vivend maintained as of December
31, 2014, the provision 1n the amount of €945 million recorded as of December 31, 2012
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Tnial of Vivendr's Former Officers in Pans

In Qctober 2002, the financial department of the Pans Public Prosecutor's office {Parquet de Pans) launched an investigation into the
publication of allegedly false or misleading information regarding the financial situation and forecasts of the company and the publicatian of
allegedly untrue or inaccurate financral statements for the fiscal years 2000 and 2001 Additional charges were brought in this nvestigation
retating to purchases by the company of its own shares hetween September 1, 2001 and December 31, 2001 Vivend: joined the proceedings
as a cvil party

The tnial took place fram June 2 to June 25, 2010, before the 11th Chamber of the Pants Tribunal of Furst Instance {Tribunal de Grande
Instance de Pars), following which the Public Prosecutor asked the Court to drop the charges against the defendants On January 21, 2011,
the Court rendered its judgment, in which it confirmed the previcus recognition of Vivend: as a civil party Messrs Jean-Marie Messer,
Guillaume Hannezo, Edgar Bronfman Jr and Enc Licoys recewved suspended sentences and fines Messrs Jean Mane Messier and
Gutllaume Hannezo were also ordered to pay damages to shareholders who are entitled to reparation as civil parties The former Vivend:
Officers as well as some cwil parties appealed the decision The appeal proceedings were held frem October 28 to November 26, 2013,
before the Pans Court of Appeal The Public Prosecutor requested a 20-month suspended prison sentence and a fine of £150,000 for Mr
Jean-Marie Messier for misuse of corporate assets and dissemination of false or misleading information, a 10-manth suspended prison
sentence and a fine of €850,000 for Mr Guillaume Hannezo for insider trading, and a 10-month suspended prison sentence and a fine of
€5 milion for Mr Edgar Bronfman Jr for insider trading On May 19, 2014, the Pans Court of Appeal rendered its judgment Regarding the
acts determined by the lower criminal court to constitute the dissermination of false or misleading information, the Court held that these acts
d'd not meet the critena for such an offense The Court upheld the conviction against Jean-Mane Messier for misuse of corporate assets
and he received a 10-month suspended sentence and a €50,000 fine The Court also upheld the convictions agamnst Messrs Hannezo and
Bronfman for insider trading and they received fines in the amount of €850,000 (of which €425,000 15 suspended) and €6 million {of which
€2 5 midlion 13 suspended), respectively Finally, the Court set aside the lower court’s order for the payment of damages (€10 per share} to
certain shareholders and former shareholders of Vivend) {the “ewii action”} With regard to Vivend), the Court upheld the validity of its status
as a civil party to the proceadings, exonerated it from any responsibihty and voided the demand for damages brought agatnst 1t by certain
shareholders or former shareholders An appeat has been filed with the French Supreme Court (Cour de Cassation) by certain of the
defendants and some civil parties

LBBW and al against Viveadi

On March 4, 2011, 26 institutional mvestors from Germany, Canada, Luxemburg, Irefand, Italy, Sweden, Belgrum and Austra filed a
complant against Vivend: with the Pans Commercial Court seeking to ohtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of four
financial communications issued by Vivend in October and December 2000, September 2001 and Aprif 2002 Subsegqusntiy, an April 5 and
April 23, 2012, two similar complaints were filed against Vivendi the first one by a US pension fund, the Public Employee Retirement System
of Idaho, and the other by six German and British institutional investors Lastly, on August 8, 2012, the Briish Columbia Investment
Management Corporation also filed a complaint against Vivend: on the same basis On January 7, 2015, the Commercial Court of Pans
appointed a “third party” responsible for checking the standing of the claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by them ta
evidence their alleged holding of the securities

California State Teachers Retirement System end al against Vivend: and Jean-Marie Messier

On April 27, 2012, 67 institutional foreign investors filed a complaint against Vivend and Jean-Mare Messier before the Pans Commercial
Court seeking damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of the financial communications made by Vivendi and its former CEQ,
between 2000 and 2002 On June 7 and September 5 and 6, 2012, 26 new plant:ffs joined these proceedings  In November 2012 and March
2014, 12 plantiffs withdrew from these proceedings On January 7, 2015, the Commercial Court of Pans appointed a “third party”
responsible for checking the standing of the claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by them to evidence their alleged holding
of the secunties

Actions against Activision Blizzard. Inc , its Scard of Directors, and Vivend)

In August 2013, a derivative action was imitiated in the Los Angeles Superior Court by an individual shareholder against Activision Blizzard,
Inc {“Activision Blizzard" or the “Company”), all of the members of its Board of Directors and against Vivend: The plaintiff alleges that
Activision Blizzard's Board of Directors and Vivend breached their fiduciary duties by approving the divestment of Vivendi’s share ownership
 the Company The plastff, Todd Miller, claims that the transaction would net only be disadvantageous to Activision Blizzard but that 1t
would also confer a disproportionate advantage to a group of investors led by Robert Kotick and Brian Kelly, the Company's Chief Executive
Officer and Co-Chairman of the Board, respectively, and that those breaches of fiduciary duty were aided and abetted by Vivend)

On September 11, 2013 a second dervative action based on essentially the same allegations was initiated in the Delaware Court of
Chancery by another minority shareholder of Activision Blizzard, Anthony Pacchia

On the same day, another minonty shareholder, Douglas Hayes, initiated a similar action and also requested that the closing of the sale
transaction be enjomned pending approval of the transacton by Activision Blizzard's shareholders On September 18, 2013, the Delaware
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Court of Chancery granted the mation enjoining the clesing of the transaction However, on October 10, 2013, the Delaware Supreme Court
overtumed this decision, allow:ng for the completion of the transaction The case will proceed on the ments

On November 2, 2013, the Delaware Court of Chancery consolidated the Pacehia and Hayes actions into a single action entitled /n Re
Activision Blizzard Inc Securities Litigation

On March 14, 2014, a simi‘ar new action was initiated in the Delaware Court of Chancery by a minority shareholder, Mark Benston This
action was conschdated into the In Re Actnision Blizzard Inc Securities Litigation proceeding currently underway

in November 2014, the parties reached agreement on a global settlement which would put an end to this dispute On December 19, 2014,
the settlement agreement executed between the parties was filed with the Court for formal approval and then the shareholder notification
process commenced The Court 1s expected to approve the settlement agreement at an upcoming hearing

Calling of the guarantee 1ssued by Anjou Patnmoine to Unibail

Unibail has called its indemnification guarantee 1ssued by Anjou Patnmoing (a former subsithary of Vivendi) iIn connection with the sale of
the CNIT offices 1n 1999 On July 3, 2007, the High Court of Nanterre ordered Anjou Patrimarne to sdemnify Umbail for a tax hability ansing
from the creation of offices and rejected all other claims On October 31, 2008, the Versadles Count of Appeal reversed the High Court’s
ruhing, denied all of Unibail's claims and ordered 1t to reimburse Anjou Patnmoine for all sums paid under the first rubing On November 27,
2008, Umibail appealed agamnst this decision On September 11, 2013, the French Supreme Court reversed the October 31, 2008 ruling of the
Versailles Court of Appeal and remanded the case to the Pans Court of Appeal The hearing will take place on Apnl 2, 2015

Vivendi Deutschiand against FIG

Further to a ctaim filed by CGIS BIM (a former subsidiary of Vivendi} against FIG to obtain the release of part of a payment remamning due
pursuant 1o a buildings sale contract, FIG obtained, on May 29, 2008, the annulment of the sale following a judgment of the Berlin Court of
Appeal, which gverruled a judgment rendered by the Beriin High Court CGIS BIM was ordered to repurchase the buildings and to pay
damages Vivend delivered a guarantee so as to pursue settlement negotrations As no settlement was reached, on September 3, 2008,
CGIS BIM challenged the validity of the reasoning of the judgment On Aprik 23, 2009, the Regional Berlin Court 1ssued a decision setting
aside the judgment of the Berlin Court of Appeal dated May 29, 2008 On June 12, 2009, FIG appealed that demision On December 16, 2010,
the Berlin Court of Appeal rejected FIG's appeal and confirmed the decision of the Regional Berfin Court 1n Apnl 2009, which decided n
CGISBIM's favor and confirmed the invalidity of the reasaning of the judgment and therefore overruled the order for CGIS BIM to repurchase
the building and pay damages and interest This decision 1s now final In paraile!, FIG filed a second claim for additional damages n the
Berlin Regronal Court which was served on CGIS 8IM on March 3, 2009 On June 19, 2013, the Berlin Regional Court ordered CGIS BIM to
pay FIG the sum of £3 9 million together with interest from February 27, 2008 CGIS BIM has appealed this decision

Telefonica agamnst Vivend 1n Brazil

On May 2, 2011, TELESP (now Telefonica Brazil), filed a claim agamst Vivend) before the Civil Court of S3a Paulo (3* Vara Civel do Fore
Central da Comarca da Capital do Estado de S3o0 Paulo) The company ts seeking damages for having been blocked from acquinng control of
GVT and damages in the amount of 15 million Brazil:an reals {currently approximately €4 9 miflion) corresponding to the expenses incurred
by Telefonica Brazil m connection with its offer for GVT At the beginming of September 2011, Vivend) filed an objection to junsdiction,
challenging the junsdiction of the courts of S30 Paulo to hear a case invelving parties from Curtiba This objection was dismissed on
February 14, 2012, which was confirmed on Apni 4, 2012 by the Court of Appeal

On Apnl 30, 2013, the Court dismissed Telefonica's clam for lack of sufficient and concrete evidence of Vivendr's sesponsibility for
Telefonica’s falling to acquire GVT The Court notably highlightad the inherently risky nature of operations (n the financtal markets, of which
Telefonica must have been aware Moreover, the Court disrissed Vivend's counterclaim for compensation for the damage it suffered as a
result of the defamatory campaign carned out against it by Telefonica On May 28, 2013, Tefefonica appealed the Court's decision to the bth
Chamber of Pnivate Law of the Court of Justice of the State of Sdo Paulo

On September 18, 2014, within the framework of agreements entered into between Vivend: and Telefonica concerning the sale of GVT, the
parties agreed to end this dispute without payment to esther side Pending the conclusion of this settlement transaction {which 1S to be
signed on the day of the closing of the sale of GVT), the case has been suspended

Dynamo agatnst Vivendi

On August 24, 2011, the Dynamo nvestment funds filed a complaint for damages against Vivend: before the Bovespa Arbitration Chamber
{830 Paulo stock exchange) According to Dynamo, a former shareholder of GVT that sold the vast majonty of (ts stake 1n the company before
November 13, 2009 {the date on which Vivend: took control of GVT), the provision in GVT's bylaws providing for an increase in the per share
purchase price when the 15% threshold 15 crossed {the "poison pill prowision”) should allegedly have applied to the acquisition by Vivend)
Vivendi, noting that this poison pill provision was waived by a GVT General Shareholders” Meeting in the event of an acquisition by Vivend:
or Telefonica, denies all of Dynamo’s allegations The arbitral tribunal has been constituted and a hearing before the Bovespa Arbitration
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Chamber should be scheduled shortly tn parallel, on February 6, 2013, Dynamo filed an application with the 21st Federal Court of the capital
of the State of Rio de Janeiro to compel CYM and Bovespa to provide the arbitral tribunal with confidential information refating to the
acquisition of GVT by Vivend: This was rejected on November 7, 2013 as the Court found that only the arbitra} tribunal could make such an
application On December 17, 2014, the Rio de Janeiro Court of Appeal overturned the lower court’s decision and authornized the provision of
the above-mentioned information solely to the arintral trbunal, denying Bynamo access to the information

Hedging-Gniffo against Vivend)

On September 4, 2012, the Hedging-Griffo funds filed a complaint agamnst Vivend before the Arbitration Chamber of the Bovespa {S80 Paulo
Stock Exchange) seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred due to the conditions under which Vivendi completed the
acquisition of GVT in 2009 On December 16, 2013, the arbitral tnbunal was constituted and the plaintiffs submitted therwr initial briefs The
Hedging-Griffo funds demanded compensation for the difference between the price at which they sold their GVT shares on the market and
125% of the price paid by Vivendi in connection with the tender offer for the GVT shares, pursuant to the “poison pill” prevision in GVT's
bylaws Vivend belreves that the decision taken by the Hedging-Griffo funds to sell their GVT shares before the end of the stock market
battle that opposed Vivend: against Telefonica was their own decision made in the context of their management of these funds and can in
no way be atinibutable to Vivend! it also denies any application of the bylaw provision mentioned above, as 1t was waived by a GVT General
Shareholders’ Mesting in the event of an acquisition by Vivend or Telefonica

Litigation involving Vivend: subsidianes

Parabole Réunion

In July 2007, the Group Parabole Réunion filed a legal action before the Pans Tnibunal of First Instance following the termination of its nghts
to exclusively distribute the TPS channels in Reunion island, Mayotte, Madagascar and Mauntius Pursuant to a decision dated September
18, 2007, Canal+ Group was prohibited, under threat of a fing, from allowing the broadcast by third parties of these channels or replacement
channels that have substituted these channels Canal+ Group appealed this decision In a ruling dated June 19, 2008, the Pans Court of
Appeal partially reversed the judgment and stated that these replacement channels were not to be granted exclusively if the channels were
made available to third parties prior to the merger with TPS Parabole Réunion was unsuccessful in its claims concerning the content of the
channels in question On September 19, 2008, Parabole Réunian appealed to the French Supreme Court On November 10, 2009, the French
Supreme Court dismissed the appeal brought by Parabole Réunion In the context of this dispute, various junsdictions have taken the
opportunity to apply the fact that in the event of the loss of the TPS Foot channel, Canal+ Group must make available to Parabole Réunion a
channe! of simifar attractiveness Noncompliance with this order would result in a penalty On September 24, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a
claim against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distnbution before the enforcement magistrate of the Court of First Instance of
Nanterre {Tribunal de grande instance de Nanterre) seeking enforcement of this fine (a request for such enforcement having been previously
rejected by the enfarcement magistrate of Nanterre, the Paris Court of Appeal and the French Supreme Court) On November 6, 2012,
Parabole Réunion expanded its claim to cover the TPS Star, Cinecinema Classic, Cult and Star channels On Aprit 9, 2013, the enforcement
magistrate dismissed in part Parabole Réunion’s claim and declared the rest inadmissible He took care to recall that Canal+ Group had no
legal obhgation with respect to the content or the maintaining of programmung on channels made available to Parabole Réunion Parabole
Réunion filed an appeal against this judgment On May 22, 2014, the Versallles Court of Appea! declared the appea! filed by Parabole
Réunion inadmissible Parabofe Réunion fifed an appea! on points of law and filed a second appeal against the Aprid §, 2013 decision

In parallel, on August 11, 2009, Parabole Réunion filed 3 complaint against Canal+ Group before the Pans Tribunal of First Instance,
requesting that the Tribunal order Canal+ Group to make avatlable a channel with a level of attractiveness simifar to that of TPS Foot in 2006
and to pay damages

On April 26, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a complaint agamst Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distrnibution before the Panis Tribunal
of First Instance asking the Trbunal to acknowledge the fature of the companies of the Group to fulfill their contractual abhgations to
Parabole Réunion and their commitments to the Ministry of Economy

These two actions have been consolidated into a single action On Apnl 29, 2014, the Pans Tribunal of First Instance recognized the
contractual hability of Canal+ Group due to the degradation of the quahty of channels made available to Parabole Réunion The Tribunal
ordered an expert report on the damages suffered by Parabole Réunion, rejecting the assessment produced by the latter On November 14,
2014, Canal+ Group appealed aganst the decision of the Pans Tribunal of First [nstance

BelN Sports against the National Rughy League and Canal+ Group

On March 11, 2014, belN Sports lodged a complaint with the French Competition authorty against Canal+ Group and the Natronal Rughby
League, challenging the award to Canal+ Group of exclusive broadcasting nghts to the "TOP 14” for the 2014-2015 to 2018-2019 seasons
On July 30, 2014, the French Competition Authonty imposed intenm measures suspending Canal+ Group's agreement with the National
Rugby League as from the 2015-2016 season and mandated that a new call for tenders process be organized Canal+ Group and the National
Rugby League appealed this decision before the Paris Court of Appeal
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On October 9, 2014, the Pans Court of Appeal dismissed the appeal of Canal+ Group and the National Rugby League and directed the
Nationa!l Rugby League to complete a new tender process for rights to the “TOP 14" for the 2015-2016 season as well as the following
seasons by no later than March 31, 2015 On October 30, 2014, Canal+ Group appealed agamst this decision

Action brought by the French Competition Authonty regarding Practices in the Pay-TV Sector

On January 9, 2008, further to 1ts voluntary investigation and a complaint by Orange, the French Competition Authority sent Vivendi and
Canal+ Group a notification of allegations It alleges that Canal+ Group has abused its dominant position in certain Pay-TV markets and that
Vivend) and Canal+ Group colluded with TF1 and MG, on the one hand, and with Lagardére, on the other Vivend: and Canal+ Group have
each denied these allegations

On November 16, 2010, the French Competition Authonty rendered a decision in which it dismissed the allegations of collusion, in respect of
all parties, and certan other aflegations, in respect of Canal+ Group The French Competition Authonty requested further investigation
regarding fiber optic TV and catch-up TV, Canal+ Group's exclusive distribution rights on channels broadcast by the Group and ndependent
channels as well as the extension of exclusive nghts on TF1, M6 and Lagardére channels to fiber optic and catch-up TV On October 30,
2013, the French Competition Authority took over the mnvestigation into these aspects of the case

Canal+ Group against TF1, M6, and France Télévision

On December 9, 2013, Canal+ Group filed a complaint with the French Competition Authonty against the practices of the TF1, M6 and France
Téléwision groups in the French-language film market Canal+ Group accused them of inserting pre-emption rights into co-producticn
contracts, In such 2 way as to discourage compstition  The French Competition Authonty 1s examining the case

Canal+ Group against TF1, and TMC Regie

On June 12, 2013, Group Canal+ SA and Canal+ Régie filed a complaint with the French Competition Authority against the practices of TF1
and TMC Régie m the television advertising market Group Canal+ SA and Canal+ Régie accused them of cross-promotion, having a single
advertising division and refusing to promote the D8 channel dunng its faunch The French Competition Authority ts examining the case

Private Copying Levy Case

On February 5, 2014, a ¢laim was filed with Court of First Instance of Nanterre (Tribunal de grande instance de Nanterre} by Copie France
who 15 seeking compensation in respect of external hard dnives used i connection with the G5 set-top boxes Copie France claims that the
external drive used by Canal+ 1s “dedicated” to the set-top boxes and therefore it should be treated as an integrated hard drive Copie France
belreves that the applicable amount of the compensation 1s €45 per hard drive as opposed to €87

Aston France agamnst Canal+ Greup

On September 25, 2014, Aston notified the French Competition Authority about Canal+ Group's decision to stop selling its satellite
subscription called “cards only” {enabling the reception of Canal+/Canalsat programs on Canal Ready-labeled satellite decoders,
manufactured and distributed by third parties, including Aston) In parallel, on September 30, 2014, Aston filed a request for injunctive relief
against Canal+ Group before the Commereial Court of Panis, seeking a stay of the decision of the Canal+ Group to terminate the Canal Ready
partnership agreement and thus stop the marketing of satellite subscriptions called "cards only" On October 17, 2014, the Paris Commerciaf
Court 1ssued an order denying Aston’s requests On November 4, 2014, Aston appealed this decision and, on January 15, 2015, the Paris
Court of Appeal, ruling in chambers, granted its request and suspended the decision of Canal + Group to stop seliing its “cards only”
subscriptions until the French Competition Authonity renders its decision on the merits of the case

Comgplaints against Music Industry Majors in the United States

Several complaints have been filed befare the Federal Courts in New York and Califorma against Universal Music Group and the other music
(industry majors for alleged anti-competitive practices in the context of sales of CDs and Internet music downloads These complaints have
been consclidated before the Federal Court in New York The motion to dissmiss filed by the defendants was granted by the Federal Court on
October 9, 2008, but this decision was reversed by the Second Circurt Court of Appeals on January 13, 2010 The defendants filed a motion
for rehearing whrch was denied They filed a petition with the US Supreme Court which was rejected on January 10, 2011 The discovery
process i underway

Complaints against UMG regarding Royalties for Digital Downloads

Since 2011, as has been the case with other music industry majors, several purported class action complaints have been filed against UMG
by recording artists generally seeking additional royalties for on hne sales of music downloads and master nngtones UMG contests the
merds of these actions

Financial Report and Audited Cansolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended Oecember 31, 2014 Vivend: /129




Friday February 27, 2015

Capitol Records and EMI Music Publishing against MP3tunes

On November 9, 2007, Capitol Records and EMI Music Publishing filed & joint complaint against MP3Tunes and its founder, Michael
Robertson, for copynight infringement on the sideload com and mp3tunes com websites The tniat was held in March 2014, and, on March
19, 2014, the jury returned a verdict favorable to EMI and Capital Records It found the defendants liable for knowingly allowing the
unauthorized content on the websites On March 26, 2014, the jury awarded damages in the amount of $41 milhon On October 30, 2014 the
Court confimed the verdict but entered judgment in the reduced amount of $12 2 milion The defendants have appealed agamst the
Judgment

Mireille Porte against Interscope Records, inc , Stefani Germanotta and Universal Music France

On July 11, 2013, the artist Mireitle Porte {AKA "Orlan”) filed a complaint against Interscope Records, Inc, Stefam Germanotta (AKA “Lady
Gaga”} and Universal Music France wath the Panis Tnbunal of First Instance {Tnibunal de Grande Instance de Pans) for the alleged copynight
infringement of several of Ortan's artistic works

James Clar against Rihanna Fenty, UMG Recordings, Inc and Universal Music France

On June 13, 2014, the artist James Clair filed a complaint against Rihanna Fenty, UMG Recordings, Inc and Universal Music France before
the Pans Tribunal of First Instance (Tribunal de Grande Instarice de Paris) for the alleged infringement of his work

Litigation involving GVT {discontinued operation})

Actions Related to the ICMS Tax

GVT, like all other telecommunications operators, 1s party in several Braz:lian States to various proceedings concerming the application of the
“ICMS”™ tax Imposto Sober Circulagdo de Mercadonas e Prestagdo de Servigos), which 1s a tax on operations relating to the circulauon of
goods and the supply of transport, communication and electncity services

GVT 1s notably a party to litigation in vanous Brazilian States concerning the application of the ICMS tax on voice telecommunication
services GVT argues that the ICMS tax should not apply to monthly plans Of the 21 proceedings initiated by GVT, all have resulted in
decisions favorable to GVT and 12 are no longer subject to appeal

Actions Related to the FUST and FUNTTEL Taxes in Brazl

The Brazihan tax authorities argue that the assessment of the taxes known as “FUST” (Fundp da Unwersalizagdo dos Servigos de
Telecomunicagfes), a federal tax to promote the supply of telecommunications services throughout the whole Brazilian territory, including in
areas that are not economically viable, and "FUNTTEL" (Fundo para Desenveivimentoa Tecnoldgioco das Telecornunicagées), a federal tax to
finance technofogical investments in Braziian telecommunications services, should be based on the company's gross revenue without
deduction for price reductions or nterconnection expenses and other taxes, which would fead to pait of that sum being subject to double
taxation GVT 1s challenging this interpretation and has secured a suspension of payment of the sums claimed by the tax authority from the
federa! judge

Proceedings Brought against Telecommunications Operators in Brazil Regarding the Apphication of the PIS and COFINS taxes

Several proceedings were initiated against all the telecommunications operators m Brazil, including GVT, seeking to prevent invoices from
being increased by taxes known as “PIS” (Programa de Integragdo Social) and "COFINS” (Contribuigdo para Financiamento da Seguridade
Social), which are fedaral taxes that apply to revenue from the provision of telecommunications services GVT believes that the arguments in
its defense have a stronger basis than those of the historic operators as GVT operates pursuant to a more flexible license that allows 1t to
set Its own tanffs
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Major consolidated entities or entities accounted under equity
method

As of December 31, 2014, approximately 540 entities were consoldated or accounted for using the equity method {compared to
approximately 530 entities as of December 31, 2013)

Vivent SA

Groupe Canal+ S.A
Sociétd d Ediion de Canal Plus (a}
Muluthématiques SA S
Canal+ Overseas SA S
D8
Studiocanal S A
M Neowision
TVN
VSTV (b}

Umversal Music Group, Inc
Universal Music Group Holdings Inc
UMG Recordings Ing
Vevo

SIG 104

Unwersal Intemational Music BV
Unmversal Music Entertainment GmbH
Universal Music LLC
Universal Music France SA S
Umiversal Music Holdings Limited

EMI Group Warldwade Holding Ltd

Vivends Village
See Tickets
Digitick
Wengo
Watchever Group 8 A

Watchever GmbH
Elektnm Telekomunikac)a

Discontineed businasses

Global Village Telecom § A {c}

SFR{d)

Maroc Telacom S A {e)

Oetember 31 2014

December 31 2013

Country Accounung Voung Ownershup Actounting Votng Ownership
Note Method Interest Interest Method Intarest Interest
France Parent company Parent company
France C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
France [ 49% 49% c 49% 49%
France ¥ 100% 100% C 100% 100%
France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
France [of 100% 100% c 100% 100%
france c 100% 100% C 100% 190%
Poland C 51% 51% c 51% 51%
13 Poland E 49% 6% E 49% 25%
Vigtnam C 49% 49% C 49% 49%
United States [ 100% 100% [ 100% 100%
Uruted States [ 100% 100% C 100% 100%
United States C 100% 100% C 160% 100%
13 United States E 4B% 48% E 47% 47%
France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Natherlands [ 100% 109% C 100% 100%
Gemnary ¥ 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Japan C 100% 169% C 100% 100%
France c 100% 100% C 100% 190%
United Kingdom c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Urited Kengdom C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
United Kingdom C 100% 160% C 100% 100%
France [+ 100% 100% C 160% 100%
Franca C 100% 0% C 160% 5%
France [ 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Germany [ 100% 100% 1060% 100%
Poland C 100% 160% C 100% 100%
k]
3 Brezil C 100% 100% C 190% 100%
3 France na c 100% 100%
3 Morocco na C 53% 53%

C Consolidated, E Equity, na, not applicable

a  Vivendi consolidated Société d’Edition de Canal Plus since (i} Vivend! has majority control over the board of directors, (1) ne other
shareholder or shareholder group 1s In a position to exercise substantive participating rights that would allow them to veto or Block
decisions taken by Vivend and {in}) Vivend: assumes the majonty of nsks and benefits pursuant to an agreement with this company
through Canal+ Distribution SA S Canal+ Distribution S A S, wholly-owned by Vivend:, guarantees this company’s results in return
for exclusive commereial ights to its subscriber base

b VSTV (Vietnam Satellite Digital Television Company Limited) 1s held 49% by Canal+ Group and 51% by VCTV, a subsidiary of VTV {the
Vietnamese public television company) This company has been consolidated by Vivend) given that Canal+ Group has both aperational
and financial control over it pursuant to a general delegation that was granted by the majonity shareholder and pursuant to the

company's bylaws

c On September 18, 2014, Vvendi entered into a definitive agreement with Telefonica for the sale of GVT

d  OnNovember 27, 2014, Vivend| completed the sale of SFR to Numernicable Group

e  OnMay 14, 2014, Vivendi completed the sale of 1ts 53% nterest in Maroc Telecom group
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Note 28

Statutory auditors fees

Fnday February 27 2015

Fees paid by Vivendi SA in 2014 and 2013 to 1ts statutory auditors and members of the statutory auditor firms {including fees related to !

discontinued operations in 2014 and 2013 at prorate temponis, if any} were as follows

{in millions of euros)

Statutery audit, certification consehdated and
dwidual fiancial statements audit

Issuer

Fully consolidated subsidianies

Other wark and senaces directly related to the
statutory audn

Issuer

Fully consolidated subsidiartes
Subtota!

Other services provided by the network to fully
tonsolidated subsidiaries

Legal tax and social matters

Qther
Subtotal

Totai

KPMG S A Ernst & Young et Autres Total
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

H3 a7 10% 10% 07 09 10% 13% 13 16
41 42 73% 60% 55 56 75% 80% 96 9B

05 04 9% 6% 03 - 4% - 08 04 ‘
01 a7 2% 10% 05 01 7% % 06 08
53 60 4% 86% 10 66 96% 94% 123 126
02 07 3% 10% 02 63 3% 5% 04 10
02 03 3% 4% 01 01 1% 1% 03 04
04 10 6% 14% 03 04 4% 6% 07 14
57 70 100% 100% 13 70 100% 100% 130 140

|

I

I

|

|

|

|

|
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Note 29  Audit exemptions for UMG subsidiaries in the United Kingdom

Vivend: S A has provided guarantees to the following UMG subsidianes, incorporated in England and Wales, under the registered number
indicated, n order for them te claim exemptions from audit, with respect to fiscal year 2014, under section 479A of the UK Companies Act

2006
Name Coempany Number
BACKCITE LIMITED 2358972
CENTENARY UK LIMITED 03478918
DALMATIAN SONGS LIMITED 03506757
DECCA MUSIC GROUP LIMITED 718329
DUB DUB PRODUCTIONS LIMITED 3034298
EGW USD 8107589
EMI OVERSEAS HOLDINGS LIMITED 403200
EMH (P} LIMITED 3984464
EM1I CATALOGUE INVESTMENTS HOLLAND LIMITED 3038313
EMI GROUP AMERICA HNANCE LIMITED 2419597
EMI GROUP DANISH INVESTMENTS LIMITED 242189
EMI GROUP ELECTRONICS LIMITED 461611
EMI GROUP FINANCE DENMARK LIMITED 2422007
EMI GROUP HOLDINGS {UK) 3158108
EMI GRGUP INTERNATICNAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 1407770
EMI GROUP WORLOWIDE 3158106
EMI INVESTMENTS HOLLAND LIMITED 3038307
EMI LIMITED 53317
EMI RECORDED MUSIC (CHILE} LIMIFED 07934340
EMI RECORDED MUSIC HOLDINGS (ITALY] LIMITED 6420969
EMI RECORDED MUSIC HOLDINGS {UK) LIMITED 6407212
EMI RECORDS GERAMANY HOLDCO LIMITED 6420927
EMI RECORDS ITALY HOLDCO LIMITED 6420934
EMI RECORDS UK HOLDCO LIMITED 6385809
EMIG 4 LIMETED 3038275
FLUM MANAGEMENT LIMITED 07908238
G RICORDI & CO {LONDON) LIMITED 228233
GLOBE PRODUCTIONS LIMITED 05489649
JAYDONE LIMITED 4631083
LOUDCLOTHING COM LIMITED 06854812
MAWLAW 388 LIMITED 3590255
RELENTLESS 2006 LIMITED 3967906
UMGIH {ATW) LIMITED 05103127
UNIVERSAL MUSIC (UK) HDLDINGS LIMITED 3393681
UNIVERSAL MUSIC ARTS & ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED 853087
UNIVERSAL MUSIC HOLDINGS (UX) LIMITED 337803
UNIVERSAL MUSIC LEISURE LIMITED 3384487
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING BL LIMITED 02037678
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING INTERNATIONAL MG8 LIMITED 02200287
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING MGB HOLDING UK IMITED 05092413
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING PGM LIMITED 7nesz
UNIVERSAL SRG {LB40) LIMITED 05158521
UNIVERSAL SRG (W A R} LIMITED 05221402
UNIVERSAL SRG ARTIST SERVICES LIMITED 01990283
UNIVERSAL SRG GROUP LIMITED 00284340
UNIVERSAL SRG MUSIC PUBLISHING COPYRIGHTS LIMITED 2873472
UNIVERSAL SRG MUSIC PUBLISHING LIMTTED 02898402
UNIVERSAL SRG STUDIOS LIMITED 03050368
UNIVERSAL/ANXIOUS MUSIC LIMITED 01862378
UNIVERSAL/DICK JAMES MUSIC LIMITED 638804
UNIVERSALASLAND MUSIC LMITED 761997
UNIVERSAL/MCA MUSIC LINHTED 410065
UNIVERSAL/MOMENTUM MUSIC 2 LIMITED 2850484
UNIVERSAL/MOMENTUM MUSIC LIMITED 1946456
V2 MUSIC GROUP LIMITED 03205625
VIRGIN MUSIC GROUP 2259349
VIRGIN RECORDS OVERSEAS LIMITED 335444
VAL 1 LIMITED 3967882
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Note 30 Subsequent events

Friday February 27, 2015

The significant events that occurred between December 31, 2014 and February 11, 2015 (the date of the Management Board meeting that
approved Vivend:'s Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014) were as follows

+ On January 19, 2015, following a call for tenders process carried out by the National Rugby League, Canal+ Group secured
exclusive rights related to all of the National French Rugby Championship's ‘ TOP 14" matches These rights, which mclude all
seven games on each match day, play-off games, as well as the Jour de Rugby show, cover the seasons 2015-2016 to 2018-2019,

and

« In February 2015, Vivend announced the creation of Vivend: Contents, managed by Mr Rodolphe Betmer, Chief Executive Officer
of Canal+ Group Vivend: Contents will be in charge of the design, leadership and development of new content support for music

and visual image, and will manage related investments

Note 31  Adjustment of comparative information

In comphiance with IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, GVT, SFR, Maroc Telecom, and Activision
Blizzard have been reperted in Vivendt's Consoldated Financial Statements as discontinued operations in accordance with the following

terms

+  Ongoing sales as of December 31, 2014 On September 18, 2014, Vivend: and Telefonica entered nto an agreement for the sale of
GVT As a result, GVT has been reported in the Consohdated Statement of Earnings and Statement of Cash Flows as a discontinued
operation, as from the third quarter of 2014 Its contribution to each line of Vivendi’s Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, as of
December 31, 2014, has been grouped under the lines "Assets of discontinued businesses™ and “Liabilities associated with assets of

ciscontinued businesses”

» Completed sales as of Dacember 31, 214 Vivendi deconsolidated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as from
November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11, 2013, respectively All three businesses have been reported in the Consolidated

Statement of Eamings and Statement of Cash Flows as discontinued operations

As a result, the previously published Financial Statements were adjusted

31.1 Adjustments made to the main aggregates of the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

The adjustments to data published for the first quarter and the first half of 2014 are reported below and only relate to GVT

2014
Three months Three months ~ Six months ended
{in mullions of eures) ended March 31 ended June 30 June 30
Earmings before tnterest and income taxas (EBIT) (83 previously published) 176 260 436
Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for GVT -76 B1 157
Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT) (restated) 100 179 79

The adjustments to data published in the 2013 Annual Report are reported below and only relate to GVT and SFR

2013
Three months Three menths  Six months ended
{in mullions of euros) ended March 31 ended June 30 June 30
Earnings hofore interest and tncome taxes (EBIT) (as published {n)) am 668 1,140
Reclassifications related to the application of IFAS 5 for GVT -85 -B4 - 169
Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for SFR -3n - 360 =67
Earnings before interest and income taxes {EBIT) {restated) 76 1R 300
2013
Three months Nine months Three months Year ended
ended September  ended September  ended December December 31
{in millsons of euros) 30, 30, k] )
Earmings before interest and income taxes {(EBIT) {as published (a)) 610 1,750 {2,185) 1435}
Reclassiéications related to the application of IFRS 5 far GVT -90 - 259 96 -355
Reclass:ficatrons related to the application of IFRS 5 for SFR -317 - 958 +2415 +1427
Earnings befora tnterast and income taxes (EBIT) (resisted) 203 503 134 637
a  Aspublished in the 2013 Financ:al Report
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312 Adjustments made for the Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended Decernber 31 2013

Mleclassifications
refated to
tin milhons of euras) Pubhished IFRS 5 (a) Restated
Operating activihies
EBIT {435} +1072 637
Adjustments 4911 - 4,354 557
Content investments net {148) - (148)
Gross cash provided by operating activities hefore ncoms tax pad 4328 -3282 1.046
Other changes in net working caprtal (308) +344 36
Net cash provided by operating activities before income tax paid 4020 -2.938 1,082
Income tax patd net {197) +402 205
Nst cash provided by operating activities of continumng operatians 823 -2536 1.287
Net cash prowided by operating actvities of discontinued operations 1417 + 2536 3953
Net cash provided by operating activities 5240 - 5240
Investing activities
Camtal expenditures {2.674) +2396 {278}
Purchases of consolidated companies after acquired cash (43} +1 (42}
Investments in equity affiliates {2) +2 -
Increase in financial assets {106} +41 {65}
Investments {2.825) + 2480 {385)
Procaeds from sales of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets 50 -17 33
Procaeds from sales of consolidated compamies, after divested cash 2748 -9 2739
Disposal of equity aftiliates 8 - 8
Decrease in financial assets 127 -3 j24
Divestrtures 3,533 -29 3,504
Dmidends recewved from equity affiiates 3 3
Dwidends received from unconsolidated companies 54 54
Net cash providad by/{used for) investing activities of continuing operations 765 + 2411 3176
Net cash prowided by/used for} investing actvities of discontinued operations {1952} 2411 14,363)
Net cash provided by/(used for} investing activities {1,187} - {1,187}
Financing activities
Net proceeds from issuance of common shares in connection with Vivendi SA's share-based
compensation plans 195 - 195
Sales/purchases) of Vivendi SA s treasury shares - - -
Dividends paid by Vivendh SA 1o 1t shareowners (1,325) - {1,325}
QOther transactions with shareowners {1 D46} - {1 046)
Dwidends paid by consolidated compantes to thetr non-contrlling interests 137 +4 {33}
Transactions with shareowners {Z213) +4 (2.209)
Setting up of long-term borrewtngs and increase in other long-term financial kabilities 249 - @6 2,405
Pringipal payment on long term borrowings and decrease in other lang-term financral habilives {1,923) +13 {1.910)
Principat payment on short-term borrowings 5211 +50 {5,161}
Other changes in short term bamowings and other financial liabilities N +5 36
Interest paid net {528} +262 {266)
Other cash items related to financial actrities {349) +19 [330)
Transactions on borrowings and other financial habiities (5,489} + 263 (5,226}
Net cash provided by/lused for) financing actvities of continumg opsrations {2,702} + 267 {7,435)
Net cash provided by/(used for) financing activities of discontinued operations 1284 - 267 1017
Net cash provided byfused for) financing activities (6.413) - {6,418}
Foreign currency translat:on adjustments of continuing operations (48) +28 (200
Foreign currency translation adjustments of discontinued operations {44) -28 {72}
Change in cash and cash equivalents {2,457} - {2,457}
Reclassificatron of cash and cash equwalents from discontinued operatians (396) - {336)
Cash and cash equivaients
At beginning of the period 1.894 - 3894
At end of the period 1,041 - 1.041

a Relates to GVT and SFR {please refer to Note 3}

Financtak Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2014 Vivendi /135




